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_____, 2010

Dear Fellow Shareholder:

We are writing to seek your approval to complete our recent capital raise that will permit us to significantly increase
our common equity and pursue our growth-oriented business plan. On July 27, 2010, we announced that we have
entered into subscription agreements to raise approximately $60 million in the aggregate through a private placement
to selected institutional and other accredited investors of approximately 4,500,000 newly issued shares of our common
stock (which we refer to as our “voting common stock”) and approximately 920,000 shares of newly designated
non-voting common stock (which we refer to as our “non-voting common stock”, and together with the voting common
stock, the “common stock”), at a price of $11.00 per share, which represents a 37.5% premium to the closing price of
our common stock of $8.00 per share on July 26, 2010, the date immediately prior to the date of the public
announcement of the private placement. The closing price of our common stock on [__], 2010, the latest practicable
trading date before the distribution of this document, was $[__] per share.

The primary purpose of the capital raise through the private placement is to redeem the preferred stock we issued to
the U.S. Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program (which we refer to as the “TARP redemption”), and to
pursue organic growth and strategic opportunities throughout our region.  As described in the accompanying proxy
statement, we plan to implement several significant senior management changes if the private placement is completed,
including the appointment of Gregory Mitchell as Chief Executive Officer or President of our holding company,
subject to regulatory review.  Mr. Mitchell is currently a consultant to our company and previously served as Chief
Executive Officer and President of California National Bank, a Managing Director of Hovde Financial, an affiliate of
Hovde Securities, LLC, our placement agent for the private placement, and a regulator at the Office of Thrift
Supervision (the “OTS”).

In connection with the private placement, we will also issue warrants exercisable for a total of 1,800,000 shares of our
non-voting common stock at an exercise price of $11.00 per share (which we refer to as our “Warrants”). The Warrants
will be exercisable for voting common stock in lieu of non-voting common stock following the transfer of the
Warrants in a widely dispersed offering or in other limited circumstances, as described in the accompanying proxy
statement.

Under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635, our shareholders must approve the issuance of our common stock and Warrants
(and the issuance of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants) before we can complete the private
placement.  For this reason, we have called, and invite you to attend, a special meeting of our shareholders.  The
special meeting will be held at _:__ _.m., local time, on _____, 2010 at the Bonita Golf Club, located at 5540
Sweetwater Road, Bonita, California. At the special meeting, you will be asked to consider and vote on proposals to
approve (i) the issuance of shares of common stock and Warrants described in the accompanying proxy statement for
purposes of NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635, including the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the
Warrants, and (ii) the adjournment or postponement of the special meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to
solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient proxies given prior to the time of the special meeting to constitute a
quorum for purposes of the special meeting or insufficient votes to approve the share and Warrant issuance proposal.
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If we fail to obtain shareholder approval, the private placement will not be completed.  THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” BOTH PROPOSALS.

We encourage you to read the accompanying proxy statement and the information incorporated by reference into the
proxy statement.  It contains important information about our company and the matters to be voted on at the special
meeting.

It is important that your shares be represented at the special meeting.  Whether or not you plan to attend the special
meeting, please read the enclosed proxy statement and then complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return
it in the accompanying postpaid return envelope as promptly as possible.  This will save us additional expense in
soliciting proxies and will ensure that your shares are represented at the special meeting.  If your shares are held
through a bank or broker, check your proxy card to see if you can also vote by telephone or via the internet.

Your Board of Directors and management are committed to the success of our company and the enhancement of the
value of your investment. As President and Chief Executive Officer, I want to express my appreciation for your
confidence and support.

Very truly yours,

Hans R. Ganz
President and Chief Executive Officer

ii 
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FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.
610 Bay Boulevard

Chula Vista, California 91910
(619) 691-1519

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON ______, 2010

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Meeting of Shareholders (the “Special Meeting”) of First PacTrust
Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) will be held as follows:

TIME _:__ _.m. local time

DATE _______, 2010

PLACE 5540 Sweetwater Road, Bonita, California

ITEMS OF BUSINESS (1) To approve, for purposes of NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635,
the issuance of shares of the Company’s common stock,
Warrants to purchase common stock and shares of
common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants as
described in the accompanying proxy statement.

(2) To approve the adjournment or postponement of the
Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to
solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient proxies
given prior to the time of the Special Meeting to constitute
a quorum for purposes of the Special Meeting or
insufficient votes to adopt Item 1 above.

These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this
notice.  We urge you to read these materials carefully.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that shareholders vote “FOR” Items 1 and
2.

RECORD DATE Only holders of record of the Company's common stock at the close of business on ____,
2010 will be entitled to vote at the Special Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of
the Special Meeting.

PROXY VOTING It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the Special Meeting. You can
vote your shares by completing and returning the enclosed proxy card.  If your shares are
held through a bank or broker, check your proxy card to see if you can also vote by
telephone or the internet. Regardless of the number of shares you own, your vote is very
important. Please act today.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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HANS R. GANZ
President and Chief Executive Officer

Chula Vista, California
_______, 2010
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Important: The prompt return of proxies will save us the expense of further requests for proxies to ensure a quorum
at the Special Meeting. A pre-addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience. No postage is required if
mailed within the United States.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials
for the Shareholder Meeting To Be Held on _____, 2010:

These proxy materials are also available to you on the Internet.
You are encouraged to review all of the information contained in the proxy materials before voting.

The Company’s Proxy Statement and Proxy Card along with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2009 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010 are
available on the Internet at http://www.firstpactrustbancorp.com (click on the Investor Relations Information link,

then click on link marked "Special Meeting Materials").

ii 
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FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.
610 Bay Boulevard

Chula Vista, California 91910
(619) 691-1519

PROXY STATEMENT
For

SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To be held ________, 2010
_:__ a.m. Pacific Time

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc. (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) is using this document to solicit
proxies from the holders of the Company's common stock, par value $0.01 per share, for use at the upcoming Special
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (the “Special Meeting”) and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.
The Special Meeting will be held on _____, 2010 at _:__ a.m., local time, at the Bonita Golf Club, located at 5540
Sweetwater Road, Bonita, California. At the Special Meeting, shareholders will be asked to vote on two proposals: (i)
the issuance of shares of the Company’s common stock and Warrants, including shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the Warrants as described in this document  (the “Proposed Issuance”) and (ii) the adjournment or
postponement of the Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are
insufficient proxies given prior to the time of the Special Meeting to constitute a quorum for purposes of the Special
Meeting or insufficient votes to approve the Proposed Issuance. These proposals are described in more detail below.
Some of the information in this document relates to Pacific Trust Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Pacific Trust Bank may be referred to from time to time in this document as the "Bank."

By submitting your proxy, you authorize the Company's Board of Directors to represent you and vote your shares at
the Special Meeting in accordance with your instructions. The Board also may vote your shares to adjourn the Special
Meeting from time to time and will be authorized to vote your shares at any adjournments or postponements of the
Special Meeting.

This document and the accompanying materials are being mailed to shareholders on or about ___________, 2010, and
are also available on the Internet at http://www.firstpactrustbancorp.com (click on the Investor Relations Information
link, then click on link marked “Special Meeting Materials”).

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting, please submit your proxy promptly in
the enclosed envelope.  If your shares are held through a bank or broker, check your proxy card to see if you can also
vote by telephone or the internet.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THESE PROXY MATERIALS AND THE SPECIAL MEETING

Why am I receiving these materials?

We have received subscriptions for an aggregate of approximately $60 million through a private placement to selected
institutional and other accredited investors (the “investors” or “subscribers”) of newly issued shares of our voting common
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stock and non-voting common stock, at a price of $11.00 per share, which represents a 37.5% premium to the closing
price of our common stock of $8.00 per share on July 26, 2010, the date immediately prior to the date of the public
announcement of the private placement. The closing price of our common stock on [__], 2010, the latest practicable
trading date before the distribution of this document, was $[__] per share. In connection with the private placement,
we will also issue Warrants exercisable for a total of 1,800,000 shares of our non-voting common stock at an exercise
price of $11.00 per share.  The Warrants will be exercisable for voting common stock in lieu of non-voting common
stock following the transfer of the Warrants in a widely dispersed offering or in other limited circumstances, as
described in this document.

The primary purpose of the private placement is to pursue our business plan of organic growth and strategic
acquisitions throughout our region and to fund our planned TARP redemption.  Before we may complete the private
placement, our shareholders must approve the Proposed Issuance in accordance with NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635.

1
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In order to obtain the requisite shareholder approval, we are calling a Special Meeting of our shareholders, to be held
on ____, 2010. Our Board is providing these proxy materials to you in connection with the Special Meeting. As a
shareholder of record of our common stock, you are invited to attend the Special Meeting, and are entitled to and
requested to vote on the proposals described in this document.

Who is entitled to vote?

The record date for the Special Meeting is ______, 2010. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on that
date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Special Meeting. The only class of stock entitled to be voted at the
Special Meeting is the Company's voting common stock.

How many shares are eligible to be voted?

Each outstanding share of voting common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter presented at the Special
Meeting. At the close of business on the record date, there were _______ shares of voting common stock outstanding.
As of ________, 2010, our directors and executive officers as a group owned approximately 542,420 shares of our
voting common stock, or approximately 12.8% of the total number of shares entitled to vote at the Special Meeting.
All of our directors and executive officers have indicated that they will vote their shares in favor of each proposal
described in this document.

What am I being asked to vote on?

At the Special Meeting, shareholders will be asked to vote on the following proposals:

Proposal 1.                      To approve, for purposes of NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635, the issuance of shares of the
Company’s common stock, Warrants to purchase common stock and shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
the Warrants as described in this document.  In this document, we sometimes refer to the approval of Proposal 1 as the
“Shareholder Approval.”

Proposal 2.                      To approve the adjournment or postponement of the Special Meeting to a later date or dates,
if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient proxies given prior to the time of the Special Meeting
to constitute a quorum for purposes of the Special Meeting or insufficient votes to adopt Proposal 1.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that shareholders vote “FOR” Proposals 1 and 2.

What securities will the Company issue if the Shareholder Approval is received?

The Company expects to issue to subscribers in the private placement:

�  an aggregate of approximately 4,500,000 shares of our voting common stock at a per share price of $11.00;

�  an aggregate of approximately 920,000 shares of our non-voting common stock at a per share price of $11.00;

�  Warrants for an aggregate of 1,800,000 shares of our non-voting common stock exercisable at $11.00 per share to
two of the subscribers (the "Specified Investors") or their affiliates.  Shares of voting common stock will be
issuable in lieu of non-voting common stock upon exercise of the Warrants if the Warrants are transferred to a
third-party transferee in (a) a widespread public distribution, including pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") or (b) a transfer in which no transferee (or group of associated
transferees) would receive more than 2% of any class of voting securities of the Company ("widely dispersed
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offerings"). In addition, a transfer of the Warrants to a transferee that would control more than 50% of the voting
securities of the Company regardless of the transfer of the Warrants will also result in shares of voting common
stock being issued upon exercise in lieu of shares of non-voting common stock.  The Warrants to be issued to one
of the Specified Investors, TCW Shared Opportunity Fund V, L.P. (“TCW”), representing Warrants for an aggregate
of 240,000 shares, will also be exercisable for shares of voting common stock if TCW then owns less than 4.99%
of our voting common stock as a result of dilutive actions taken by the Company.  The Warrants will be subject to
adjustment in accordance with their terms, and, to the extent that exercise of the Warrants would cause the holder
to beneficially own more than 4.99% of our voting common stock, the Warrants will not be exercisable.

2
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Must the shareholders approve Proposal 1 for the private placement to be completed?

Yes.

What vote is required to approve the proposals at the Special Meeting?

The proposals to be considered at the Special Meeting require the following votes in order to be approved:

�  Under the NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635, approval of Proposal 1 requires that a majority of the votes cast on the
proposal be cast in favor of the proposal.

�  Approval of Proposal 2 also requires that a majority of votes cast on the proposal be cast in favor of the proposal.

Assuming the presence of a quorum, failure to vote or a broker non-vote (described below) will not count as a vote
cast on the proposals. Broker non-votes will count towards obtaining a quorum for the proposals.

How does the Board of Directors recommend I vote on the proposals?

Our Board unanimously approved the Proposed Issuance and related transactions described in this document and the
entry by the Company into the subscription agreements, and shareholder approval of Proposal 1 is necessary for
the Proposed Issuance to be completed. Accordingly, our Board unanimously recommends that you vote "FOR"
Proposals 1 and 2. Each member of our Board has indicated that he will vote in favor of these proposals.

What if my shares are held in "street name" by a broker?

If your shares are held in "street name" by a broker, your broker is required to vote your shares in accordance with
your instructions.

What if my shares are held in the Company's Employee Stock Ownership Plan?

If you are a participant in the Company's Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the plan trustee is required to vote the
shares allocated to your account under the plan in accordance with your instructions. If you do not instruct the trustee
how to vote your allocated shares, the trustee may vote your allocated shares in its sole discretion. The trustee must
vote the unallocated shares in the same proportion as it is instructed to vote the allocated shares. For example, if on a
particular proposal the trustee was instructed to vote 60% of the allocated shares "FOR," 35% of the allocated shares
"AGAINST" and 5% of the allocated shares "ABSTAIN," the trustee would vote 60% of the unallocated shares
"FOR," 35% of the unallocated shares "AGAINST" and 5% of the unallocated shares "ABSTAIN."

How many shares must be present to hold the Special Meeting?

A quorum must be present at the Special Meeting for any business to be conducted. The presence at the Special
Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of at least one-third of the shares of common stock outstanding on the
record date will constitute a quorum. Proxies received but marked as abstentions or broker non-votes will be included
in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the Special Meeting.

What if a quorum is not present at the Special Meeting?

If a quorum is not present at the scheduled time of the Special Meeting, the chairman of the meeting or holders of a
majority of the shares entitled to vote who are present or represented by proxy may adjourn the Special Meeting until
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a quorum is present. The time and place of the adjourned Special Meeting will be announced at the time the
adjournment is taken. An adjournment will have no effect on the business that may be conducted at the Special
Meeting.

3
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How do I vote?

 1.  You may vote by mail. If you properly complete and sign the accompanying proxy card and return it in the
enclosed envelope and it is received prior to the Special Meeting, it will be voted in accordance with your
instructions.

 2.  You may vote in person at the Special Meeting. If you plan to attend the Special Meeting and wish to vote in
person, we will give you a ballot at the Special Meeting. Note, however, that if your shares are held in “street name”
in the name of your broker, bank or other nominee, you will need to obtain a proxy from the record holder of your
shares indicating that you were the beneficial owner of those shares on ________, 2010, the record date for voting
at the Special Meeting, authorizing you to vote the shares at the Special Meeting. You are encouraged to vote by
proxy prior to the Special Meeting even if you plan to attend the Special Meeting.

 3.  If your shares are held through a bank or broker, check your proxy card to see if you can also vote by telephone or
the internet.

What happens if I do not give specific voting instructions?

Holders of Record. If you are a holder of record and you either (i) indicate when voting that you wish to vote as
recommended by the Board of Directors, or (ii) sign and return a proxy card without giving specific instructions, then
the Board of Directors, as the holder of your proxy, will vote your shares in the manner recommended by the Board of
Directors on all matters presented in this document and as the proxy holders may determine in their discretion with
respect to any other matters properly presented for a vote at the Special Meeting.

Beneficial Owner of Shares Held in Street Name. If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in “street name” and do
not provide the bank, broker or other nominee that holds your shares with specific voting instructions, the organization
that holds your shares may not vote on the proposals described in this document. This is generally referred to as a
“broker non-vote.”

If you vote against Proposal 1 but fail to give instructions for Proposal 2, we will not use the discretionary authority
you have granted to us to cast your vote in favor of Proposal 2 if the purpose of such adjournment or postponement is
to solicit additional support in favor of Proposal 1.

How are broker non-votes treated?

Broker non-votes are counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present, but are not considered entitled
to vote or as votes cast. For the purpose of determining whether the shareholders have approved Proposal 1 and
Proposal 2, broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote.

How are abstentions treated?

Abstentions are counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present, and an abstention will have the
same effect as a vote against the Proposals.

Are shareholders of the Company entitled to appraisal rights?

Holders of common stock are not entitled to appraisal rights under the Maryland General Corporation Law in
connection with the transaction described in this document.
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How will voting on any other business be conducted?

We do not know of any other business to be conducted at the Special Meeting. If any other business is presented at the
Special Meeting, the Board of Directors, as holder of your proxy, may vote on that matter in its discretion.

How can I obtain directions to attend the Special Meeting?

To obtain directions to attend the Special Meeting, please call the Company’s Secretary at (619) 691- 1519.

Can I change my vote after I submit my proxy?

Yes.  If you are a holder of record, you may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the polls close
at the Special Meeting by:

�  signing another proxy with a later date;

�  giving written notice of the revocation of your proxy to the Company's Secretary prior to the Special Meeting; or

�  voting in person at the Special Meeting. Your proxy will not be automatically revoked by your mere attendance at
the Special Meeting; you must actually vote at the Special Meeting to revoke a prior proxy.

If you hold your shares in “street name,” you will need to follow the instructions of your bank, broker or other nominee
to change your vote.

Who should I call if I have questions?

Please call our placement agent for the private placement, Hovde Securities, LLC, at (310) 535-9200.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this document regarding future events, performance or results are "forward-looking statements" within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 ("PSLRA") and are made pursuant to the safe
harbors of the PSLRA. Actual results could be materially different from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. Do not unduly rely on forward-looking statements; they give our expectations about the
future and are not guarantees. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and we do not
undertake any obligation to update them to reflect changes that occur after that date. A number of factors could cause
results to differ significantly from our expectations, including, among others, any failure to obtain the shareholder
approvals sought in this document and any resulting inability to complete the capital raise in the manner intended, and
factors identified in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 and Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 27, 2010, including
under the headings "Forward Looking Statement Disclosure" and "Risk Factors."

PROPOSAL 1

APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK AND WARRANTS

Background of the Private Placement
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Since the Company went public in 2002, our Board of Directors and management have continuously discussed the
Company’s capital position, business plan and potential strategic opportunities, and consulted with several financial
advisors to consider possible ways of enhancing each.

5
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Over the past nine months, our Board of Directors and management determined that it would be prudent to seek
substantial additional capital in order to redeem the preferred shares the Company issued to the U.S. Treasury as part
of the TARP program, and to pursue strategic growth initiatives that the Board of Directors and management believe
to be attractive given current conditions in the financial markets. In connection with enhancing our business plan
and pursuing strategic growth initiatives, our Board of Directors also considered the possibility of enhancing our
management team through additional hires. Additionally, our Board of Directors determined that additional capital
would provide the Company and the Bank with increased financial flexibility and improved market position in light of
the credit quality and loan loss challenges, liquidity pressures, and reported operating losses experienced by financial
institutions throughout the country, including in particular in California, and that additional capital would strengthen
our ability to pursue acquisition opportunities, to continue investing in our core business, to fund the TARP
redemption and to maintain the Bank’s capital ratios well above regulatory capital requirements. The Board regularly
met with management, its financial and investment advisors and representatives of the Company’s legal advisor, Silver
Freedman & Taff, L.L.P., to discuss and receive updates regarding capital raising and other strategies. During this
time, the Company also considered and held discussions with potential new management hires, as well as potential
new investors, as part of an overall effort to identify a prudent strategic transaction for the Company.

The Board determined in March 2010 to focus on a potential capital raise concurrently with a plan to enhance the
Company’s management team. In light of the Board's and management's objectives for the size and terms of a potential
capital raise, conditions in the public trading markets generally and for the Company's common stock in particular,
including the Company's stock price, market capitalization, trading liquidity and the Company’s and its advisors’ views
regarding the significant challenges the Company would face in pursuing a public offering, the Board determined to
focus primarily on a potential private capital raise.

Accordingly, in March 2010, we engaged Hovde Securities, LLC as a financial advisor to consider potential capital
raise strategies.  Separately, to assist the Company in considering enhancements to our business plan and strategic
direction, we engaged COR Advisors LLC (“COR Advisors”), an affiliate of COR Capital LLC ("COR Capital"), a
subscriber in the private placement, as a consultant to the Company.  Also at that time, as part of its effort to enhance
the Company’s management team, the Board determined to hire Gregory Mitchell as a consultant, with the intention
that, if the capital raise was completed, the Company would subsequently enter into an employment agreement with
Mr. Mitchell, as Chief Executive Officer or President of the Company, as soon as practicable following the
completion of the private placement, subject to regulatory review.   Mr. Mitchell previously served as Chief Executive
Officer and President of California National Bank, a Managing Director of Hovde Financial, an affiliate of Hovde
Securities LLC and a regulator at the OTS.  Additional biographical information for Mr. Mitchell is contained under
“Description of the Subscription Agreements—Covenants.”

Mr. Mitchell has been hired by the Company as a consultant for the board of directors and management to, among
other things, identify additional potential hires in an effort to augment our management and sales personnel to position
the Company to implement its strategic plan and deploy the additional capital expected to be raised in the private
placement. Among the potential hires are a chief retail officer to oversee expansion of the Bank’s branch network; a
chief administrative officer to integrate and oversee the Bank’s growth initiatives including organic and acquisitive
growth; loan and core deposit production personnel; a commercial lending team to oversee underwriting, review, and
credit decisions for the Bank’s new commercial (CRE and C&I) lending focus; a risk officer to oversee lending and
securities portfolios; and capital markets personnel.

In May 2010, Hovde was formally engaged as lead placement agent and directed to speak to potential investors on the
Company's behalf to assess their level of interest in a potential private placement of equity securities. At the outset, the
Company and Hovde understood that it would be necessary and desirable to identify additional management personnel
to implement the Company’s strategic plans and one or more so-called "key" investors to facilitate due diligence and
determination of investment terms and pricing. COR Capital and TCW are the key investors we identified (each of
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whom had entered into non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with the Company) to discuss the potential
private placement and how the terms of such an investment could be structured in view of regulatory control
requirements, NASDAQ listing standards and necessary shareholder approvals.

6
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The Company, Hovde and the key investors agreed at the outset that the structure of the investment should emphasize
common equity, in light of increased market and regulatory focus on Tier 1 common equity.  During June and July
2010, discussions continued with a view to refining the terms of an investment and addressing regulatory issues. The
parties understood that, as a result of the proposed size of the private placement and their mutual intent that the
investment ultimately be in the form of Tier 1 common equity securities, the approval of the Company's shareholders
would be required. Also during this time, discussions were held with representatives of the OTS, our primary
regulator, and the Company provided the OTS with requested information regarding, among other things, the Bank’s
business plan, financial information and the structure and terms of the proposed private placement. Throughout this
period, the Company's senior management, Hovde, and Silver Freedman regularly updated the Board regarding the
progress of discussions and the potential terms of the private placement. Discussions between the Company and
individual investors, as well as customary due diligence relating to the Bank and its business, continued and terms for
the private placement, as well as a governance and investment structure, were finalized. Ultimately, our Board of
Directors determined that a private placement to the investors utilizing a combination of our common stock, a newly
authorized series of non-voting common stock and the Warrants was the most effective and efficient means to address
our capital needs in a timely manner and was in the best interests of our shareholders.

On July 27, 2010, following approval by the Board of Directors, the Company entered into subscription agreements
with each of the subscribers to issue an aggregate of approximately 4,500,000 shares of our voting common stock at a
per common share price of $11.00, an aggregate of approximately 920,000 shares of our non-voting common stock at
a per common share price of $11.00 and, in the case of TCW, Warrants to purchase 240,000 shares of our non-voting
common stock at an exercise price of $11.00 per share.  In addition, in consideration for its consulting services
preceding the completion of the private placement, the Company will issue Warrants to COR Advisors to purchase an
aggregate of 1,560,000 shares of our non-voting common stock at an exercise price of $11.00 per share. The voting
common stock and non-voting common stock are identical in all respects except that the non-voting common stock
will not have voting rights unless otherwise required by law. The completion of the private placement as approved by
the Board of Directors is subject to the receipt of the Shareholder Approval and other customary closing conditions,
including the receipt of any required regulatory approvals.  Based on the Company’s discussions with the OTS to date,
the Company is not aware of any further material informational requests or application requirements. The private
placement is exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) pursuant to
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

NASDAQ Shareholder Approval Requirement

Because our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, we are subject to the NASDAQ Listing
Rules. NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635 requires shareholder approval prior to the issuance of securities in connection
with a transaction, other than a public offering, involving the sale, issuance or potential issuance by a company of
common stock, or securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock, equal to 20% or more of the common
stock or 20% or more of the voting power outstanding before the issuance for less than the greater of book value or
market value of the stock.

The Proposed Issuance falls under this rule because the shares of common stock issuable upon the completion of the
private placement will equal or exceed 20% of the number of shares of our common stock and voting power
outstanding prior to the private placement. In addition, the $11.00 per share price for the common stock is less than
the book value per share of our common stock. The book value of our common stock as of June 30, 2010 was $18.21
per share, based on our common shareholders’ equity as of that date divided by the total number of common shares
outstanding as of that date.

Proposal 1 must receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on the proposal in order to be
approved.  Our Board adopted a resolution unanimously recommending that the shareholders approve Proposal 1 for
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purposes of Rule 5635 of the NASDAQ Listing Rules.

Description of the Subscription Agreements

As described above, each of the subscribers entered into a subscription agreement with the Company to purchase the
common stock and, in the case of TCW, Warrants.  The subscription agreements of the Specified Investors and certain
other subscribers differ in certain respects from the subscription agreements of other subscribers, including providing
one of the Specified Investors with the right to representation on our Board; providing to the Specified Investors and
two other subscribers who are not Specified Investors that the Company will use its commercially reasonable best
efforts to provide these subscribers with preemptive rights with respect to public or private offerings of our common
stock (or securities convertible into common stock) during a three year period following the completion of the private
placement to maintain their proportionate ownership of our common stock, subject to certain exceptions, and to use
commercially reasonable best efforts to provide these subscribers the opportunity to participate in future public or
private offerings of the Company’s other debt, equity or trust preferred securities; and only requiring that the Specified
Investors and five other subscribers who are not Specified Investors deposit 2.5% of their respective subscription
amounts in escrow rather than the 10% deposited by other subscribers.

7
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The following is a summary of material terms of the subscription agreements; a copy of the standard form of
subscription agreement is attached to this document as Annex A and is incorporated by reference into this document.
While the Company believes this summary covers the material terms and provisions of the subscription agreements, it
may not contain all of the information that is important to you and is qualified in its entirety by reference to
Annex A.  Shareholders are urged to read Annex A in its entirety.

Covenants

We have agreed to call a meeting of our shareholders, as promptly as reasonably practicable following the execution
of the subscription agreements (which occurred on July 27, 2010), to vote on a proposal to approve the issuance of
shares of common stock and Warrants in the private placement (including the common stock issuable upon exercise of
the Warrants) as required by NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635. We have also agreed to use our reasonable best efforts
after the completion of the private placement to (i) complete the TARP redemption and (ii) enter into an employment
agreement with Gregory Mitchell, providing for Mr. Mitchell to be appointed Chief Executive Officer or President of
the Company, and to appoint Mr. Mitchell to the office of Chief Executive Officer or President of the Company upon
or promptly following the Closing, subject to regulatory review.

Mr. Mitchell is the former Chief Executive Officer and President of California National Bank and is currently a
consultant to the Company. Mr. Mitchell will succeed our current Chief Executive Officer and President, Mr. Ganz,
who will remain a director of the Company and continue to serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank.  Prior to becoming a consultant to the Company, Mr. Mitchell served in various roles with California National
Bank, including Chief Executive Officer and President, from 2001 until October 2009 when it was seized by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) as part of the closing of all nine bank subsidiaries of California
National Bank’s parent, FBOP Corporation. Prior to joining California National Bank, Mr. Mitchell was a Managing
Director with Hovde Financial, an affiliate of Hovde Securities, LLC (our placement agent for the private placement),
where he was responsible for the formation and management of its West Coast investment banking, financial advisory
and fund management practice. Mr. Mitchell also served for 10 years with the OTS where he was responsible for,
among other things, helping to recapitalize and restructure troubled thrift institutions. Mr. Mitchell holds a BS in
Business from the University of the Pacific, a master’s degree from the George Washington University, and a
post-graduate certificate in commercial banking from the Pacific Coast Banking School, University of
Washington.  Mr. Mitchell also served as a member of the United States Coast Guard for twenty years and is a
member of the Board of Directors of the Boy Scouts. Mr. Mitchell’s appointment and the employment agreement we
intend to enter into with Mr. Mitchell may be subject to regulatory review; however, the Company’s discussions with
the OTS to date have included its intent to hire Mr. Mitchell, and the Company has no reason to believe that further
material informational requests are pending as of the date of this document.

The Company has also agreed that after the completion of the private placement, it will not redeem or repurchase any
shares of its capital stock, or take or cause to be taken any action, which would, or would be reasonably likely to,
result in the  subscribers, or any group of subscribers related to, or persons acting in concert with the subscribers,
being deemed to control the Company or the Bank under applicable bank regulations unless the Company provides
sixty (60) days’ prior written notice of such action, to permit the subscriber to take corrective action.

Third Party Proposals

The Company has agreed that, until the completion or termination of the private placement, it will not initiate, solicit,
or knowingly encourage any inquiries, proposals or offers relating to, or engage in any negotiations or discussions
with or provide any nonpublic information to any person concerning any third party proposal for (i) a direct or indirect
acquisition or purchase of a business that constitutes ten percent (10%) or more of the total revenues, net income,
assets or deposits of the Company and the Bank taken as a whole, (ii) a direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of
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any class of debt or equity securities representing five percent (5%) or more of the voting power of the Company or
the Bank, (iii) the issuance of any equity or debt securities by the Company or the Bank to any person or group other
than pursuant to certain Company benefit plans, (iv) a tender offer or exchange offer that if consummated would result
in any person beneficially owning ten percent (10%) or more of any class of equity securities of the Company or (v) a
merger, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving
the Company or the Bank.

The Company's breach of this agreement could result in the Company owing the subscribers, in the aggregate, a
termination fee of $3.0 million in cash. See "—Termination of the Subscription Agreements."

8
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Board Representation

In connection with its subscription agreement with one of the Specified Investors, COR Capital, the Company agreed
to appoint Mr. Steven Sugarman to the Board for a term to expire in 2013, subject to receipt of applicable regulatory
approvals.

Mr. Sugarman, age 35, is the Managing Member of COR Capital. Previously, he was a founding Partner and Portfolio
Manager in charge of fundamental research for GPS Partners LLC, a $2 billion investment firm specializing in high
yield equity securities including master limited partnerships, REITs and financials.  From 2004-2005 he worked at
Lehman Brothers overseeing portfolios of debt, equity and alternative investments.  Previously, he founded and served
as Chief Executive Officer of Sugarman Enterprises Inc., a financial advisory firm specializing in real estate and
asset-based loans. He began his career as a management consultant at McKinsey & Company.  Mr. Sugarman is
licensed as a California Real Estate Broker and is a member of the California State Bar.  He is the co-author of The
Forewarned Investor: Don’t Get Fooled Again by Corporate Fraud (Career Press).  Mr. Sugarman is a graduate of the
Yale Law School (J.D.) and Dartmouth College (A.B. with High Honors, Cum Laude).

Transfer Restrictions

The common stock and the Warrants to be issued in the Proposed Issuance, and the common stock issuable upon
exercise of the Warrants, will not be, when issued, registered under the Securities Act, or under the securities laws of
any state or other jurisdiction, and unless so registered may not be offered or sold in the United States or to U.S.
persons except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state
securities laws.

The Company has been advised that the FDIC could under certain circumstances require certain of the Company’s
shareholders to agree to restrictions on the transfer of the common stock they own or acquire in the private placement
as a condition to the Company’s participation in FDIC-assisted transactions, on terms and conditions that may be
comparable to those set forth in the FDIC’s Statement of Policy on Qualifications for Failed Bank Acquisitions. In
anticipation of that potential requirement, each subscriber (with the exception of TCW) agreed to be bound by such
restriction on transfer as the FDIC may require, for up to three (3) years from the date of the latest of any
FDIC-assisted transactions in which the Company participates (we refer to this restriction as the “FDIC Restriction”).  In
the event that one or more FDIC Restrictions are imposed, the transfer of any shares of common stock then owned by
a subscriber (to which such FDIC Restrictions would apply by their terms) may be restricted by the Company in
accordance with the terms of the FDIC Restriction.

Registration Rights

The Company has agreed to file a shelf registration statement with the SEC covering the securities issued in the
Proposed Issuance (including the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants) within 30 business
days of the completion of the private placement, which registration statement may be used for resales of these
securities (other than during certain black-out periods). The Company also agreed to reimburse TCW for up to
$20,000 of its expenses incurred in connection with the registration statement.

Preemptive Rights

The subscription agreements provide that the Company will use its commercially reasonable best efforts to provide
the Specified Investors and two other subscribers who are not Specified Investors, so long as they still hold at least
90% of the common stock they purchased in the private placement (including shares issuable upon exercise of
Warrants, in the case of the Specified Investors), with preemptive rights with respect to public or private offerings of
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the common stock (or securities convertible into common stock) during a three year period after the completion of the
private placement to enable them to maintain their proportionate ownership of our common stock. The Company is
not required to offer pre-emptive rights in connection with (i) any common stock or other securities issuable upon the
exercise or conversion of any securities of the Company issued or agreed or contemplated to be issued as of the date
of the subscription agreement; (ii) pursuant to the granting or exercise of employee stock options or other stock
incentives pursuant to the Company’s stock incentive plans approved by the Board or similar plan where stock is being
issued or offered to a trust, other entity or otherwise, for the benefit of any employees, officers or directors of the
Company, in each case in the ordinary course of providing incentive compensation; or (iii) issuances of capital stock
as full or partial consideration for a merger, acquisition, joint venture, strategic alliance, license agreement or other
similar nonfinancing transaction.  In addition, the Company agreed to use commercially reasonable best efforts to
provide these subscribers the opportunity to participate in future public or private offerings of the Company’s other
debt, equity or trust preferred securities.

9
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Representations and Warranties

In the subscription agreements, we made customary representations and warranties to the subscribers relating to us,
our business and the common stock and, in the case of TCW, the Warrants and the common stock issuable to the
TCW upon the exercise of the Warrants, and agreed to pay liquidated damages to the subscribers for breaches of
certain of our representations and warranties in certain circumstances.  See “—Termination of a Subscription Agreement,”
below. Shareholders are not third-party beneficiaries under the subscription agreements and should not construe the
representations, warranties or covenants or any descriptions thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or
condition of the Company, any of the subscribers or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates. Moreover,
information concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties may change after the date of the
subscription agreements, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in the Company's public
disclosures. The provisions of the subscription agreements, including the representations, warranties and covenants,
should not be read alone, but instead should only be read together with the information provided elsewhere in this
document and in the documents incorporated by reference into this document, including the periodic and current
reports and statements that the Company files with the SEC.  For more information regarding these documents
incorporated by reference, see "Where You Can Find More Information" below.

Fees and Expenses; Use of Proceeds

We expect to receive net proceeds of approximately $56,150,000 upon completion of the private placement after the
payment of offering expenses of approximately $3,850,000. Hovde served as lead Placement Agent with respect to the
private placement and will receive compensation of approximately $3,000,000, plus up to $150,000 in reimbursable
expenses. Other expenses incurred or to be incurred by the Company in connection with the private placement are
estimated at $700,000, including $350,000 of reimbursable expenses for COR Capital.

The Company intends to use approximately $19.3 million of the net proceeds for the TARP redemption, upon receipt
of required regulatory approvals.  The Company expects to use the remaining net proceeds from the private placement
for general corporate purposes, which may include, without limitation, providing capital to support the strength and
growth of its subsidiary, Pacific Trust Bank, and pursuing other strategic business opportunities in the Company’s
markets.  If the Company completes the TARP redemption, the Bank intends to enter into agreements with certain of
its executive officers providing for the payment to these officers of one-half of the amounts to which they would have
been entitled under their existing severance agreements. See “—Interests of Company Executive Officers and Directors in
the Private Placement" below.

Interests of Company Executive Officers and Directors in the Private Placement

None of the directors or executive officers of the Company are subscribers in the private placement. Some of the
directors and executive officers of the Company, however, have interests in the private placement that are in addition
to, or different from, the interests of Company shareholders generally. The Board was aware of these interests and
considered them, among other matters, in approving the subscription agreements and the transactions contemplated by
the subscription agreements.

Retention Payments. As promptly as practicable following the TARP redemption, the Bank intends to enter into
agreements with current President and Chief Executive Officer Hans Ganz, Executive Vice President James P.
Sheehy, Executive Vice President-Lending Melanie M. Yaptangco, and three other executive officers (each, an
“Executive”) providing for the immediate payment to each Executive of one-half of the amount he or she would have
been entitled to receive under his or her existing severance agreement with the Bank if the private placement had
constituted a “change in control” under such severance agreements and his or her employment had ceased (other than by
a termination for cause).  The pre-tax cost of such payments is estimated to be approximately $1.6 million (including
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approximately $785,000 to Mr. Ganz, $222,000 to Mr. Sheehy and $244,000 to Ms. Yaptangco).  Should any of the
Executives actually cease employment with the Bank (other than by a termination for cause) within three years
following the completion of the private placement, they would, subject to certain conditions, be entitled to the balance
of the severance amounts remaining under their existing severance agreements.
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Existing Options. As contemplated by the subscription agreements, each option to purchase Company common stock
that is outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the private placement (or as soon as permitted by applicable
law following the completion of the private placement) will be cancelled in consideration for a payment of $3.00 per
option share, or approximately $1,447,000 in the aggregate.  Once cancelled, these options will not be available for
reissuance under the Company’s 2003 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. There are a total of 482,396 such outstanding
options, of which the Company’s directors and executive officers hold, in the aggregate, 407,746. 

After adjustment by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors pursuant to Section 6 of the
Company’s 2003 Stock Option and Incentive Plan for the shares and Warrants issued in the private placement, the
remaining number of shares available for issuance pursuant to any future awards under the 2003 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan is expected to be approximately ______.

In addition, after adjustment by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors pursuant to
Section 6 of the Company’s 2003 Recognition and Retention Plan for the shares and Warrants issued in the private
placement, the remaining number of shares available for issuance pursuant to any future awards under the Recognition
and Retention Plan is expected to be approximately _____.  No adjustment will be made to any individual awards
outstanding under the Recognition and Retention Plan for the shares and Warrants issued in the private placement.

Conditions to Completion of the Private Placement

Closing Conditions for the Company.  The obligations of the Company to complete the private placement are subject
to the satisfaction (or waiver, as applicable) of certain conditions, which include:

�  receipt of Shareholder Approval;

�  as of the date of the completion of the private placement, the accuracy of the representations and warranties made
by the subscriber;

�  receipt of any regulatory approvals required to complete the private placement;

�  receipt by the Company of gross proceeds in the private placement of at least $60.0 million;

�  no governmental entity shall have imposed any conditions or restrictions on the Company or the Bank that would
materially adversely impact the business activities of the Company or the Bank or materially impair, impede or
delay certification by the FDIC of the Bank as being eligible to bid in connection with the sale of failed depository
institutions by the FDIC; and

�  no injunction or other legal proceeding shall have been initiated or threatened by a governmental authority seeking
to block the private placement.

Closing Conditions for Each Subscriber.  The obligations of a subscriber to complete the private placement are subject
to the satisfaction (or waiver, as applicable) of certain conditions, which include:

�  receipt of Shareholder Approval;

�  as of the date of the completion of the private placement, the accuracy of the representations and warranties made
by the Company;

�  receipt of any regulatory approvals required to complete the private placement;
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�  receipt by the Company of gross proceeds in the Private Placement of at least $40.0 million (or, in the case of
TCW and one other investor, $60.0 million);

�  no governmental entity shall have imposed any conditions or restrictions on the Company or the Bank that would
materially adversely impact the business activities of the Company or the Bank (and in the case of TCW, TCW’s
business activities) or materially impair, impede or delay certification by the FDIC of the Bank as being eligible to
bid in connection with the sale of failed depository institutions by the FDIC;
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�  no injunction or other legal proceeding shall have been initiated or threatened by a governmental authority (or in
the case of TCW, any third party) seeking to block the private placement;

�  the non-voting common stock shall have been duly authorized under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as
amended and, in the case of TCW, non-voting common stock to be issued to TCW shall not, in its sole judgment,
constitute a “voting security” as defined under applicable bank regulations;

�  as of and after giving effect to the consummation of the private placement and assuming that no person or
entity affiliated with the subscriber or deemed to be acting in concert with subscriber pursuant to applicable
banking regulations has subscribed for any shares of common stock in the private placement, (i) the
subscriber shall not own, control or have the power to vote, voting securities equal to or greater than 10.0%
(5.0% in the case of TCW) or more of the aggregate number of outstanding shares of voting common stock
of the Company and (ii) the subscriber shall not own or control shares of common stock in excess of
24.99% of the total shareholder’s equity of Company;

�  the consummation of the Offering would not result in the subscriber or any of its affiliates being deemed to
have a direct or indirect controlling interest in the Company or the Bank or otherwise require any of them
to register as a savings and loan holding company under the Savings and Loan Holding Company
provisions of the Home Owners’ Loan Act, as amended;

�  there shall not have been any material adverse effect on (i) the business, results of operation or financial condition
of the Company and the Bank taken as a whole; provided that a material adverse effect shall not be deemed to
include the effects, to the extent such effects do not have a disproportionate impact on the Company as compared
to other depository institution holding companies, of (A) any facts, circumstances, events, changes or occurrences
generally affecting businesses and industries in which the Company operates, companies engaged in such
businesses or industries or the economy, or the financial or securities markets and credit markets in the United
States or elsewhere in the world, including effects on such businesses, industries, economy or markets resulting
from any regulatory or political conditions or developments, or any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declared or
undeclared acts of war, terrorism, or work stoppages, (B) changes or proposed changes in generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States or regulatory accounting requirements applicable to depository
institutions and their holding companies generally (or authoritative interpretations thereof), (C) changes or
proposed changes in banking and other laws of general applicability or related policies or interpretations of all
United States governmental or regulatory authorities, or (D) changes in the market price or trading volume of
voting common stock, or (2) a material and adverse effect on the legality, validity or enforceability of the
subscription agreement, or (3) the ability of the Company or a subscriber to consummate timely the private
placement; and

�  since July 27, 2010 there shall have been no grants or awards of Company stock options by the Company and the
Company shall have cancelled or otherwise terminated (or shall, as soon as permitted under applicable law
following the completion of the private placement, cancel or otherwise terminate) all Company stock options and
the consideration paid by the Company in respect of such cancellation and/or termination shall be equal to $3.00
per stock option.

No assurance can be made as to whether all of the conditions to completion of the private placement will be satisfied
or waived by the party entitled to do so.

Termination of a Subscription Agreement

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

32



The Company and each subscriber can jointly agree to terminate a subscription agreement at any time.  In addition to
certain other termination events, either the Company or the subscriber may also terminate a subscription agreement if:
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�  a regulatory or other governmental authority issues a final, non-appealable order or takes any other action
restraining, enjoining or prohibiting the private placement; or

�  the closing of the private placement has not been completed by December 31, 2010, provided that the party seeking
termination shall not have caused the failure to close by this date by breaching its obligations under the applicable
subscription agreement.

The subscription agreements provide for aggregate liquidated damages of $3.0 million payable to the subscribers in
the private placement if the transaction fails to close on or before December 31, 2010 as a result of the Company’s
breach of the subscription agreements. In the event the transaction fails to close on or before December 31, 2010 as a
result of a subscriber’s breach of its subscription agreement, such subscriber must forfeit as liquidated damages
approximately 2.5% of the purchase price for shares of common stock subscribed for by such subscriber.

Description of the Warrants

Pursuant to its subscription agreement, we will issue Warrants to TCW.  In consideration for its consulting services to
the Company preceding the completion of the private placement, we will issue Warrants to COR Advisors.  The
following is a summary of the material terms and provisions of the Warrants.  Copies of the Warrants issued to TCW
and COR Advisors are attached to this document as Annex B and Annex C, respectively, and are incorporated into
this document by reference. Shareholders are urged to read the attached forms of Warrant in their entirety. While the
Company believes this summary covers the material terms and provisions of the Warrants, it may not contain all of
the information that is important to you and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the attached annexes.

As a “key” investor, TCW will be issued Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 240,000 shares of non-voting common
stock at an exercise price of $11.00 per share, which are immediately exercisable for a term of five years after the
completion of the private placement. In consideration for its consulting services to the Company preceding the
completion of the private placement, COR Advisors will be issued Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,560,000
shares of non-voting common stock at an exercise price of $11.00 per share.  COR Advisors’s Warrants will vest in
equal amounts on a quarterly basis over a period of eleven quarters, with each tranche exercisable for five years
following the applicable vesting date. In lieu of non-voting common stock, shares of voting common stock will be
issued upon exercise of the Warrants following the transfer of the Warrants to a third party in a widely dispersed
offering or a transfer to a transferee that would already control more than 50% of the voting securities of the Company
without any transfer from the transferor. In addition, the Warrants held by TCW will be exercisable for voting
common stock in lieu of non-voting common stock at TCW’s election if it then owns less than 4.99% of the
outstanding shares of voting common stock as a result of dilution occurring from additional issuances of voting
common stock subsequent to the private placement.

Subject to certain exceptions, the exercise price of the Warrants will be adjusted upon the occurrence of any of the
following events:

�  stock splits, subdivisions, reclassifications or combinations;

�  certain distributions of shares of a class other than common stock or other property (including cash and ordinary
dividends) to holders of common stock;

�  certain repurchases of common stock; and

�  certain business combinations.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE
APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL 1.
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PROPOSAL 2

APPROVAL OF THE ADJOURNMENT OF THE SPECIAL MEETING,
IF NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE, TO SOLICIT ADDITIONAL PROXIES

If we fail to receive a sufficient number of votes to constitute a quorum to hold the Special Meeting or to approve
Proposal 1, we may propose to adjourn or postpone the Special Meeting, whether or not a quorum is present, to solicit
additional proxies to (i) constitute a quorum for purposes of the Special Meeting or (ii) obtain sufficient votes to
approve Proposal 1. We will not use any discretionary authority granted by the proxies voted against Proposal 1 to
adjourn the Special Meeting to solicit additional votes to approve Proposal 1.

We currently do not intend to propose adjourning or postponing the Special Meeting if there are sufficient votes
represented at the Special Meeting to approve Proposal 1.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE
APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL 2, IF PROPOSED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING.
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PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet tables and pro forma earnings per share tables presented below
have been prepared by management to illustrate the anticipated impact of the private placement. On July 27, 2010, the
Company entered into subscription agreements with select institutional and other accredited investors pursuant to
which, subject to receipt of the Shareholder Approval and satisfaction or waiver of the other conditions to closing, the
subscribers are expected to acquire in a private placement an aggregate of approximately 5,454,545 newly issued
shares of common stock (at a price per share of $11.00) and Warrants to purchase 240,000 shares of our non-voting
common stock (with an exercise price of $11.00 per share). We have also agreed to issue to COR Advisors, in
consideration for its consulting services preceding the completion of the private placement, Warrants to purchase
1,560,000 shares of our non-voting common stock with an exercise price of $11.00 per share.

The pro forma financial information that follows assumes that we will issue:

�  an aggregate of 4,500,000 shares of our voting common stock at a per share price of $11.00;

�  an aggregate of 920,000 shares of our non-voting common stock at a per share price of $11.00; and

�  Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,800,000 shares of non-voting common stock at an exercise price of $11.00.

The pro forma financial information also assumes that we receive net proceeds of approximately $56,150,000 upon
completion of the private placement after the payment of offering expenses of approximately $3,850,000 and that, as
described above, we pay approximately $1,447,000 ($852,000 net of tax), in the aggregate, to cancel our stock options
that are currently outstanding.  The pro forma financial information does not reflect the effect of the proposed TARP
redemption or any other application of the net proceeds.

Balance Sheet

The following tables present the Company's unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet information adjusted for
the pro forma impact of the private placement. The pro forma consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 assume that the Company completed the private placement on those dates. The pro forma balance
sheet adjustments reflect cash received of $60.0 million in the private placement, liabilities for direct costs of the
private placement of $3.9 million and a net increase in stockholders’ equity of $56.2 million.

After giving effect to the private placement on the basis described above, the pro forma number of shares of our
common stock issued and outstanding would be 9,664,184 and 9,664,846 as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009,
comprised of 8,744,184 and 8,744,846 shares of voting common stock and 920,000 and 920,000 shares of non-voting
common stock, respectively, and pro forma book value per share would be equal to $13.81 and $13.92 as of June 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.
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(Dollars in thousands)
June 30, 2010

Actual
Offering

adjustments
June 30, 2010
Pro forma

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 7,203 $ 60,000(1) $ 67,203
Federal funds sold 29,865 - 29,865
Interest-bearing deposits 3,036 - 3,036

Total cash and cash equivalents 40,104 60,000 100,104
Securities available-for-sale 70,452 - 70,452
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 9,016 - 9,016
Loans receivable, net of allowance of $17,697 at June 30, 2010 707,754 - 707,754
Accrued interest receivable 3,451 - 3,451
Real estate owned, net 8,342 - 8,342
Premises and equipment, net 4,253 - 4,253
Bank owned life insurance investment 18,040 - 18,040
Prepaid FDIC assessment 4,266 - 4,266
Other assets 15,813 - 15,813

Total assets $ 881,491 $ 60,000 $ 941,491

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits

Noninterest-bearing $ 15,325 $ - $ 15,325
Interest-bearing 667,080 - 667,080
Total deposits 682,405 - 682,405

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 100,000 - 100,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,673 3,850(2) 6,523

Total liabilities 785,078 3,850 788,928

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, $1,000 per share
liquidation
 preference, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 19,300 shares issued and
 outstanding at June 30, 2010 19,113 - 19,113
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 20,000,000 shares
 authorized; 5,445,000 shares issued at June 30, 2010 (actual) and
 10,865,000 shares issued at June 30, 2010 (pro forma ) 54 45(3) 99
Additional paid-in capital – Warrants - 3,492(4) 4,410
Additional paid-in capital 67,887 51,695 119,582
Retained earnings 33,015 - 33,015
Treasury stock, at cost (June 30, 2010 – 1,200,816 shares) (25,796) - (25,796)
Unearned employee stock ownership plan shares
(June 30, 2010 – 63,480 shares) (761) - (761)

Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,901 - 2,901

Total shareholders' equity 96,413 56,150 152,563

Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $ 881,491 $ 56,150 $ 937,641
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__________________
(1) Represents increase in cash and cash equivalents from gross proceeds of private placement.
(2) Represents estimate of the direct costs of the private placement.
(3) Represents net increase in common stock and additional paid-in capital.
(4) Represents value assigned to the Warrants.
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(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2009
Actual

Offering
adjustments

December 31,
2009

Pro forma
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 7,132 $ 60,000(1) $ 67,203
Federal funds sold 23,580 - 23,580
Interest-bearing deposits 3,884 - 3,884

Total cash and cash equivalents 34,596 60,000 94,596
Securities available-for-sale 52,304 - 52,304
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 9,364 - 9,364
Loans receivable, net of allowance of $13,079 at
 December 31, 2009 748,303 - 748,303
Accrued interest receivable 3,936 - 3,936
Real estate owned, net 5,680 - 5,680
Premises and equipment, net 4,294 - 4,294
Bank owned life insurance investment 17,932 - 17,932
Prepaid FDIC assessment 5,013 - 5,013
Other assets 12,499 - 12,499

Total assets $ 893,921 $ 60,000 $ 953,921

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits

Noninterest-bearing $ 14,021 $ - $ 14,021
Interest-bearing 644,411 - 644,411
Total deposits 658,432 - 658,432

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 135,000 - 135,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,004 3,850(2) 6,854

Total liabilities 796,436 3,850 800,286

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, $1,000 per share
 liquidation preference, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 19,300
 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 19,094 - 19,094
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 20,000,000 shares
 authorized; 5,445,000 shares issued at December 31, 2009 (actual)
and 10,865,000 shares issued at December 31, 2009 (pro forma) 54 45(3) 99
Additional paid-in capital – Warrants - 3,492(4) 4,410
Additional paid-in capital 67,958 51,695 119,653
Retained earnings 35,515 - 35,515
Treasury stock, at cost (December 31, 2009 – 1,200,154 shares) (25,788) - (25,788)
Unearned employee stock ownership plan shares (December 31,
 2009 – 84,640 shares) (1,015) - (1,015)

Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,667 - 1,667

Total shareholders' equity $ 97,485 56,150 153,635
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Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $ 893,921 $ 56,150 $ 950,071

__________________
(1) Represents increase in cash and cash equivalents from gross proceeds of private

placement.
(2) Represents estimate of the direct costs of the private placement.
(3) Represents net increase in common stock and additional paid-in capital.
(4) Represents value assigned to the Warrants.
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Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the Company's unaudited pro forma earnings per share adjusted for the pro forma impact
of the private placement for the periods shown. The pro forma consolidated earnings per share calculations assume no
material pro forma impacts to net income (loss) for the periods shown. Pro forma earnings per share assumes the
Company completed the private placement on the first date of the applicable period (January 1, 2010 in the case of the
six months ended June 30, 2010 and January 1, 2009 in the case of the year ended December 31, 2009).  The pro
forma weighted average diluted shares impact of the Warrants have been excluded from the pro forma weighted
average diluted shares calculation due to the anti-dilutive impact of the Warrants in the calculation.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share
amounts)

Actual
Six months
ended

 June 30, 2010
Offering

adjustments

Pro forma
Six months
ended

June 30, 2010
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (1,893) $ (852) $ (2,745)
Less: Dividends on preferred stock $ (481) $ - $ (481)
Less: Imputed Dividends $ (20) $ - $ (20)
Net income/(loss) available to common
shareholders $ (2,394) $ (852) $ (3,246)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.58) $ - $ (0.37)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (2,394) $ - $ (3,246)
Weighted average common shares 4,147,549 - 8,708,056
Weighted average diluted shares 4,147,549 - 8,708,056

Actual
Year ended
December 31,

2009
Offering

adjustments

Pro forma
Year ended
December 31,

2009
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (999) $ (852) $ (1,851)
Less: Dividends on preferred stock $ (964) $ - $ (964)
Less: Imputed Dividends $ (39) $ - $ (39)
Net income/(loss) available to common
shareholders $ (2,002) $ (852) $ (2,854)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.48) $ - $ (0.30)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (2,002) $ - $ (2,854)
Weighted average common shares 4,158,044 - 9,578,044
Weighted average diluted shares 4,158,044 - 9,578,044
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STOCK OWNERSHIP

Stock Ownership of Significant Shareholders, Directors and Executive Officers

The following table shows, as of ________, 2010, the beneficial ownership of the Company's common stock by:

�  any persons or entities known by management to beneficially own more than five percent of the outstanding shares
of Company common stock;

�  each director of the Company;

�  each executive officer of the Company and the Bank who was named in the "Summary Compensation Table" in the
Company’s last annual meeting proxy statement (referred to below as the “Named Executive Officers”); and

�  all of the executive officers and directors of the Company and the Bank as a group.

The address of each of the beneficial owners, except where otherwise indicated, is the same address as the Company's.
As of _____, 2010, there were ________ shares of Company common stock issued and outstanding.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC. In computing the number of shares
beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to
outstanding options held by that person that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days after _______,
2010 are deemed outstanding. Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.
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Name of Beneficial Owner
Beneficial
Ownership

Percent of
Common
Stock

Outstanding

Significant Shareholders

Investors of America Limited Partnership
First Capital America, Inc.
James F. Dierberg, Trustee of the James F. Dierberg Living Trust
James F. Dierberg II
135 North Meramec
Clayton, Missouri 63105(1)

433,680 10.0 %

First Manhattan Co.
191 Peachtree Street, N.E., Suite 3600
Atlanta, Georgia  30303(2)

228,293 5.4 %

Seymour Holtzman
Evelyn Holtzman
Jewelcor Management, Inc.
S.H. Holdings, Inc.
Jewelcor Inc.
Holtzman Opportunity Fund, L.P.
SH Independence LLC
Holtzman Financial Advisors, LLC
Jewelcor Investments, LLC
c/o Jewelcor Companies
100 N. Wilkes Barre Blvd.
Wilkes Barre, PA  18702(3)

303,493 7.2 %

First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc. 401(k) Employee Stock Ownership Plan
610 Bay Boulevard
Chula Vista, CA   91910(4)

472,969 10.7 %

Directors and Named Executive Officers(5)

Alvin L. Majors, Chairman of the Board 100,815 2.4 %

Hans R. Ganz, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 254,456 5.8 %

Francis P. Burke, Director 78.696 1.8 %

Kenneth W. Scholz, Director 88,997 2.1 %

Donald A. Whitacre, Director 70,050 1.6 %

James P. Sheehy, Executive Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer 88.971 2.1 %
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Melanie M. Yaptangco, Executive Vice President, Lending 115,881 2.7 %

Directors and executive officers of First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc.
 as a group (11 persons)(6) 942,966 20.3 %

__________________
(1) As reported by Investors of America Limited Partnership, First Capital America, Inc., James F. Dierberg,

Trustee, and James F. Dierberg II in an amendment to Schedule 13D dated February 11, 2010. Investors of
America Limited Partnership reported sole voting and investment power over 122,000 shares. First Capital
America, Inc. reported sole voting and investment power over 268,000 shares. James F. Dierberg, Trustee,
reported sole voting and investment power over 43,680 shares and James F. Dierberg II reported sole voting and
investment power over 0 shares.
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(2)As reported by First Manhattan Co. in an amended Schedule 13G dated February 11, 2010. First Manhattan Co.
reported sole voting power over 202,103 shares, shared voting power over 0 shares, sole investment power over
202,103 shares and shared investment power over 26,190 shares.

(3)The above information regarding beneficial ownership by Seymour Holtzman, Evelyn Holtzman, Jewelcor
Management, Inc., S.H. Holdings, Inc. and Jewelcor Inc. was reported by them in an amendment to Schedule 13D
dated February 2, 2007. Seymour Holtzman reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 303,493 shares
and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares. Evelyn Holtzman reported sole voting and sole
dispositive power over 0 shares and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares. Jewelcor
Management, Inc. reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 274,793 shares and shared voting and
shared dispositive power over 0 shares. S.H. Holdings, Inc. reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 0
shares and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares. Jewelcor Inc. reported sole voting and sole
dispositive power over 0 shares and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares. Holtzman
Opportunity Fund, L.P. reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 28,700 shares and shared voting and
shared dispositive power over 0 shares. SH Independence, LLC reported sole voting and sole dispositive power
over 28,700 shares and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares. Holtzman Financial Advisors,
LLC reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 28,700 shares and shared voting and shared dispositive
power over 0 shares. Jewelcor Investments, LLC reported sole voting and sole dispositive power over 28,700
shares and shared voting and shared dispositive power over 0 shares.

(4)The amount reported represents shares held by the 401(k) employee stock ownership plan ("KSOP"), 280,091 of
which have been allocated to the accounts of participants under the employee stock ownership portion of the
KSOP.

(5)Includes shares held directly, as well as shares held jointly with certain family members, shares held in retirement
accounts, held in a fiduciary capacity, held by certain of the individual's or group members' families, or held by
trusts of which the individual or group member is a trustee or substantial beneficiary, with respect to which shares
the individual or group member may be deemed to have sole or shared voting and/or investment powers. Included
in the shares beneficially owned by the listed individuals are currently exercisable options to purchase shares of
First PacTrust Bancorp common stock as follows:

Mr. Majors -
26,450

Mr. Scholz - 26,450Mr. Sheehy - 41,200

Mr. Ganz -
132,250

Ms. Yaptangco -
45,200

Mr. Burke -
26,450

Mr. Whitacre -
26,450

(6)This amount includes 400,546 shares of common stock subject to currently exercisable options held by directors
and executive officers.

21

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

46



OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will be presented at the Special Meeting. If any other matter
properly comes before the shareholders for a vote at the Special Meeting, the Board of Directors, as holder of your
proxy, will vote your shares in accordance with its best judgment.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Representatives of Crowe Horwath LLP, our independent registered public accounting for the current year and for the
year ended December 31, 2009, are not expected to attend the Special Meeting.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Proxy Solicitation Costs

The Company will pay the costs of soliciting proxies. The Company will reimburse brokerage firms and other
custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending proxy materials to the
beneficial owners of the Company's common stock. In addition to solicitation by mail, directors, officers and
employees of the Company may solicit proxies personally or by facsimile, telegraph or telephone, without additional
compensation.

Date for Submission of Shareholder Proposals for Our Annual Meeting for Year Ended December 31, 2010

If you intend to present a shareholder proposal at next year's annual meeting, your proposal must be received by the
Company at its executive offices, located at 610 Bay Boulevard, Chula Vista, California  91910, no later
than November 22, 2010 to be eligible for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement and form of proxy for that
meeting. Your proposal will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and the Company's charter and bylaws and Maryland law.

To be considered for presentation at next year's annual meeting, but not for inclusion in the Company's proxy
statement and form of proxy for that meeting, shareholder proposals must be received by the Company no later than
January 22, 2011 and no earlier than December 23, 2010. If, however, the date of the next annual meeting is before
March 24, 2011 or after June 22, 2011, proposals must instead be received by the Company no earlier than the 120th
day prior to the date of the next annual meeting and no later than the 90th day before the meeting or the tenth day after
the day on which notice of the date of the meeting is mailed or public announcement of the date of the meeting is first
made.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxies and information statements and other information
regarding us and other issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Our proxy statements, annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments
to those reports, are available free of charge through the SEC's website. Shareholders may also read and copy
materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549.
Shareholders may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330.
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INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" into this document documents we file with the SEC. This means that
we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by
reference is considered to be a part of this document. We incorporate by reference Items 7, 7A, 8 and 9 from the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 and Items 1, 2 and 3 of Part I
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010 and any other items in
that Quarterly Report expressly updating the above referenced items from our Annual Report on Form 10-K.  Copies
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 accompany this document.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chula Vista, California HANS R. GANZ
_______, 2010 President and Chief Executive Officer
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ANNEX A

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.
COMMON STOCK

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (this “Subscription Agreement”) dated as of _______, 2010 is made by and
among the undersigned subscriber or subscribers (the “Subscriber”), and First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland
corporation (the “Company”) that owns all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Pacific Trust Bank, a
federally-chartered stock  savings association (the “Bank”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, in connection with a contemplated recapitalization of the Company (the “Transaction”) the Company
intends to conduct a private placement (the “Offering”) of newly issued shares of its common stock (as further described
herein) to certain accredited investors;

WHEREAS, in order permit Subscriber and other subscribers in the Offering to structure their respective investments
in the Company to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements and policies applicable to such Subscriber, the
board of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”) intends to reclassify, pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, as amended, such number of  shares of its common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Voting
Common Stock”) into a new class of common stock as necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement (the “Class
B Non-Voting Common Stock” and, with the Voting Common Stock, the “Common Stock”), such Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock to possess identical rights, preferences and privileges as the Voting Common Stock, except with
respect to voting rights and conversion;

WHEREAS, the Company has engaged Hovde Securities, LLC as placement agent (the “Placement Agent”) (and the
Placement Agent has engaged Cappello Capital Corp. to assist it in its role as Placement Agent) in the Offering; and

WHEREAS, Subscriber wishes to purchase, and the Company wishes to sell, upon the terms and conditions stated in
this Agreement, shares of Voting Common Stock (the “Voting Shares”) and Class B Non-Voting Common Stock (the
“Class B Shares”) in the aggregate numbers indicated below such Subscriber’s name on the signature page of this
agreement (and subject to Section 1 hereof); and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in this
Agreement, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

A-1
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ARTICLE I

PURCHASE AND SALE OF SECURITIES

1.1           Sale of Securities. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof and on the basis of the representations and
warranties hereinafter set forth, the Company hereby agrees to issue and sell to the Subscriber and the Subscriber
agrees to purchase from the Company, upon Closing (as such term is defined in Section 3 of this Article I), the
Common Stock as described herein for the for an aggregate purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) all as set forth by the
Subscriber on the signature page hereto. To the extent that the gross proceeds from the Offering are less than
$60,000,000.00, or that the Company has received executed counterparts to subscription agreements representing
subscriptions from subscribers in the Offering to purchase shares of the Common Stock having an aggregate purchase
price greater than $60,000,000.00, the actual number of shares of Common Stock purchased and received by the
Subscriber may be different from the number subscribed for and, in such event, the Company may amend this
Agreement to reflect the actual number so purchased and received by the Subscriber. This Offering is only being made
to the Subscriber on the condition that the Subscriber qualifies as an “accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)). To the extent that, as of and giving effect to the
consummation of the Offering on the terms described herein, Subscriber would own, control or have the power to vote
shares of Voting Stock (as such term is defined under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (and any
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the “BHC Act”), the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978, as amended
(and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the “CIBC Act”), or the Home Owners Loan Act, as amended
(and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, “HOLA”)) equal to or more than 5.0% of the aggregate number
of outstanding shares of Voting Stock (the “Voting Ownership Limit”), Subscriber’s Subscription for Voting Shares in
excess of the Voting Ownership Limit, unless otherwise instructed by Subscriber, shall be deemed to be, automatically
and without further action on the part of Subscriber or the Company, a Subscription for Class B Shares in an amount
equal to such excess.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall the
Company be obligated to issue and sell to Subscriber any shares of Common Stock to the extent that, as of and giving
effect to the issuance and sale of such shares of Common Stock and the issuance of the shares of Common Stock to all
other investors in the Offering, Subscriber would own or control 10.0% or more of the Company’s total stockholder’s
equity.  Subscriber understands that, subject only to the provisions of Articles 7 and 8 of this Agreement, Subscriber
(i) is not entitled to cancel, terminate or revoke this Agreement or any of the agreements, representations or warranties
of Subscriber hereunder, and (ii) acknowledges that this subscription is irrevocable. The purchase of the Common
Stock is referred to in this Agreement as the “Purchase.”

1.2           Escrow of Deposit Pending Closing; Disposition of Deposit Upon Closing. The Subscriber has provided or
immediately following the execution of this Agreement will provide to the Company by wire transfer immediately
available funds representing ten percent (10%) of the aggregate Purchase Price (the “Deposit”). The Deposit, when
received by the Company, shall be held by the Company in escrow in a segregated deposit account maintained by an
independent third-party escrow agent to be designated by the Company (the “Escrow Account”), which shall bear
interest from the date of deposit until the date of withdrawal at the Escrow Agent’s standard statement account savings
rate as in effect from time to time. At the Closing, upon receipt from Subscriber of the Authorization pursuant to
Section 1.3(a), the Company shall direct the Escrow Agent to release the Deposit and any allocable interest earned
thereon from the Escrow Account to the Company. Except as otherwise provided in Sections 8.1(c) of this Agreement,
if this Agreement is terminated without Closing hereunder, the Company shall repay the Deposit to the Subscriber
with all interest earned thereon.

1.3           Closing. Subject to receipt of any required regulatory approvals and the other conditions to closing set forth
in Article VII of this Agreement, the closing of the transactions contemplated hereunder (the “Closing”) shall occur at
such date and place as shall be designated by the Company by reasonable prior written notice to the Subscriber (the
“Closing Date”). Closing may be conditioned upon Subscriber’s receipt of regulatory approvals as more fully set forth in

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

51



this Agreement. At the Closing:
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(a)  
Subscriber shall have delivered an amount equal to the Purchase Price but without duplication of the Deposit
withdrawn from the Escrow Account by the Company upon the Closing, in immediately available United States
funds, to an account or accounts designated in writing by the Company; provided that such delivery shall
constitute Subscriber’s agreement and acknowledgement that all of the conditions specified in Section 7.2 hereof
shall have been satisfied or waived by Subscriber and shall constitute authorization to the Company to direct the
Escrow Agent to release the Deposit as provided in Section 1.2 hereof (the “Authorization”);

(b)  
The Company shall deliver one or more Voting Common Stock certificates and, where applicable, Class B
Non-Voting Common Stock certificates, as the case may be, representing the Common Stock subscribed for by
Subscriber; and

(c)  
The representations and warranties of the Company and Subscriber set forth in this Agreement shall be true and
correct as though made on and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent that failure of such representations
and warranties to be so true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, does not and would not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect (as defined below).

1.4           Acceptance. This Agreement shall be effective immediately upon acceptance by the Company of the
Subscriber’s fully completed and executed version of the Investor Questionnaire attached hereto as Exhibit B (the
“Investor Questionnaire”) and executed counterpart of this Agreement and shall thereupon be binding upon the
Company and thereupon Subscriber’s firm offer herein shall be deemed accepted. Such acceptance by the Company
shall be evidenced only by counter-execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, and the Company shall
have no obligation hereunder until the Company shall have executed and delivered to the Subscriber an executed
counterpart of this Agreement.

1.5           Termination.  Other than pursuant to Article VIII hereof, this Agreement may not be terminated by the
Subscriber at any time following the Subscriber’s delivery of an executed counterpart of this Agreement to the
Company. Subscriber understands that, subject only to the provisions of Articles VII and VIII of this Agreement,
Subscriber (i) is not entitled to cancel, terminate or revoke this Agreement or any of the agreements, representations or
warranties of Subscriber hereunder, and (ii) acknowledges that this subscription is irrevocable.

ARTICLE II

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

2.1           Disclosure.

(a)           “Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (1) the business, results of operation or financial
condition of the Company and the Bank taken as a whole; provided that Material Adverse Effect shall not be deemed
to include the effects, to the extent such effects do not have a disproportionate impact on the Company as compared to
other depository institution holding companies, of (A) any facts, circumstances, events, changes or occurrences
generally affecting businesses and industries in which the Company operates, companies engaged in such businesses
or industries or the economy, or the financial or securities markets and credit markets in the United States or
elsewhere in the world, including effects on such businesses, industries, economy or markets resulting from any
regulatory or political conditions or developments, or any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declared or undeclared
acts of war, terrorism, or work stoppages, (B) changes or proposed changes in generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (“GAAP”) or regulatory accounting requirements applicable to depository institutions and
their holding companies generally (or authoritative interpretations thereof), (C) changes or proposed changes in
banking and other laws of general applicability or related policies or interpretations of all United States governmental
or regulatory authorities (collectively, “Governmental Entities”), or (D) changes in the market price or trading volume of
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Common Stock (it being understood and agreed that the exception set forth in this clause (D) does not apply to the
underlying reason giving rise to or contributing to any such change), or (2) a material and adverse effect on the
legality, validity or enforceability of this Subscription Agreement, or (3) the ability of the Company or a Subscriber to
consummate timely the Purchase and the other transactions contemplated by this Subscription Agreement and any
other documents, agreements and instruments delivered in connection herewith, (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”).
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(b)           “Previously Disclosed” information means (1) information contained in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, or its other reports and forms filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under Sections 13(a), 14(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) on or after January 1, 2010 (the “SEC Reports”) and prior to the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, and if applicable, (2) information provided pursuant to this Agreement or any confidentiality agreement
between the Company and the Subscriber.

(c)           Each party acknowledges that it is not relying upon any representation or warranty not set forth in the
Transaction Documents. The Subscriber is aware that it will bear the economic risk of an investment in the Common
Stock.

                2.2           Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as Previously Disclosed, the Company
represents and warrants to the Subscriber that as of the date hereof (or such other date specified herein):

(a)           Organization, Authority and Significant Subsidiary. The Company has been duly incorporated and is validly
existing as a corporation in good standing under the laws of the State of Maryland, with corporate power and authority
to own its properties and conduct its business in all material respects as currently conducted, and, except as has not
had or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, has been duly qualified as a foreign
corporation for the transaction of business and is in good standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which it
owns or leases properties or conducts any business so as to require such qualification; and the Bank, the only
subsidiary  of the Company has been duly organized as a federally chartered stock savings institution, and its deposit
accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”).

(b)           Authorization of Common Stock.  The Common Stock to be issued has been duly authorized for issuance by
the Company and, when duly issued and delivered by the Company against payment therefor in accordance with this
Agreement, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and the issuance thereof will not be subject
to any preemptive or other similar rights.

(c)           Company Stock Options.   As of the date of this Agreement, 482,396 shares of  Common Stock are subject
to outstanding options to acquire shares of Common Stock from the Company (such options, together with any similar
options granted after the date hereof, “Company Stock Options”).
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(d)           Securities Laws. Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties made by Subscriber contained
herein and similar representations by the other investors in the Offering, the offer and sale of the Common Stock to
Subscriber in the manner contemplated by this Agreement, are exempt from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act and any other applicable laws.

(e)           Authorization of this Agreement.  This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Company, and assuming due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Subscriber, this
Agreement will constitute a valid, legal and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent that enforceability may be limited by (a) bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to
creditors’ rights generally or the rights of creditors of financial institutions, the accounts of whose subsidiaries are
insured by the FDIC and (b) general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a
proceeding at law or in equity) (collectively, the “Enforceability Exceptions”).

(f)            No Material Adverse Effect. Since December 31, 2009, no fact, circumstance, event, change, occurrence,
condition or development has occurred that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(g)           Reports.

(1)           Since December 31, 2009, the Company has timely filed all SEC Reports and, as of their respective filing
dates, such reports did not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances in which they were made not
misleading.

    (2)           Since December 31, 2009, the Company and the Bank have filed all reports, registrations and statements,
together with any required amendments thereto, that was required to be filed with the Office of Thrift Supervision (the
“OTS”) and any other applicable federal or state banking authorities, except where the failure to file any such report,
registration or statement, individually or in the aggregate, has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect. As of their respective dates, each of the foregoing reports complied with all applicable rules
and regulations promulgated by the OTS and any other applicable foreign, federal or state securities or banking
authorities, as the case may be, except for any failures that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(h)           No General Solicitation or General Advertising. Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf
has engaged or will engage in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of
Regulation D under the Securities Act) in connection with any offer or sale of the Common Stock.

(i)            Non-contravention.  The Company is not in violation of (i) any term of its Articles of Incorporation, as
amended, or its Amended and Restated Bylaws, (ii) any agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it
or any of its properties or assets is bound; or (iii) of any applicable law, ordinance, rule or regulation or any applicable
order, judgment or decree of any court or governmental authority, except, in the case of (ii) or (iii) above, for any
violations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.

(j)            Brokers.  Except as Previously Disclosed there are no contracts, agreements or understandings between the
Company and any person that would give rise to a valid claim against the Company for a brokerage commission,
finder’s fee or other like payment as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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(k)           No Other Agreements.  Except as Previously Disclosed or with respect to the investors designated on
Schedule I hereto, none of the terms of subscription in the Offering offered to another investor therein is more
favorable than any provision of this Agreement, and no such other investor has been offered any rights under any “side
letter” which have not also been offered to Subscriber.

            2.3           Representations And Warranties Of The Subscriber. The Subscriber hereby represents and warrants
to the Company that as of the date hereof (and, as applicable, agrees):

(a)           The Subscriber understands and acknowledges that (i) the offering and sale of the Common Stock is
intended to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act, (ii) the Common Stock has not been registered under
the Securities Act,  and (iii) the Company has represented to the Subscriber that the Common Stock has been offered
and sold by the Company in reliance upon the foregoing exemption from registration as well as corresponding
exemptions from registration under any applicable state securities laws and that the reliance on such exemptions is
predicated upon the accuracy of Subscriber’s representations and warranties in this Agreement and the Investor
Questionnaire.  Subscriber further understands that the shares of Common Stock to be acquired hereunder are
characterized as “restricted securities” under the federal securities laws inasmuch as they are being acquired from the
Company in a transaction not involving a public offering and that under such laws and applicable regulations such
securities may be resold without registration under the Securities Act only in certain limited circumstances and in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the legends described below.  In this connection, Subscriber
represents that Subscriber is familiar with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144, as presently in effect, and
understands the resale limitations imposed thereby and by the Securities Act.

(b)           Subscriber understands and acknowledges that the certificates evidencing the Common Stock to be
purchased hereunder will bear substantially the following legend

THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR
INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THE SALE OR DISTRIBUTION
THEREOF.  NO SUCH TRANSFER MAY BE AFFECTED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT RELATED THERETO OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IN A FORM SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED.

(c)           The Subscriber is purchasing the Common Stock for its own account, for investment, and not with a view to,
or for offer or sale in connection with, any distribution thereof in violation of the Securities Act or other applicable
securities laws, subject to any requirement of law that the disposition of its property be at all times within its control
and subject to its ability to resell such Common Stock pursuant to an exemption from registration available under the
Securities Act or any other applicable securities law.

(d)           The Subscriber represents and warrants that neither the Company nor the Placement Agent is acting as a
fiduciary or financial or investment adviser for the Subscriber.
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(e)          The Subscriber represents and warrants that it is not relying (for purposes of making any investment decision
or otherwise) upon any advice, counsel or representations (whether written or oral) of the Company, the Placement
Agent or their respective legal counsel, advisors and agents and no independent counsel has been retained to represent
Subscriber or any other Subscriber.

(f)            The Subscriber acknowledges that it has conducted a review and analysis of the business, assets, condition,
operations and prospects of the Company, together with the representations and warranties of the Company set forth
in this Agreement that the Subscriber considers sufficient for purposes of the Purchase.  The Subscriber represents and
warrants that (i) it has consulted with its own legal, regulatory, tax, business, investment, financial and accounting
advisers in connection herewith to the extent it has deemed necessary, (ii) it has had a reasonable opportunity to ask
questions of and receive answers from officers of the Company concerning the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations and the purchase of the Common Stock, and any such questions have been answered to its
satisfaction, (iii) it has had the opportunity to review all publicly available records and filings concerning the
Company and the Bank and it has carefully reviewed such records and filings that it considers relevant to making an
investment decision, and (iv) it has made its own investment decisions based upon its own judgment, due diligence
and advice from such advisers as it has deemed necessary. The Subscriber further represents and warrants that, except
for the Company’s management, no person has been authorized by the Company to make any representations or
warranties concerning the Company, including as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this
Agreement or any Transaction Document.

(g)           The Subscriber represents and warrants that it is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501
under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act, and that:

(1)      the information contained in the Investor Questionnaire is complete, accurate, and true in all respects, and
agrees to notify and supply corrective information promptly to the Company if any such information becomes
inaccurate or incomplete.

(2)      the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that it is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Common Stock.

(3)      the Subscriber understands that neither the SEC, OTS, FDIC nor any securities administrator of any state has
made any finding or determination relating to the fairness of this investment or recommended or endorsed, or will
recommend or endorse, the offering of the securities purchased hereby.

(4)      the Subscriber acknowledges that no general solicitation or general advertising (including communications
published in any newspaper, magazine or other broadcast) has been received by it and that no public solicitation or
advertisement with respect to the offering of the securities purchased hereby has been made to it.

(5)      no person has made any direct or indirect representation or warranty of any kind to the Subscriber with respect
to the economic return which may accrue to the Subscriber.

(6)      the Subscriber is not a participant-directed employee plan, such as a 401(k) plan, or any other type of plan
referred to in paragraph (a)(1)(i)(D) or (a)(1)(i)(E) of Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act, or a trust fund
referred to in paragraph (a)(1)(i)(F) of Rule 144A that holds the assets of such a plan, unless investment decisions
with respect to the plan are made solely by the fiduciary, trustee or sponsor of such plan.
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(7)      In connection with the purchase of the Common Stock, Subscriber meets all suitability standards imposed on
him or her by any applicable state securities or “blue sky” laws.

(h)           The Subscriber represents and warrants that on each day from the date on which it acquires any Common
Stock through and including the date on which it disposes of all such interests, either (i) it is not (a) an “employee
benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(3) of the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended (“ERISA”)) which is subject to the provisions of Part 4 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA, or any entity whose
underlying assets include the assets of any such plan (an “ERISA Plan”), (b) any other “plan” (as defined in
Section 4975(e)(1) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) which is subject to
the provisions of Section 4975 of the Code or any entity whose underlying assets include the assets of any such plan (a
“Plan”), (c) an entity whose underlying assets include the assets of any such ERISA Plan or other Plan by reason of
Department of Labor regulation section 2510.3-101 or otherwise, or (d) a governmental or church plan that is subject
to any federal, state or local law which is substantially similar to the provisions of Section 406 of ERISA or
Section 4975 of the Code (a “Similar Law”); or (ii) the purchase, holding and disposition of any such Common Stock by
it will satisfy the requirements for exemptive relief under Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption (“PTCE”) 84-14,
PTCE 90-1, PTCE 91-38, PTCE 95-60, PTCE 96-23 or a similar exemption, or, in the case of a plan subject to a
Similar Law, will not result in a non-exempt violation of such Similar Law.

(i)            The Subscriber represents and warrants that the execution, delivery, and performance by the Subscriber of
this Agreement are within the powers of the Subscriber, have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part
of the Subscriber, and will not constitute or result in a breach or default under, or conflict with, any order, ruling or
regulation of any court or other tribunal or of any governmental commission or agency, or any agreement or other
undertaking, to which the Subscriber is a party or by which the Subscriber is bound; and, if the Subscriber is not an
individual, will not violate any provision of the charter documents, bylaws, indenture of trust, or partnership
agreement, as applicable, of the Subscriber. The signatures on the Agreement are genuine, and the signatory, if the
Subscriber is an individual, has legal competence and capacity to execute the same, or, if the Subscriber is not an
individual, the signatory has been duly authorized to execute the same; and the Agreement constitutes the legal, valid
and binding obligations of the Subscriber, enforceable in accordance with its terms (subject to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles
of equity (whether applied in a proceeding in equity or at law)).  To the Subscriber’s Knowledge no notice to, filing
with, exemption or review by, or authorization, consent or approval of, any Governmental Entity is required to be
made or obtained by the Subscriber in connection with the consummation by the Subscriber of the Purchase and the
other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.

(j)            Except as set forth on Schedule II hereto, Subscriber hold no shares of Common Stock as of the date
hereof.  The Subscriber certifies that, after giving effect to the Purchase, as of the date hereof, the Subscriber and all of
its affiliates on an aggregate basis will not beneficially own, control or have the power to vote 5.0% or more of the
outstanding Common Stock.  The Subscriber does not have any agreement, arrangement or understanding with any
person (other than the Company) to acquire, dispose of or vote any securities of the Company.

(k)           The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the Offering involves securities for which only a limited
trading market exists, thereby requiring any investment to be maintained for an indefinite period of time. The purchase
of the Common Stock involves risks which the Subscriber has evaluated, and the Subscriber is able to bear the
substantial economic risk of the investment for an indefinite period of time, has no need for liquidity in such
investment and can afford a complete loss of such investment. The Subscriber’s overall commitment to investments
that are not readily marketable is not, and its acquisition of the Common Stock will not cause such overall
commitment to become, disproportionate to its net worth and the Subscriber has adequate means of providing for its
current needs and contingencies.
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(l)            The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that once funds are transferred in payment of the Purchase Price
and the other conditions to Closing are satisfied or, if waivable, waived by the Company or the Subscriber, as
applicable, the Company may schedule Closing in its sole discretion and such will be immediately released to the
Company upon completion of Closing.

(m)          The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that it never has been represented, guaranteed or warranted by the
Company, any of the officers, directors, stockholders, partners, employees or agents of the Company, or any other
persons, whether expressly or by implication, that: (a) the Company or the Subscriber will realize any given
percentage of profits and/or amount or type of consideration, profit or loss as a result of the Company’s activities or the
Subscriber’s investment in the Company; or (b) the past performance or experience of the management of the
Company, or of any other person, will in any way indicate the predictable results of the ownership of the Common
Stock or of the Company’s activities.

(n)          The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that it has received the Transaction Documents, has read the
Transaction Documents carefully, is fully familiar with and understands the contents of the Transaction Documents
and has not relied on any representation or warranty in connection with the Offering other than those contained in the
Transaction Documents and this Agreement.

(o)          The Subscriber represents and warrants that it has been given access to information regarding the Company
(including the opportunity to meet with officers of the Company) and have utilized such access to its satisfaction for
the purpose of obtaining such information concerning the Company and the Common Stock as the Subscriber has
deemed necessary to make an investment decision.

(p)          The Subscriber acknowledges, represents and warrants that Subscriber has been informed of the FDIC Final
Statement of Policy on Qualifications for Failed Bank Acquisitions (the “Statement”) and Subscriber has been advised
to, and has had the opportunity to, review and understand the Statement and to determine and evaluate its prospective
effect on the Purchase.  Subscriber understands and acknowledges the terms of the Statement, including the possible
restrictions on transfer referred to in Article IV, below, and the other restrictions and limitations set forth
therein.  Subscriber represents and warrants that Subscriber is purchasing the Common Stock subject to the effect of
the Statement as it may be interpreted and applied to the Common Stock after the date of purchase and to cooperate
with the Company in connection with providing such information and undertakings as may be required in order to
comply with any requirements imposed.

(q)           Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that any dividends or other distributions paid to Subscriber by the
Company will be paid to, and any contributions made by it to the Company will be made from, an account in
Subscriber’s name unless the Company, in its sole discretion, agrees otherwise.

(r)           Subscriber agrees to provide any information requested by the Company which the Company reasonably
believes will enable the Company to (i) comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including without
limitation any anti-money laundering and any other laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Company or to any
investment held or proposed to be held by the Company, and (ii) determine whether or not Subscriber is, or will be as
of Closing, an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D, promulgated under the Securities Act.
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(s)           Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that: (i) neither the Company nor the Placement Agent has provided
legal or tax advice or acted as or is an agent or employee of or has advised Subscriber in connection with the
investment in the Company by Subscriber; (ii) no federal, state, local or foreign agency has passed upon the Common
Stock or made any finding or determination as to the fairness of this investment and (iii) the Common Stock is not a
savings account, deposit or other obligation of a depository institution and is not insured by the FDIC or any other
Governmental Entity (as defined herein).

(t)           SUBSCRIBER SHOULD CHECK THE OFFICE OF FOREIGN ASSETS CONTROL WEBSITE AT
WWW.TREAS.GOV/OFAC BEFORE MAKING THE FOLLOWING REPRESENTATIONS:

(i)           Subscriber understands that federal regulations and executive orders administered by the United States
Department of the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) prohibit, among other things, the engagement
in transactions with, and the provision of services to, certain foreign countries, territories, entities and individuals.

(ii)           Subscriber represents that no portion of the Purchase Price is, or will be, directly or indirectly derived from
activities that contravene federal, state or international laws and regulations, including anti-money laundering laws
and regulations. Federal regulations and Executive Orders administered by OFAC prohibit, among other things, the
engagement in transactions with, and the provision of services to, certain foreign countries, territories, entities and
individuals.  The lists of OFAC prohibited countries, territories, persons and entities can be found on the OFAC
website at www.treas.gov/ofac.  In addition, the programs administered by OFAC (the “OFAC Programs”) prohibit
dealing with individuals1 or entities in certain countries regardless of whether such individuals or entities appear on
the OFAC lists.

(iii)           To the best of Subscriber’s knowledge, none of: (1) Subscriber; (2) any person controlling or controlled by
Subscriber; (3) if Subscriber is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in Subscriber; or (4) any
person for whom Subscriber is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a country, territory,
individual or entity named on an OFAC list, or a person or entity prohibited under the OFAC Programs. Please be
advised that the Company may not accept any amounts from a prospective Subscriber if such prospective Subscriber
cannot make the representation set forth in the preceding paragraph. Subscriber agrees to promptly notify the
Company should Subscriber become aware of any change in the information set forth in these representations.
Subscriber understands and acknowledges that, by law, the Company may be obligated to “freeze the account” of
Subscriber, by segregating the assets in the account in compliance with governmental regulations, and may also be
required to report such action and to disclose Subscriber’s identity to OFAC.

(iv)           To the best of Subscriber’s knowledge, none of: (A) Subscriber; (B) any person controlling or controlled by
Subscriber; (C) if Subscriber is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in Subscriber; or (D)
any person for whom Subscriber is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a senior foreign
political figure2, or any immediate family3 member or close associate4 of a senior foreign political figure, as such
terms are defined in the footnotes below; and

__________________
1 These individuals include specially designated nationals, specially designated narcotics traffickers and other parties
subject to OFAC sanctions and embargo programs.

2 A “senior foreign political figure” is defined as a senior official in the executive, legislative, administrative, military or
judicial branches of a foreign government (whether elected or not), a senior official of a major foreign political party,
or a senior executive of a foreign government-owned corporation. In addition, a “senior foreign political figure” includes
any corporation, business or other entity that has been formed by, or for the benefit of, a senior foreign political figure.
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(v)           If Subscriber is affiliated with a non-U.S. banking institution (a “Foreign Bank”), or if Subscriber receives
deposits from, makes payments on behalf of, or handles other financial transactions related to a Foreign Bank,
Subscriber represents and warrants to the Company that: (1) the Foreign Bank has a fixed address, other than solely an
electronic address, in a country in which the Foreign Bank is authorized to conduct banking activities; (2) the Foreign
Bank maintains operating records related to its banking activities; (3) the Foreign Bank is subject to inspection by the
banking authority that licensed the Foreign Bank to conduct banking activities; and (4) the Foreign Bank does not
provide banking services to any other Foreign Bank that does not have a physical presence in any country and that is
not a regulated affiliate.

(u)           Subscriber has reviewed the merits of investing in the Company and has reached its decision to invest in the
Company independently from any other investors in the Company.

(v)           Except as disclosed in writing to the Company, Subscriber is not affiliated with any other investor in the
Company.

(w)           Other than this Agreement, Subscriber has no agreement, arrangement or understanding with any other
person for the purpose of acquiring, holding, controlling, voting, distributing or disposing of any securities of the
Company.  Any such agreement, arrangement or understanding shall be subject to the prior written approval of the
Company and compliance with any applicable regulatory requirements.

(x)           Subscriber (i) has no present intention of acquiring control of the Company, as “control” is defined in 12
C.F.R. Part 303, Subpart E, or 12 C.F.R. Part 574 (or any other applicable banking regulation); (ii) will not acquire
control in the future without the prior approval of all applicable Government Entities; and (iii) is not participating, has
not participated with, and has no current intention to participate in the future with any other investor in the Offering in
any joint activity or parallel action towards a common goal between or among such investors of acquiring control of,
or exerting control over, the Company.

(y)           No other person holding Common Stock or that, to the knowledge of Subscriber, presently proposes to
acquire shares of Common Stock is (i) under common control with Subscriber, (ii) a controlling shareholder, partner,
trustee, officer, or director of Subscriber or has policy-making functions with respect to Subscriber or (ii) advised by
any investment advisor or manager who performs substantially the same services to such person as provided to
Subscriber, unless, with regard to this clause (y), all such persons together with Subscriber would (A) own, control or
power to vote shares of Voting Common Stock not in excess of the Voting Ownership Limit or (B) own or control no
more than 24.9% of the Company’s total equity outstanding, in each case, determined immediately after giving effect
to the issuance of the shares of Common Stock to all investors in the Offering.

__________________
3 “Immediate family” of a senior foreign political figure typically includes the figure’s parents, siblings, spouse, children
and in-laws.

4 A “close associate” of a senior foreign political figure is a person who is widely and publicly known to maintain an
unusually close relationship with the senior foreign political figure, and includes a person who is in a position to
conduct substantial domestic and international financial transactions on behalf of the senior foreign political figure.
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(z)           Subscriber will not, without first determining whether the prior approval of any Governmental Entity is
required and, if such approval is required, obtaining such approval, directly or indirectly seek to appoint any director
or executive officer to the Company or otherwise attempt to direct the management or policies of the
Company.  Subscriber also represents that neither it nor any Account has discussed the Purchase or the Private
Placement or the contents of this Agreement with any other party or potential investors, except as expressly permitted
under the terms of this Agreement.

(aa)         Subscriber has not engaged, and will not engage, as part of a group consisting of substantially the same
persons as the investors in the Company, in substantially the same combination of interests, in any other banking or
nonbanking activities or business ventures in the United States.

(bb)        Subscriber has not employed any broker or finder or incurred any liability for any financial advisory fees,
brokerage fees, commissions or finder’s fees, and no broker or finder has acted directly or indirectly for Subscriber, in
connection with the Purchase.

Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the executed Investor Questionnaire is an integral part of this Agreement and
shall be deemed incorporated by reference herein.

Subscriber agrees to promptly notify the Company should Subscriber become aware of any change in the information
set forth in this Section 2.3 which may make any such representation contained therein to be untrue or incorrect in any
material respect.

Subscriber authorizes the Placement Agent to rely on Subscriber’s representations and warranties above and in the
Investor Questionnaire.

ARTICLE III

SURVIVAL

3.1           All representations, warranties, and covenants contained in this Agreement shall survive the delivery of the
Common Stock to the Subscriber.

ARTICLE IV

FDIC POLICY STATEMENT RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER

4.1           The Company has been advised that the FDIC may require certain of the Company’s shareholders to agree to
restrictions on the transfer of the Common Stock they own or acquire as a condition to the Company’s participation in
FDIC-assisted transactions, on terms and conditions that may be comparable to those set forth in the Statement (the
“FDIC Approvals”). In anticipation of that potential requirement, Subscriber agrees, intending to be legally bound, to be
bound by such restriction on transfer as the FDIC may require, not to exceed three (3) years from the date of the latest
of any FDIC-assisted transactions in which the Company participates (herein, the “FDIC Restriction”).

4.2           In the event that one or more FDIC Restrictions are imposed, Subscriber agrees (i) that the transfer of any
shares of Common Stock then owned by Subscriber may be restricted by the Company in accordance with the terms
of the FDIC Restriction, (ii) that the Company may notify its transfer agent to refuse any attempted transfer that would
be inconsistent with the FDIC Restriction, (iii) that any share certificates issued to Subscriber may be legended to
reflect the FDIC Restriction, and that Subscriber, on request, will surrender any share certificates held by or for the
benefit of Subscriber for purposes of addition of such a legend to the certificate or certificates.
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4.3           Legend.   In the event that one or more FDIC Restrictions are imposed, in addition to any other legend
required by applicable law or provisions of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation or any agreement, each certificate
for Common Stock shall bear substantially the following legend:

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER SET FORTH IN ARTICLE IV OF THE CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE ORIGINAL SUBSCRIBER FOR SUCH SECURITIES (“SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT ARTICLE IV”), RELATING TO RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER IN CONNECTION WITH THE
ISSUER’S PARTICIPATION IN FDIC-ASSISTED TRANSACTIONS. NO TRANSFER OF THE SHARES
EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE IS PERMITTED WITHOUT RECEIPT BY THE ISSUER OF AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS PERMITTED
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT ARTICLE IV AND ANY
REQUIREMENTS OR CONDITIONS THEN IMPOSED BY THE FDIC. THE ISSUER SHALL MAKE
AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST, AT NO COST TO THE HOLDER OF THIS CERTIFICATE, A COPY OF THE
PROVISIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT ARTICLE IV.

4.4          The provisions of this Article IV and any FDIC Restrictions shall be binding upon any transferee of any of
the Common Stock or any other shares of common stock now or hereafter owned by Subscriber.

4.5           Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that in connection with any FDIC Approvals the Company may be
obligated to obtain from the FDIC, to cooperate reasonably and in good faith with the Company to provide the
information required to obtain such FDIC Approvals.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS

5.1           Subscriber hereby agrees that Section 6 of the letter agreement by and between Subscriber and the
Placement Agent, dated as of _________, 2010 shall be incorporated by reference into this Agreement and shall
remain in effect from the date hereof until the earlier of (i) the Closing and (ii) such date that is one year from the date
hereof .  This Section 5.1 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

5.2           From and after the Closing, the Company shall not redeem or repurchase any shares of its capital stock, or
take or cause to be taken any action, nor shall the Board of Directors authorize any of the foregoing, to the extent such
action would, or would be reasonably likely to, result in any Subscriber or any group of Subscribers related to any
Subscriber or persons acting in concert with any Subscriber to control or be deemed to control (as “control” is defined in
12 C.F.R. Part 303, Subpart E, or 12 C.F.R. Part 574) the Company or the Bank unless the Company shall have given
Subscriber sixty (60) days’ prior written notice of such action, during which time Subscriber may transfer to a third
party its Common Stock or otherwise restructure its investment as may be mutually agreed with the Company, in each
case to the extent necessary to ensure that such Subscriber or any group of persons related to such Subscriber or
persons acting in concert with such Subscriber do not control or would not be deemed to control the Company or the
Bank.
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5.3           As promptly as practicable following the Closing, the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to
redeem in full all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock Series A sold to the U.S. Treasury on November 21, 2008 (the “TARP Redemption”).

5.4           From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of (a) the Closing and (b) a termination of this Agreement
in accordance with Article VIII hereof, the Company shall not and shall cause the Bank and their respective
representatives not to, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage (including by way of providing
information) the submission of any inquiries, proposals or offers that constitute or may reasonably be expected to lead
to any Competing Transaction, (ii) engage in any discussions or negotiations, or provide or cause to be provided any
non-public information or data relating to the Company or any the Bank in connection with, or have any discussions
with any person relating to, an actual or proposed Competing Transaction, (iii) otherwise cooperate with or assist or
participate in, or facilitate any such inquiries, proposals, offers, discussions or negotiations to make or implement any
Competing Transaction or (iv) execute or enter into, any letter of intent, agreement in principle, merger agreement,
acquisition agreement, option agreement or other similar agreement relating to any Competing Transaction.  As used
here, the term “Competing Transaction” means any inquiry, proposal or offer, filing of any regulatory application or
notice (whether in draft or final form) or disclosure of an intention to do any of the foregoing from any person relating
to any (v) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of a business that constitutes ten percent (10%) or more of the total
revenues, net income, assets or deposits of the Company and the Bank taken as a whole, (w) direct or indirect
acquisition or purchase of any class of debt or equity securities representing five percent (5%) or more of the voting
power of the Company or the Bank, (x) issuance of any equity or debt securities by the Company or the Bank to any
person or group other than pursuant to Previously Disclosed benefit plans as in effect as of the date hereof, (y) tender
offer or exchange offer that if consummated would result in any person beneficially owning ten percent (10%) or more
of any class of equity securities of the Company or (z) merger, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization,
liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving the Company or the Bank, other than the Offering and the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

5.5           The Company shall provide for the registration, offering and sale of the shares of Common Stock purchased
by Subscriber hereunder in accordance with the terms of Schedule III to this Agreement.

5.6           As promptly as practicable following the TARP Redemption, the Bank shall use reasonable best efforts to
enter into an agreement with each of Messrs Ganz and Sheehy, Ms. Yaptangco, Ms. Lauer, Ms. Carrillo and Ms.
Goodwin (each, an “Executive”) providing for the Bank, immediately following the execution thereof, to pay to such
Executive one half of the amount that would have been due to such Executive pursuant to the severance agreement by
and between such Executive and the Bank (each, a “Change of Control Agreement”) had the Offering constituted a
“change of control” (as defined in the applicable Change of Control Agreement) and the employment of such Executive
ceased (other than as a result of a “Termination for Cause,” as defined in the applicable Change in Control Agreement),
with the balance of such amount payable if the employment of such Executive actually ceases (other than as a result of
a “Termination for Cause,” as defined in the applicable Change in Control Agreement), in each case during the period
beginning upon the Closing and ending on the three (3) year anniversary thereof; provided that any such Executive
receiving payment pursuant to this Section 5.6 shall have executed a customary waiver and release that, among other
matters, provides for a waiver of any right of payment, any claim or any other compensation relating to such
Executive’s Change of Control Agreement or similar agreement and with regard to the Offering.

A-14

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

69



5.7           Subject to regulatory approval, the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to enter into an
employment agreement with Gregory Mitchell (“Mitchell”), providing for Mitchell to be appointed Chief Executive
Officer or President of the Company, and to appoint Mitchell to the office of Chief Executive Officer or President of
the Company upon or promptly following the Closing.

5.8           If at anytime prior to the Closing, the Company becomes aware that any one or more of the other
subscribers in the Offering shall fail or refuse to purchase and pay for any of shares of Common Stock which it or they
have agreed to purchase in the Offering (the “Defaulted Shares”), and the failure or refusal of such subscriber or
subscribers, as the case may be, to purchase and pay for the Defaulted Shares would result in aggregate gross proceeds
from the sale of shares of Common Stock in the Offering of less than $60,000,000.00, the Company shall promptly
notify (the “Default Notification”) Subscriber and each other non-defaulting subscriber in the Offering (the “Remaining
Subscribers”).  In such event, subject to the remainder of this Section 5.8, each Remaining Subscriber shall have the
right to purchase and pay for at the Closing any or all of the Defaulted Shares at a purchase price of $11.00 per
Defaulted Share.  Each Remaining Subscriber may elect (an “Election”) to exercise the right to purchase and pay for
Defaulted Shares by delivering written notice (each, an “Election Notice”), specifying the number of Defaulted Shares
such Remaining Subscriber elects to purchase and pay for, to the Company within 24 hours after receipt of the Default
Notification (the “Election Period”).  Unless otherwise agreed by the Company, failure to deliver in a timely manner an
Election Notice to the Company shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right to purchase any pay for Defaulted
Shares.  In the event that the Remaining Subscribers timely deliver Election Notices representing a number of shares
of Common Stock greater than the number of Defaulted Shares, the number of Defaulted Shares that shall be
purchased and paid for at the Closing by each Remaining Subscriber shall be reduced pro rata, based on the number of
shares sought to be purchased pursuant to each such Remaining Subscriber’s Election Notice; provided, that the
Company may determine, in its sole discretion, to give complete or partial preference in connection with any such pro
ration to Elections made by Remaining Subscribers who would not, after giving effect to the Offering (including, for
the avoidance of doubt, any purchases of Defaulted Shares), (i) own, control or have the power to vote shares of
Voting Stock in excess of the Voting Ownership Limit or (ii) own or control 10.0% or more of the Company’s total
stockholder’s equity; provided, further, that the Company may determine, in its sole discretion, to reject any Elections
made by Remaining Subscribers who would, after giving effect to the Offering (including, for the avoidance of doubt,
any purchases of Defaulted Shares), (x) own, control or have the power to vote shares of Voting Stock in excess of the
Voting Ownership Limit or (y) own or control 10.0% or more of the Company’s total stockholder’s equity.  In the event
that Subscriber shall purchase any Defaulted Shares pursuant to the foregoing, Subscriber’s subscription and Purchase
(and related Purchase Price) shall be deemed to be, automatically and without further action on the part of Subscriber
or the Company, amended accordingly for all purposes under this Agreement   Any action taken under this paragraph
shall not relieve any defaulting subscriber from liability in respect of any default or breach of any such subscriber
under its respective subscription agreement.

ARTICLE VI

[RESERVED]
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ARTICLE VII

CLOSING CONDITIONS

7.1           The obligation of the Company to consummate the Purchase is subject to the following conditions :

(a)           the representations and warranties of Subscriber contained in Section 2.3 of this Agreement shall be true and
correct on and as of Closing in all material respects (except for those representations and warranties which are
qualified by materiality, which shall be true and correct in all respects) with the same effect as though such
representations and warranties had been made on and as of Closing (except for representations and warranties that
speak as of a specific date, which shall be true and correct as of such specified date);

(b)           at or simultaneously with the Closing, the Company shall have raised gross proceeds from the sale of shares
of its Common Stock in the Offering at least equal to $60,000,000.00 in the aggregate;

(c)           requisite shareholder approval required, if any, in connection with the shares of Common Stock to be sold in
the Offering, including without limitation the Common Stock, for the purposes of Nasdaq Rule 5635 or any successor
rule thereto shall have been obtained;

(d)           the Company shall have received all approvals, consents or non-objections of all applicable governmental
agencies, authorities or instrumentalities having supervisory or regulatory authority with respect to the Company or
the Bank (each, a “Governmental Entity”), including but not limited to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, the OTS and the FDIC, as applicable, that are required prior to the Closing Date for the consummation of the
Offering;

(e)           the full Purchase Price shall have been received by the Company;

(f)           Subscriber shall have duly executed the Investor Questionnaire;

(g)           no proceedings shall have been initiated or threatened by any Governmental Entity or other governmental
authority seeking to enjoin or otherwise restrain or to obtain an award for damages in connection with the
consummation of Transaction, including without limitation the Offering and the Purchase contemplated hereby, or
which would reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; and

(h)           no Governmental Entity shall have imposed any conditions or restrictions on the Company or the Bank that
would materially adversely impact the business activities of the Company or the Bank or materially impair, impede or
delay certification by the FDIC of the Bank as being eligible to bid in connection with the sale of failed depository
institutions by the FDIC; and

(i)           any Interagency Notice of Change in Control with respect to the Company or the Bank required to be
submitted by Subscriber or any affiliate of Subscriber pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1817(j) and 12 C.F.R. Part 303 required
to consummate the Offering shall have received the approval or non-objection of the Bank Regulators and/or FDIC
and the OTS, as applicable, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Company.

7.2           The obligation of Subscriber to deliver the Authorization and the balance of the Purchase Price to the
Company pursuant to Section 1.3(a) hereof is subject to the following conditions:
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(a)           the representations and warranties of the Company contained in Section 2.2 of this Agreement shall be true
and correct on and as of Closing in all material respects except for those representations and warranties which are
qualified by materiality, which shall be true and correct in all respects) with the same effect as though such
representations and warranties had been made on and as of Closing (except for representations and warranties that
speak as of a specific date, which shall be true and correct as of such specified date);

(b)           requisite shareholder approval required, if any, in connection with the shares of Common Stock to be sold in
the Offering, including without limitation the Common Stock, for the purposes of Nasdaq Rule 5635 or any successor
rule thereto shall have been obtained;

(c)           The Class B Non-Voting Common Stock shall have been authorized under the Articles of Incorporation, as
amended, of the Company prior to the Closing;

(d)           As of and giving effect to the Closing and the consummation of the Offering on the terms described herein,
and assuming that no person or entity affiliated with Subscriber or deemed to be acting in concert with Subscriber
pursuant to 12 C.F.R. Part 303, Subpart E, or 12 C.F.R. Part 574 (or any other applicable banking regulation) has
subscribed for any shares of Common Stock in the Offering (except to the extent that Subscriber has previously
provided notice of such subscription to the Company in writing), (i) Subscriber shall not own, control or have the
power to vote, shares of Voting Stock equal to 10.0% or more of the aggregate number of outstanding shares of
Voting Stock; and (ii) Subscriber shall not own or control  in excess of 24.99% of the total stockholder’s equity  of the
Company;

(e)           the consummation of the Offering would not result in Subscriber or any of its affiliates being deemed to
have a direct or indirect controlling interest in the Company or the Bank or otherwise require any of them to register
as a savings and loan holding company under the Savings and Loan Holding Company provisions of the Home
Owners’ Loan Act, as amended, and Subscriber shall have received a written non-control determination from the
Office of Thrift Supervision in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Subscriber to such effect;

(f)            no proceedings shall have been initiated or threatened by any Governmental Entity or other governmental
authority seeking to enjoin or otherwise restrain or to obtain an award for damages in connection with the
consummation of Transaction, including without limitation the Offering and the Purchase contemplated hereby;

(g)           at or simultaneously with the Closing, the Company shall have raised gross proceeds from the sale of shares
of its Common Stock in the Offering at least equal to $40,000,000.00 in the aggregate;

(h)           since the date of this Agreement, there shall not have been any Material Adverse Effect; and

(i)            no Governmental Entity shall have imposed any conditions or restrictions on the Company or the Bank that
would materially adversely impact the business activities of the Company or the Bank or materially impair, impede or
delay certification by the FDIC of the Bank as being eligible to bid in connection with the sale of failed depository
institutions by the FDIC; and

(j)           since the date of this Agreement, there shall have been no grants or awards of Company Stock Options by the
Company and the Company shall have cancelled or otherwise terminated (or shall, as soon as permitted under
applicable law following the Closing Date, cancel or otherwise terminate) all Company Stock Options and the
consideration paid by the Company in respect of such cancellation and/or termination shall be equal to $3.00 per
Company Stock Option.

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

73



A-17

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

74



ARTICLE VIII

TERMINATION

8.1           Termination; Certain Fees.

(a)           This Agreement may be terminated prior to the Closing:

(i)       By mutual written agreement of the Company and Subscriber;

(ii)      by the Company or Subscriber, upon 15 days’ written notice to the other party, in the event that the Closing
Date does not occur on or before December 31, 2010 or such later date, if any, as Subscriber and the Company agree
upon in writing (as such date may be extended, the “Outside Date”); provided, however, that the right to terminate this
Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(a)(ii) shall not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any obligation
under this Agreement shall have been the cause of, or shall have resulted in, the failure of the Closing Date to occur
on or prior to the Outside Date; or

(iii)     by the Company or Subscriber, upon written notice to the other party, in the event that any Governmental
Entity shall have issued any order, decree or injunction or taken any other action restraining, enjoining or prohibiting
any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and such order, decree, injunction or other action shall have
become final and nonappealable; or

(iv)     by the Company, in its sole discretion, if on June 17, 2010 (the “Measurement Date”), other than as a result,
directly or indirectly, of any actions or failures to act of the Company, the Company has not received executed
counterparts to subscription agreements representing subscriptions from subscribers in the Offering to purchase shares
of the Common Stock having an aggregate purchase price of at least $25,000,000.00; provided that if the Company
has not provided the Subscriber with written notice of such termination within five (5) business days of the
Measurement Date, the Company shall be deemed to have irrevocably waived its termination right pursuant to this
clause (iv); and provided, further that upon any termination by the Company pursuant to this clause (iv), the Company
must also so terminate the subscription agreements of all other subscribers with respect to the Offering concurrently
with such termination.

(b)           In the event of any termination of this Agreement by the Company pursuant to clause (iv) of Section 8.1(a),
the Escrow Agent shall, in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement, promptly release to the Subscriber the
full amount of the Deposit and any interest earned thereon as of such date.

(c)           In the event that the Offering is not consummated as a result, directly or indirectly, of a breach of this
Agreement by the Company that causes or results in a failure of any of the conditions specified in Article VII hereof
to be satisfied as of the Outside Date, and Subscriber has terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(a)(ii)
hereof, the Company shall pay Subscriber an aggregate fee equal to the Company Termination Fee by wire transfer of
same-day funds on the first business day following the date of such termination.  For the purposes of this agreement,
the term “Company Termination Fee” shall mean an amount equal to the product of (i) $1,000,000.00 and (ii) (a) the
Purchase Price divided by (b) the aggregate purchase price for all shares of Common Stock subscribed for by all of the
investors in the Offering.
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(d)           In the event that the Offering is not consummated as a result, directly or indirectly, of a breach of this
Agreement by Subscriber that causes or results in a failure of any of the conditions specified in Article VII hereof to
be satisfied as of the Outside Date, and the Company has terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(a)(ii)
hereof, the Escrow Agent shall, in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement, release to the Company from
the Subscriber’s Deposit, an amount (the “Investor Liquidated Damages Amount”) equal to the lesser of (i) the full
amount of the Deposit and (ii) the product of (A) $1,500,000.00 and (B) (I) the Purchase Price divided by (II) the
aggregate purchase price for all shares of Common Stock subscribed for by all of the investors in the Offering.  The
parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the Investor Liquidated Damages Amount shall constitute the Company’s
sole remedy in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with their
specific terms or are otherwise breached by Subscriber.

(e)           In the event of any termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 8.1(a), this Agreement (other than
Sections 8.1(b), 8.1(c), 8.1(d), 8.1(e) and Article IX and Article X, which shall remain in full force and effect) shall
forthwith become wholly void and of no further force and effect; provided that nothing herein shall relieve any party
from liability for breach of this Agreement prior to such termination.

ARTICLE IX

CONFIDENTIALITY

9.1           Each party agrees to keep all information furnished by another party pursuant to this Agreement confidential
(“Confidential Information”) except such information that (i) is or becomes generally available to the public (other than
as a result of a disclosure by the receiving party in violation of this Agreement), (ii) was available to the receiving
party on a non-confidential basis prior to its disclosure by the disclosing party, (iii) becomes available to the receiving
party on a non-confidential basis from a person other than the disclosing party who is not known by the receiving
party to be otherwise bound by a confidentiality agreement with the disclosing party, or is not known by the receiving
party to be otherwise prohibited from transmitting the information to the receiving party, (iv) the disclosing party
agrees may be disclosed or (v) the receiving party is requested pursuant to, or required by, law, regulation, legal
process or regulatory authority to disclose, and neither party hereto shall release or disclose such information to any
other person, except its auditors, attorneys, financial advisors, or other consultants and advisors. In the event that any
party is requested pursuant to, or required by, law, regulation, legal process or regulatory authority to disclose any
Confidential Information, such party agrees that it will provide the other party with prompt notice of such request(s) or
requirement(s) (to the extent legally permitted) to enable the non-disclosing party to seek an appropriate protective
order (at the non-disclosing party’s sole cost and expense), waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement or
take other appropriate action.  Each party agrees to use its good faith efforts to assist the other party in obtaining such
a protective order.  If, in the absence of a protective order or the receipt of a waiver hereunder, the disclosing party is
nonetheless, in the opinion of its counsel, compelled to disclose the Confidential Information or else stand liable for
contempt or suffer other censure or significant penalty, such party, after notice to the non-disclosing party (to the
extent legally permitted), may disclose such Confidential Information that the disclosing party is compelled to
disclose and shall exercise all reasonable efforts to obtain reasonable assurances that confidential treatment will be
accorded to such disclosed Confidential Information.  For the avoidance of doubt, the Company may present this
Agreement and the information provided in the Investor Questionnaire to such parties as it deems advisable if
compelled by law or called upon to establish the availability under any Federal or state securities laws of an
exemption from registration of the Offering.
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ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

10.1        Any notice or other communication given hereunder shall be deemed sufficient if in writing and sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, international courier or delivered by hand against written receipt
therefor, or by confirmed facsimile transmission, to the following addresses, or such other address as may be
furnished to the other parties as herein provided:

To the Bank:   First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc.
610 Bay Boulevard
Chula Vista, California 91910

Attention: Hans Ganz
President and Chief Executive Officer

Fax:  (619) 446-6200

To the Subscriber:   At the address set forth on the signature page hereto.

Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, notices shall be deemed to have been given on the date of mailing, except
notice of change of address, which shall be deemed to have been given when received.

10.2         This Agreement shall not be changed, modified or amended except in writing and signed by the parties to be
charged, and this Agreement may not be discharged except by performance in accordance with its terms or by a
writing signed by the party to be charged.

10.3         Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal representatives and assigns. If the Subscriber
is more than one person, the obligation of such Subscriber shall be joint and several and the agreements,
representations, warranties, covenants and acknowledgments herein contained shall be deemed to be made by and be
binding upon each such person and his or her heirs, executors, administrators, successors and legal
representatives.  The obligations of the parties may not be assigned except in the event of a merger, consolidation or
other reorganization undertaken for a reason other than to assign a party’s obligation, under this Agreement.

10.4         This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the matters set forth herein and
there are no representations, covenants or other agreements except as stated or referred to herein; provided, however,
that, if applicable, any confidentiality agreement between the Company and the Subscriber shall remain in full force
and effect except to the extent inconsistent with this Agreement.

10.5         [Reserved.]
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10.6         In the event of a dispute regarding this Agreement that results in litigation or arbitration, the prevailing
party, as determined by the finder of facts, shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees.

10.7         Except to the extent governed by federal law applicable to national savings associations, all questions
concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by the
internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule
(whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York.  Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the state and federal courts sitting in New York County, New York, of any dispute hereunder or in connection
herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees
not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action
or proceeding is improper.  Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process
being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to such party at the address for such
notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process
and notice thereof.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any right to service process in any manner
permitted by law.

10.8         The parties agree to execute and deliver all such further documents, agreements and instruments and take
such other and further action as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes and intent of this
Agreement.

10.9         This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument.  Electronic transmissions of signature pages,
whether via email, facsimile or other means, shall be effective as original signatures for all purposes.

10.10       In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained herein, or the application thereof in any
circumstances, is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect for any reason, the validity, legality and
enforceability of any such provision in every other respect and of the remaining provisions hereof shall not be in any
way impaired or affected, it being intended that the Company’s and the Subscriber’s rights and privileges shall be
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

10.11       Except as may be required by applicable law, the Company shall not issue or make, or cause to have issued
or made, any public release or announcement concerning this Agreement, including Subscriber’s identity, or the
transactions contemplated hereby, including but not limited to the offering of Common Stock to any other subscriber,
unless Subscriber shall have previously consented to such public release or announcement in writing, which consent
may be granted or withheld in Subscriber’s sole discretion. Any such press release or public statement required by
applicable law naming Subscriber shall only be made by the Company after reasonable notice and opportunity for
review by Subscriber.

10.12       Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and
shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, including, with respect to
the Company to the extent shareholder approvals are required (including by virtue of Nasdaq Rule 5635 or any
successor rule thereto) to consummate the Offering, taking all actions (including making all necessary filings in
connection therewith) necessary, in accordance with applicable law, regulation and its certificate of incorporation and
bylaws, to call and hold a shareholders meeting as promptly as reasonably practicable following the date hereof,
recommending that its shareholders vote to approve the transactions contemplated by the offering at such meeting, and
using its reasonable best efforts to obtain such approvals, as any other party may reasonably request in order to carry
out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.
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10.13       The parties agree that irreparable damage would occur and that the parties would not have any adequate
remedy at law in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their
specific terms or were otherwise breached by the Company.  It is accordingly agreed that Subscriber shall be entitled
to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement by the Company and to enforce specifically the
terms and provisions of this Agreement against the Company, in addition to any other remedy to which it is entitled at
law or in equity.

NOTE: YOU MUST COMPLETE AND SIGN THE INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE ATTACHED HERETO.

Signatures appear on the following page
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized
representative as of the date set forth below.

Signature of Subscriber Signature of Joint Subscriber, if applicable

Name of Subscriber (please print)  Name of Joint Subscriber, if applicable (pleas print)

Please indicate name and capacity of person
signing above, if the Subscriber is not a
natural person 

Please indicate name and capacity of person
signing above, if the joint Subscriber is not a
natural person

Name in which shares are to be registered (if
different) Name of Joint Subscriber, if applicable (please print)

Date:  ___________________________, 2010

If the Subscriber is a natural person, the
Subscriber’s State of residence is: 

If there are Joint Subscribers, please check one:

o Joint Tenants with Rights of Survivorship

o Tenants-in-Common

o Community Property

If the Subscriber is not a natural person, it:

● is the following type of organization: 

● is organized under
the laws of:  

● has its principal place of business in:  

● was formed for the
purpose of: 

Subscriber’s Social Security Number or EIN: 
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Business Address - Street Mailing Address - Street (if different)

City                  State                 Zip Code City                  State                 Zip Code

Attn: Attn:
Telephone No.: Telephone No.:  
Facsimile No.:  Facsimile No.:   
Email Address: Email Address:  
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Number of shares
subscribed for: 

Purchase
Price: 

You must pay the Purchase Price pursuant to the instructions to be provided by lender.  THE SUBSCRIBER IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WIRE TRANSFER FEES IMPOSED BY THE SUBSCRIBER’S BANK.  Wire funds to:

Bank: The Bank of New York Mellon
ABA Number: 021-000-018
Account name to credit: 445171
Account number to credit: First PacTrust Bancorp Subscription

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED

Name of DTC Participant: 

DTC Participant Number: 

Subscriber’s Account Number with DTC Participant: 
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Accepted as of the ___ day of ___________,
2010.                                                                                                                     

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.

By: 
Hans Ganz
President and Chief Executive Officer
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ACCREDITED INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE

(ALL INFORMATION WILL BE TREATED CONFIDENTIALLY)

To:           FirstPactrust Bancorp, Inc.:

This Accredited Investor Questionnaire (“Questionnaire”) must be completed by each potential investor in connection
with the private offering by First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), of up to _____
shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.01 per share, including, to the extent required to be issued to
permit an investor to with regulatory requirements and policies applicable to such investor, an indeterminate amount
of Class B non-voting common stock, par value $.01 per share, (collectively the “Common Stock”).  The Common
Stock is being offered and sold by the Company without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”), and the securities laws of certain states, in reliance on the exemptions contained in Section 4(2) of
the Securities Act and on Regulation D promulgated thereunder and in reliance on similar exemptions under
applicable state laws. The Company must determine that a potential investor meets certain suitability requirements
before offering or selling the Common Stock to such investor. The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assure the
Company that each investor will meet the applicable suitability requirements. The information supplied by you will be
used in determining whether you meet such criteria, and reliance upon the private offering exemptions from
registration is based in part on the information herein supplied.

This Questionnaire does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any security. Your answers
will be kept strictly confidential. However, by signing this Questionnaire, you will be authorizing the Company to
provide a completed copy of this Questionnaire to such parties as the Company deems appropriate in order to ensure
that the offer and sale of the Common Stock will not result in a violation of the Securities Act or the securities laws of
any state and that you otherwise satisfy the suitability standards applicable to purchasers of the Common Stock. All
potential investors must answer all applicable questions and complete, date and sign this Questionnaire. Please print or
type your responses and attach additional sheets of paper if necessary to complete your answers to any item. Please
attach to this Questionnaire, if applicable, a copy of your (A) Operating or Partnership Agreement, (B) Trust
Document or (C) Articles of Incorporation.
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1.  Background Information.

(a) Name of Individual or Investing Entity: 

(b) Address: 

Address for correspondence, if different:  

(c) Telephone Number: 

If a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or other entity:

(d) Description of
Business: 

(e) Federal Tax I.D.
Number:

(f) Individual(s) authorized to execute documents on behalf of the investing entity in
connection with this

investment:

Name: 
Position or Title: 

Name: 
Position or
Title:    

Comment:  A power of attorney is required if the partnership agreement or trust agreement does not specifically
authorize the above-named individual(s) to make this investment for the partnership or trust.  In the case of a
corporate investor, corporate resolutions authorizing this investment and specifying the individuals authorized to
execute investment documents on behalf of the corporation are required to be delivered herewith.

(g) Type of Investing Entity:

Corporation 
Limited Liability Company    
General Partnership    
Limited Partnership
Revocable Trust
Irrevocable Trust 
Pension or Profit Sharing Plan
or
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         Trust (Indicate Type of
Plan or Trust)  
Individual Retirement Account 

Comment:  The beneficiary of an Individual Retirement Account also must provide a completed Questionnaire
(Natural Persons).
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Estate 
Other 

(h) Place of
Organization: 

(i) Date of Organization: 

(j) Was the entity organized for the specific purpose of investing in the
Company?

Yes____     No____

(k) Number of Equity
Owners: 

Comment:  An “equity owner,” for the purposes of this Questionnaire, means (1) the stockholders in the case of a
corporation, (2) the limited partners only in the case of a limited partnership, (3) the general partner in the case of
a general partnership, (4) the grantor(s) in the case of a trust revocable at the sole option of the grantor(s), (5) the
members in the case of a limited liability company, or (6) the beneficiaries in the case of other trusts or of estates.

2.  Suitable Purchasers.

All purchasers will be required to represent that they meet at least one of the following requirements.  Please indicate
which of the following you meet by initialing in the space(s) provided:

(a) The individual purchaser (if a natural person) or all of the equity owners of the investing entity meet (i), (ii), (iii) or
(iv) below:

___(i)Have an individual net worth (or joint net worth with spouse) in excess of $1,000,000;

___(ii)Had an individual income (not including any amounts attributable to spouse or to property owned by spouse)
of more than $200,000 in each of the previous two (2) calendar years and a reasonable expectation to reach
the same income level in the current year;

___(iii)Had a joint income with a spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of the previous two (2) calendar years and a
reasonable expectation to reach the same income level in the current year; or

___(iv)Is an executive officer or director of the Company.

(b) The purchaser is any of the following entities (indicate by initialing the appropriate line(s)):

___(i)A bank or savings and loan association, whether acting in its individual or fiduciary capacity.

___(ii)A broker-dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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___(iii)An insurance company.

___(iv)An investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or a business development
company as defined in said Act.

___(v)A Small Business Investment Company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration.

___(vi)A plan established and maintained by a state, its political subdivisions or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, for the benefit of its employees, if such plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000.

___(vii)An employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (“ERISA”), if the investment decision with respect to this investment is made by a plan fiduciary which
is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company or registered investment adviser, or if the
employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000, or if a self-directed plan, its investment
decisions are made solely by persons who are accredited investors.

___(viii)A private business development company as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940.

___(ix)A corporation, Massachusetts or similar business trust or partnership, or any tax exempt organization as
defined in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring
the Common Stock of the Company, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000.

___(x)A trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring securities
being acquired hereby, whose purchase is directed by a person who has such knowledge and experience in
financial and business matters that such person is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment
in the Common Stock.

3.  Additional Information.

(a) If for a Trust:

A trust must attach a copy of its Declaration of Trust or other governing instrument, as amended, as well as all other
documents that authorize the trust to invest in the Common Stock.  All documentation must be complete and correct.

(b) If for a Retirement Plan:

The retirement plan must attach copies of all documents governing the retirement plan as well as all other documents
authorizing the retirement plan to invest in the Common Stock.  Include, as necessary, documents defining permitted
investments by the retirement plan and demonstrating the authority of the signing individual to act on behalf of the
retirement plan.  All documentation must be complete and correct.
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4.  Other Certification.

(a) If by a Corporation:

By signing the Signature Page to this Questionnaire, the undersigned certifies the following:

(i)That the corporation’s purchase of the Common Stock will be solely for the corporation’s own account and not for
the account of any other person or entity; and

(ii)That the corporation’s name, address of principal office, place of incorporation and Federal taxpayer identification
number, as set forth in this Questionnaire, are true, correct and complete.

(b) If by a Partnership:

By signing the Signature Page to this Questionnaire, the undersigned certifies on behalf of the subscribing partnership
the following:

(i)That the subscribing partnership’s purchase of the Common Stock will be solely for the subscribing partnership’s
own account and not for the account of any other person or entity; and

(ii)That the subscribing partnership’s name, address of principal office, place of formation and Federal taxpayer
identification number as set forth in this Questionnaire are true, correct and complete.

(c) If by a Trust (Other than a Retirement-Related Trust) or Estate:

By signing the Signature Page to this Questionnaire, the undersigned certifies the following:

(i)That the trust’s or estate’s purchase of the Common Stock will be solely for the trust’s or estate’s own account and not
for the account of any other person or entity;

(ii)That the trust’s or estate’s purchase of the Common Stock is within the investment powers and authority of the trust
or estate (as set forth in the declaration of trust or other governing instrument) and that all necessary consents,
approvals and authorizations for such purchase have been obtained and that each person who signs the Signature
Page has all requisite power and authority as trustee or executor or administrator to execute this Questionnaire and
the Subscription Agreement on behalf of the trust or estate;

(iii)That the trust has not been established in connection with either (aa) an employee benefit plan (as defined in
Section 3(3) of ERISA), whether or not subject to the provisions of Title I of ERISA, or (bb) a plan described in
Section 4975(e)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code;

(iv) That the trust’s name, address of principal office, place of formation and Federal taxpayer identification
number as set forth in this Questionnaire are true, correct and complete.
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(d) If by a Retirement Plan:

By signing the Signature Page to this Questionnaire, the undersigned certifies the following:

(i)That the retirement plan’s purchase of the Common Stock will be solely for the retirement plan’s own account and
not for the account of any other person or entity; and

(ii)That the retirement plan’s governing documents duly authorize the type of investment contemplated herein and the
undersigned is authorized and empowered to make such investment on behalf of the retirement plan.

(e) If by a Limited Liability Company:

By signing the Signature Page to this Questionnaire, the undersigned certifies the following:

(i)That the limited liability company’s purchase of the Common Stock will be solely for its own account and not for
the account of any other person or entity; and

(ii)That the limited liability company’s name, address of principal office, place of organization and Federal taxpayer
identification number, as set forth in this Questionnaire, are true, correct and complete.

5.  Reliance by the Company.

(a) The answers to the above questions are complete and correct and may be relied upon by the Company and its
affiliates in determining whether the offering in connection with which the undersigned has executed this
Questionnaire is exempt from registration under the Securities Act;

(b) The undersigned will notify the Company and its affiliates immediately of any material change in any statement
made herein or any event resulting in the omission of any statement required to be made herein that occurs prior to the
acceptance of the Subscription Agreement;

(c) The person signing this Questionnaire on behalf of the investing entity has been duly authorized to acquire the
Common Stock and sign the Subscription Agreement on behalf of the entity and, further, that the undersigned entity
has all requisite authority to purchase the Common Stock and enter into the Subscription Agreement; and

(d) The undersigned hereby certifies that they have read the entire Subscription Agreement and understand the
contents thereof.

[Signature page follows]
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A. FOR EXECUTION BY AN INDIVIDUAL

By:
Date Print Name:

B. FOR EXECUTION BY AN ENTITY:

            Entity Name:

By:
Date Print Name:

C. ADDITIONAL SIGNATURES (if required by partnership, corporation or trust document):

            Entity Name:

By:
Date Print Name:

            Entity Name:

By:
Date Print Name:

*UNLESS (i) the trust has total assets in excess of $5,000,000; (ii) the trust was not formed for the specific purpose of
acquiring the Common Stock; and (iii) the purchase by the trust is directed by a person who has such knowledge and
experience in financial and business matters that such person is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an
investment in the Common Stock, the grantor(s) of the trust also must provide a completed Questionnaire (Natural
Persons).

**For purposes of this Questionnaire, a purchaser’s “net worth” is equal to the excess of total assets at fair market value
over total liabilities.

***For purposes of this Questionnaire, “income” means adjusted gross income, as reported for Federal income tax
purposes, less any income attributable to a spouse or property owned by a spouse, increased by the following amounts
(but not in−cluding any amounts attributable to a spouse or to property owned by a spouse): (i) the amount of any
tax-exempt interest income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) received,
(ii) the amount of losses claimed as a limited partner in a limited partnership as reported on Schedule E of Form 1040,
and (iii) any deduction claimed for depletion under Section 611 et. seq. of the Code.
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SCHEDULE III
REGISTRATION RIGHTS

Defined terms used but not defined in this Schedule III shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the agreement
(including all schedules, annexes and exhibits thereto, the “Agreement”) to which this Schedule III is attached.

(a)           The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to, as soon as practicable following the Closing Date, but
in no event later than  the 30th business day following the Closing Date, but subject to delay as set forth in paragraph
(c) below (in which case as soon as possible after the lapse of such postponement or suspension in accordance with
the terms thereof) (the “Registration Deadline’), file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) a Shelf
Registration Statement relating to the offer and sale from time to time of all of the Registrable Securities by
Subscriber and the other subscribers in the Offering, and the direct and indirect transferees of Subscriber and such
other subscribers (Subscriber, such other subscribers and such direct and indirect transferees, collectively, the
“Holders”), and shall, if such Shelf Registration Statement is not automatically effective, use its reasonable best efforts
to cause such Shelf Registration Statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act as soon as possible after
filing.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this paragraph (a), the Company shall not be required to register
any Registrable Securities pursuant to this paragraph (a) during any period (not to exceed 180 days) following the
closing of the completion of a distribution of securities offered by the Company that would cause the Company to
breach a lock-up provision contained in the underwriting agreement for such distribution, and in such event the
“Registration Deadline” shall be deemed automatically extended for such period.

(b)           The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to keep such Shelf Registration Statement continuously
effective under the Securities Act in order to permit the Shelf Prospectus forming a part thereof to be usable by
Subscriber (including by filing post-effective amendments to such Shelf Registration Statement (or a new Shelf
Registration Statement if the initial Shelf Registration Statement expires)) until the earlier of (i) the date as of which
all of Subscriber’s Registrable Securities have been sold (A) pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement or another
Registration Statement filed under the Securities Act (but in no event prior to any applicable period referred to in
Section 4(3) of the Securities Act and Rule 174 thereunder) and/or (B) to the public in compliance with Rule 144
under the Securities Act and (ii) the first anniversary of the Closing (or, if Subscriber is or becomes an officer or
member of the Board of Directors of the Company, the fifth anniversary of the Closing)  (such period of effectiveness,
the “Shelf Period”).  The Company shall not be deemed to have used its reasonable best efforts to keep the Shelf
Registration Statement effective during the Shelf Period if the Company voluntarily takes any action or omits to take
any action that would result in Subscriber thereby not being able to offer and sell any Registrable Securities pursuant
to such Shelf Registration Statement during the Shelf Period, unless such action or omission is required by applicable
law and except as set forth in paragraph (c) below.  The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to meet (and
continue to meet) the registrant eligibility requirements of Form S-3 during the Shelf Period.
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(c)           The Company shall  not be required to effect a registration pursuant to Schedule III with respect to securities
that are not Registrable Securities and shall be entitled to postpone  the filing or initial effectiveness of, or suspend the
use of, a Shelf Registration Statement if the Company notifies  Subscriber in writing that in the good faith judgment of
the  Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company such registration, offering or use would
be  materially detrimental  to  the Company or any material transaction under consideration by the Company or would
require the disclosure of information that has not been, and is not otherwise required to be, disclosed to the public, the
premature disclosure of which would materially detrimental  to the Company.  No such postponement or suspension
shall exceed 60 consecutive days, no subsequent such postponement or suspension shall commence fewer than 15
days following the expiration of any preceding period, and the aggregate of all such postponements or suspensions
shall not exceed 150 days in any 360-day period. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Schedule III, but subject
to the obligations of the Company in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, the Registration Deadline shall be extended if, for
reasons beyond the reasonable control of the Company, any of the following (an “Interruption Event”) shall occur: (i)
the SEC refuses to declare the applicable Registration Statement effective; (ii) if after it has become effective, such
Registration Statement is interfered with by any stop order, injunction or other order or requirement of the SEC such
that the Registration Statement shall not be effective; or (iii) if the conditions to closing specified in the underwriting
agreement, if any, entered into in connection with such Registration Statement are not satisfied and are not otherwise
waived. If an Interruption Event occurs, the Registration Deadline shall automatically be extended until thirty (30)
days after all Interruption Events shall have ceased.

(d)           The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts so long as a Holder owns any Registrable Securities to file
the reports required to be filed by it under the Securities Act and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations adopted by the SEC thereunder, and it will take such further action
as Subscriber may reasonably request, all to the extent required from time to time to enable Subscriber to sell
Registrable Securities without registration under the Securities Act within the limitation of the exemptions provided
by (i) Rule 144 or 144A or Regulation S under the Securities Act, as such Rules may be amended from time to time,
or (ii) any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC.  Upon the written request of Subscriber, the
Company will deliver to Subscriber a written statement as to whether it has complied with such requirements and, if
not, the specifics thereof.

(e)           Subscriber shall, promptly on the Company’s request, (i) furnish to the Company such information regarding
Subscriber, the Registrable Securities held by Subscriber, the manner of holding any interests therein, and distribution
of such Registrable Securities, as the Company may from time to time reasonably request in writing, and (ii) provide
such consents as the Company may reasonably require with respect to disclosure of the content of the disclosures and
any identification of Subscriber or its Registrable Securities or the circumstances in which they are held. Subscriber
shall, upon receipt of any notice from the Company if  (i) the SEC requests any amendment or supplement to, or any
additional information in respect of, any Registration Statement or related prospectus, (ii) the SEC issues any stop
order suspending the effectiveness of a Registration Statement or initiates any proceedings for that purpose, (iii) the
Company receives any notice that the qualification of any Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction has been
suspended or that any proceeding has been initiated for the purpose of suspending such qualification, or (iv) upon the
discovery, or upon the occurrence of any event, which requires that any changes be made in such Registration
Statement or any related prospectus so that such Registration Statement or prospectus will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading, in light of the circumstances under which they were made (provided, however, that
in the case of this subclause (iv), such notice need only state that an event of such nature has occurred, without
describing such event), suspend the disposition of any Registrable Securities covered by such Registration Statement
or prospectus until Subscriber’s receipt of the copies of a supplemented or amended prospectus or until it is advised in
writing by the Company  that the use of the applicable prospectus may be resumed, and, if so directed by the
Company Subscriber will deliver to the Company all copies, other than permanent file copies, then in Subscriber’s
possession of any prospectus covering such Registrable Securities. If the Company shall have given any such notice

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

95



during a period when a Registration Statement is effective, the Registration Deadline shall be extended by the number
of days of such suspension period.
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(f)           All Registration Expenses incurred in connection with any registration, qualification or compliance under
this Schedule III shall be borne by the Company. All Selling Expenses incurred in connection with any registrations of
its Registrable Securities hereunder, shall be borne by Subscriber. Subscriber shall not use any free writing prospectus
(as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) in connection with the sale of Registrable Securities without the
prior written consent of the Company.

(g)                      (i)           Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, in connection with any
registration under this Schedule III, the Company shall, without limitation as to time, indemnify and hold harmless, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, Subscriber (and its officers, directors, agents, partners and employees, each person
who controls Subscriber (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act),
the officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of each such controlling person and any financial or investment
adviser) (each, an “Registration Indemnified Party”), to the fullest extent lawful, from and against any and all losses,
claims, damages, liabilities, actions or proceedings (whether commenced or threatened), reasonable out-of-pocket
costs (including, without limitation, reasonable costs of preparation and reasonable attorneys’ fees) and reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable expenses of investigation) (collectively, “Registration Losses”), as
incurred, arising out of or based upon  any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any
Registration Statement, prospectus (including the Shelf Prospectus) or form of prospectus or in any amendment or
supplements thereto or in any preliminary prospectus, or arising out of or based upon any omission or alleged
omission of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading,
except to the extent that the same arise out of or are based upon information furnished in writing to the Company by
or on behalf such Registration Indemnified Party or Subscriber expressly for use therein; provided, that the foregoing
indemnity agreement contained in this paragraph (g) with respect to such  Registration Statement or any preliminary,
final or summary prospectus contained therein or furnished by the Company, or any amendment or supplement
thereto, shall not inure to the benefit of any Registration Indemnified Party from whom the person asserting any such
losses, claims, damages or liabilities purchased Registrable Securities, where (A) prior to the written confirmation of
the sale of Registrable Securities to such person (the “Applicable Time”), the Company shall have notified such
Registration Indemnified Party in writing that such  Registration Statement or prospectus contains an untrue statement
of a material fact or omits to state therein a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein not
misleading, (B) such untrue statement or omission of a material fact was corrected in a further amendment or
supplement to such Registration Statement or prospectus and such Registration Statement or prospectus was provided
to such Registration Indemnified Party prior to the Applicable Time, (C) such corrected Registration Statement or
prospectus (excluding any document incorporated by reference therein) was not conveyed by the Registration
Indemnified Party to such person at or prior to the Applicable Time and (D) such loss, claim, damage or liability
would not have occurred had such corrected Registration Statement or prospectus (excluding any document
incorporated by reference therein) been conveyed to such person as provided for in clause (C) above. Each indemnity
and reimbursement of costs and expenses shall remain in full force and effect regardless of any investigation made by
or on behalf of such Registration Indemnified Party.

  (ii)           Subscriber agrees to, and the Company may require, as a condition to inluding any Registrable Securities
of Subscriber in any Registration Statement filed pursuant to this Schedule III or to entering into any underwriting
agreement with respect thereto, that the Company shall have received an undertaking reasonably satisfactory to it from
Subscriber and each underwriter named in any such underwriting agreement (each a “Company Indemnifying Party”),
severally and not jointly, to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, each of its directors, each of its officers who
have signed any Registration Statement and each person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of the
Securities Act and all other Holders of Registrable Securities (each, a “Company Indemnitee”), against any and all
Registration Losses, insofar as such Registration Losses arise out of or are based upon an untrue statement or alleged
untrue statement of a material fact contained in such Registration Statement, or any preliminary, final or summary
prospectus contained therein or furnished by the Company to Company Indemnifying Party, or arise out of or are
based upon the omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact necessary to make the statements therein
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not misleading, in each case to the extent, but only to the extent, that such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement
or omission or alleged omission was made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to
the Company or its representative by or on behalf the Company Indemnifying Party expressly for use therein.
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  (iii)           Promptly after receipt by a Registration Indemnified Party or Company Indemnitee (each, an “Indemnified
Party”) of written notice of the commencement of any action or proceeding with respect to which a claim for
indemnification may be made pursuant to this Section, such Indemnified Party will, if a claim in respect thereof is to
be made against, respectively, Company, on the one hand, or Subscriber, on the other hand (such person, the
“Indemnifying Party”), give written notice to the Indemnifying Party of the commencement of such action; provided,
however, that the failure of any Indemnified Party to give notice as provided herein shall not relieve the Indemnifying
Party of its or their obligations under this Section, except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is actually
materially prejudiced by such failure to give notice, and in no event shall such failure relieve the Indemnifying Party
from any other liability which it may have to such Indemnified Party. If any such claim or action shall be brought
against an Indemnified Party, and it shall notify the Indemnifying Party thereof, the Indemnifying Party shall be
entitled to participate therein, and, to the extent that it wishes, to assume the defense thereof with counsel reasonably
satisfactory to the Indemnified Party, and after notice from the Indemnifying Party to such Indemnified Party of its
election to assume the defense thereof, the Indemnifying Party shall not be liable to such Indemnified Party under this
Section for any legal or other expenses subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Party in connection with the
defense thereof, other than reasonable cost of investigation; provided, further, that if, in the Indemnified Party’s
reasonable judgment, a conflict of interest between the Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Party exists in respect
of such claim, then such Indemnified Party shall have the right to participate in the defense of such claim and to
employ one firm of attorneys at the Indemnifying Party’s expense to represent such Indemnified Party. No Indemnified
Party will consent to entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement without the Indemnifying Party’s written
consent to such judgment or settlement, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. No Indemnifying Party shall,
without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party, consent to entry of any judgment or enter into any
settlement in respect of which the Indemnified Party is or could have been a party and indemnity could have been
sought hereunder by such Indemnified Party, unless such settlement includes an unconditional release of such
Indemnified Party from all liability arising out of such claim or proceeding.

  (iv)           If the indemnification provided for in this Schedule III is unavailable to an Indemnified Party with respect
to any Registration Losses or is insufficient to hold such Indemnified Party harmless as contemplated therein, then the
Indemnifying Party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnified Party as a result of such
Registration Losses in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Indemnifying Party and the
Indemnified Party in connection with the statements or omissions that resulted in such Registration Losses, as well as
any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the Indemnifying Party and Indemnified Party shall
be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or
omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the Indemnifying Party or by
such Indemnified Party, and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or
prevent such statement or omission. The parties hereto agree that it would not be just and equitable if contributions
pursuant to this Schedule III  were determined by pro rata allocation or by any other method of allocation that does not
take account of the equitable considerations referred to in this Schedule III.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this
Schedule III , Subscriber shall not be required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which the dollar
amount of the proceeds received by it from the sale of any Registrable Securities (after deducting Selling
Expenses)  exceeds the amount of any damages which it has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue
or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission.  No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within
the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not
guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. Subscriber’s obligations in this Schedule III to contribute shall be several
in proportion to the principal amount of Registrable Securities registered or underwritten, as the case may be, by or on
behalf of it, and not joint.
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(h)           The agreements set forth in this Schedule III shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors
and assigns of each of the parties to the Agreement, including, without limitation and without the need for an express
assignment or assumption, direct and indirect transferees of Subscriber’s Registrable Securities to whom the
Registrable Securities have been validly transferred under the terms of the Agreement.  In furtherance, and not in
limitation, of the foregoing, the Company agrees that such direct and indirect transferees shall be third party
beneficiaries of the agreements set forth in this Schedule III, and each such direct or indirect transferee shall have the
right to enforce such agreements directly to the extent it deems such enforcement necessary or advisable to protect its
rights hereunder; provided, however, that such direct or indirect transferee fulfills all of its obligations hereunder.

(i)           The agreements set forth in this Schedule III shall survive any post-Closing termination of the Agreement
until the earlier of (i) three years from the Closing Date and (ii) the date on which Subscriber no longer owns any
Registrable Securities.  The indemnification obligations under paragraph (f) above shall survive any post-Closing
termination of the Agreement and/or this Schedule III.

As used herein, the following terms have the following meanings:

“Registrable Securities” means all shares of Voting Common Stock and Class B Non-Voting Stock (including the shares
of Voting Common Stock into which shares of Class B Non-Voting Stock are convertible in the event of a Widely
Disbursed Offering) issued by the Company in the Offering and any securities which may be issued or distributed in
respect thereof by way of stock dividend or stock split or other distribution, recapitalization or reclassification.  As to
any particular Registrable Securities, such Registrable Securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities when (i) a
registration statement with respect to the sale by a Holder thereof shall be or have been declared effective under the
Securities Act and such securities shall have been disposed of in accordance with such registration statement, (ii) such
securities shall have been sold to the public in compliance with Rule 144 under the Securities Act or (iii) such
securities shall have ceased to be outstanding.

“Registration Expenses” means all expenses incurred by the Company in effecting any registration pursuant to this
Schedule III (whether or not any registration or prospectus becomes effective or final) including all registration, filing
and listing fees, fees and disbursements of counsel for the Company, blue sky fees and expenses, and expenses of the
Company’s independent accountants (including a commercially reasonable comfort letter to the extent the Registrable
Securities are sold in an underwritten public offering), but shall not include Selling Expenses.

 “Registration Statement” means any registration statement of the Company under the Securities Act that permits the
public offering of any of the Registrable Securities and the Shelf Prospectus, amendments and supplements to such
registration statement, including post-effective amendments, all exhibits and all material incorporated by reference or
deemed to be incorporated by reference in such registration statement. No Registrable Securities may be registered
under more than one Registration Statement at any one time.
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“Selling Expenses” means all discounts, selling commissions, stock transfer taxes and fees and disbursements of counsel
for the Subscriber and/or any underwriter applicable to the sale of Registrable Securities.

“Shelf Prospectus” means the prospectus included in any Shelf Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented by
any prospectus supplement with respect to the terms of the offering of any portion of the Registrable Securities
covered by such Shelf Registration Statement and all other amendments and supplements to such prospectus,
including post-effective amendments, and all materials incorporated by reference in such prospectus.

“Shelf Registration Statement” means a Registration Statement of the Company filed with the SEC on either (a) Form
S-3 (or any successor form or other appropriate form under the Securities Act) or (b) if the Company is not permitted
to file a Registration Statement on Form S-3, an evergreen Registration Statement on Form S-1 (or any successor form
or other appropriate form under the Securities Act), in each case for an offering to be made on a continuous or delayed
basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act covering Registrable Securities.  To the extent that the Company
is a “well-known seasoned issuer” (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act), a “Shelf Registration Statement” shall
be deemed to refer to an automatic shelf registration statement (as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) on
Form S-3.
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ANNEX B

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT
AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR ANY
STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED IN THE
ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM UNDER SUCH ACT OR LAWS.

WARRANT

to Purchase Common Stock of

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.

Date: ______, 2010

This certifies that, for value received, TCW Shared Opportunity Fund V, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“TCW”),
together with its registered assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled to purchase, in the aggregate, up to Two Hundred Forty
Thousand (240,000) fully paid and nonassessable shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock,
par value $0.01 per share (the “Class B Common Stock”), of First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc. a Maryland corporation (the
“Company”), during the Warrant Exercise Period, at the Exercise Price.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Warrant
shall be exercisable for, in lieu of shares of Class B Common Stock, shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per
share (the “Voting Common Stock”, and collectively, with the Class B Common Stock, the “Common Stock”) in
accordance with terms of Section 7 hereof, and, in such event, the term “Warrant Shares” shall be deemed to include
such shares of Voting Common Stock for all purposes hereunder.  This Warrant is being granted in connection with
the Subscription Agreement, dated as of July [19], 2010 between TCW and the Company (the “Subscription
Agreement”).  This Warrant and the Warrant Shares are entitled to the benefits of the registration rights set forth on
Schedule 5.3 attached to the Subscription Agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”).

This Warrant is subject to the following terms and conditions:

1.  Exercisability of Warrant. Subject to the terms of this Warrant, the Holder hereof shall be entitled to exercise the
Warrant, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time during the Warrant Exercise Period.  This Warrant
shall expire and no longer be exercisable as to any Warrant Share for which the Warrant has not been exercised on or
prior to 5:00 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date in respect of such Warrant Shares, and all rights hereunder
with respect to such Warrant Shares shall thereupon cease.

2.  Method of Exercise.

(a)    Subject to Section 1 hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder, in whole or in part, during the Warrant
Exercise Period by (i) the payment in cash, wire transfer or certified or bank cashier’s check to the Company of the
Exercise Price in respect of the Warrant Shares being purchased (which payment may also take the form of a “cashless
exercise” in accordance with Section 2(e) below if so indicated on the Form of Subscription) and (ii) delivery (via
facsimile or otherwise) to the Company of the Form of Subscription attached hereto.   If the original Warrant is not
surrendered, properly endorsed, at the principal office of the Company concurrent with the delivery of the Form of
Subscription attached hereto, the Holder will, as promptly as reasonably practicable (and in any event within five (5)
business days following such date of delivery), deliver, or cause to be delivered, the original Warrant, properly
endorsed, to the Company.
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(b)    Each exercise of this Warrant shall be deemed to have been effected immediately prior to the close of business
on the business day on which (i) the Company shall have received payment of the Exercise Price in respect of the
Warrant Shares being purchased (other than payment in the form of a “cashless exercise” in accordance with Section
2(e) below) and (ii) the Company shall have received the Form of Subscription attached hereto, all as provided in this
Section 2, and the person entitled to receive the Warrant Shares being purchased shall be treated for all purposes as the
holder of record of such shares as of the close of business on such date.

(c)    In the event of any exercise of this Warrant, Warrant Shares so purchased shall be delivered in book-entry form
through the facilities of The Depositary Trust Company at the Company’s expense to the Holder or its designee
promptly after the Warrant shall have been so exercised, and such shares shall be free of restrictive legends unless (i) a
registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder is not then effective and (ii) the Warrant
Shares are not eligible for re-sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), without regard to the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information
required under Rule 144 as to such shares and without regard to volume or manner-of-sale restrictions.

(d)    Upon surrender of this Warrant following one or more partial exercises, unless this Warrant has expired, a new
Warrant of like tenor representing the number of Warrant Shares, if any, with respect to which this Warrant shall not
then have been exercised, shall be issued to the Holder promptly thereafter.  Any such new Warrant shall have an
issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, which is the same as the date set forth above.

(e)    Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Holder may satisfy its obligation to pay the
Exercise Price through a “cashless exercise,” in which event the Company shall issue to the Holder the number of
Warrant Shares determined as follows:

X = Y [(A-B)/A]
where:

X = the number of Warrant Shares to be issued to the Holder.

Y = the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this
Warrant is being exercised.

A = the Fair Market Value (as defined herein) of a share of
Voting Common Stock as of the Exercise Date.

B = the Exercise Price.
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For purposes of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the
Warrant Shares issued in a cashless exercise transaction shall be deemed to have been acquired by the Holder, and the
holding period for the Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have commenced, on the date this Warrant was originally
issued (provided that such treatment is proper under Rule 144 and any related interpretive positions of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, each as in effect at the time of such exercise).

3.     Due Authorization and Issuance; Reservation of Shares. The Company covenants and agrees that any and all of
the Warrant Shares issued to the Holder in accordance with the terms hereof will, upon issuance, be duly authorized,
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free from all preemptive rights of any Person and free and clear of all
taxes, liens and charges with respect to such issuance. The Company will take all such action as may be necessary to
assure that such Warrant Shares may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or
regulation. The Company further covenants and agrees that during the Warrant Exercise Period, the Company will at
all times have authorized and reserved for the purpose of the issue upon the exercise of this Warrant, at least the
maximum number of Warrant Shares as are then issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant.

4.     Anti-Dilution Adjustments.

The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant may be exercised are subject to
adjustment from time to time upon the occurrence of the events set forth in this Section 4.  For purposes of this
Section 4, “Common Stock” means shares now or hereafter authorized of any class of common stock of the Company
and any other stock of the Company, however designated, that has the right (subject to any prior rights of any class or
series of preferred stock) to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of the Company without limit as to
per share amount.

(a)    Stock Dividends — Split-Ups.  If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4(f) hereof, the
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is increased by a stock dividend payable in shares of Common Stock,
or by a split-up of shares of Common Stock, or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such stock dividend,
split-up or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of this Warrant shall be
increased in proportion to such increase in outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(b)   Aggregation of Shares.  If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4(f) hereof, the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or
reclassification of shares of Common Stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation,
combination, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on
exercise of each Warrant shall be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(c)   Adjustments for Other Distributions.  If the Company distributes to all holders of its Common Stock any of its
assets (including cash, and including ordinary cash dividends) or debt securities or any rights, options or warrants to
purchase debt securities, assets or other securities of the Company (other than Common Stock), the Exercise Price
shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:
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P’ = P ÷ M/(M-F)
where:

P’ = the Exercise Price immediately following the adjustment
to the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 4(c).

P = the Exercise Price immediately preceding the adjustment
to the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 4(c).

M = the Last Reported Sales Price (as defined herein) per
share of Voting Common Stock on the business day
immediately preceding the Announcement Date.

F = the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the
Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) on
the Announcement Date for such distribution of the assets,
securities, options, rights or warrants distributable to one
share of Common Stock after taking into account, in the case
of any rights, options or warrants, the consideration required
to be paid upon exercise thereof.

The adjustment shall be made successively whenever any such distribution is made and shall become effective
immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such distribution.  

This subsection (c) does not apply to any dividends or distributions made in connection with, or as part of any of the
actions contemplated by Section 4(a), 4(b) or 4(d). If any adjustment is made pursuant to this subsection (c) as a result
of the issuance of rights, options or warrants and at the end of the period during which any such rights, options or
warrants are exercisable, not all such rights, options or warrants shall have been exercised, the Warrant shall be
immediately readjusted as if “F” in the above formula was the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the
Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) on the dividend date for such distribution of the indebtedness
or assets actually distributed upon exercise of such rights, options or warrants divided by the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding on the dividend date for such distribution.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in this subsection (c), but subject to any other agreements between the Company and Holder, if “M-F” in the
above formula is less than $1.00, the Company shall, in lieu of the adjustment otherwise required by this subsection
(c), distribute to the Holder, upon exercise of the Warrant, the evidences of indebtedness, assets, rights, options or
warrants (or the proceeds thereof) which would have been distributed to the Holder had the Warrant been exercised
immediately prior to the record date for such distribution.
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(d)   Reorganization, Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Disposition of Assets.  In case the Company shall
reorganize its capital, reclassify its capital stock, consolidate or merge with or into another corporation (where the
Company is not the surviving corporation or where there is any change whatsoever in, or distribution with respect to,
the outstanding Common Stock of the Company), or sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its
property, assets or business to another corporation and, pursuant to the terms of such reorganization, reclassification,
merger, consolidation or disposition of assets, (i) shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or
of the Company (if it is the surviving corporation) or (ii) any cash, shares of stock or other securities, assets, property
or indebtedness of any nature whatsoever (including warrants or other subscription or purchase rights) in addition to
or in lieu of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation (“Other Property”) are to be received by or
distributed to the holders of Common Stock of the Company who are holders immediately prior to such transaction,
then the Holder of this Warrant shall have the right thereafter to receive, upon exercise of this Warrant the number of
shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation,
and Other Property receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or
disposition of assets by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable
immediately prior to such event.  In the event of receipt of shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring
corporation or of the Company and Other Property, the aggregate Exercise Price otherwise payable for the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be allocated among the shares of common stock and
Other Property receivable as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of
assets in proportion to the respective fair market values of such shares of common stock and Other Property as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution.  In case of any such
reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets, the successor or acquiring corporation
(if other than the Company) shall expressly assume the due and punctual observance and performance of each and
every covenant and condition of this Warrant to be performed and observed by the Company and all the obligations
and liabilities hereunder, subject to such modifications as may be reasonably deemed appropriate (as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) in order to provide for adjustments of any
shares of the common stock of such successor or acquiring corporation for which this Warrant thus becomes
exercisable, with modifications which shall be as equivalent as practicable to the adjustments provided for in this
Section 4.  For purposes of this Section 4(d), “common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation” shall include
stock of such corporation of any class that is not preferred as to dividends or assets over any other class of stock of
such corporation and that is not subject to redemption and shall also include any evidences of indebtedness, shares of
stock or other securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for any such stock, either immediately or upon the
arrival of a specified date or the happening of a specified event and any warrants or other rights to subscribe for or
purchase any such stock.  The foregoing provisions of this Section 4(d) shall similarly apply to successive
reorganizations, reclassification, mergers, consolidations or disposition of assets and shall apply to any securities to be
received as a result of the foregoing.

(e)   Adjustments To Exercise Price.  Whenever the number of Warrant Shares is adjusted, as provided in this Section
4, the Exercise Price shall be adjusted (to the nearest cent) by multiplying such Exercise Price immediately prior to
such adjustment by a fraction (i) the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable
upon the exercise of this Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment, and (ii) the denominator of which shall be the
number of shares of Common Stock so purchasable immediately thereafter.

(f)    Fractional Interests.  Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Warrant, the Company shall not issue
fractional shares upon exercise of this Warrant. If, by reason of any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 4, the
Holder would be entitled, upon the exercise of this Warrant, to receive a fractional interest in a share, the Company
shall, upon such exercise, round up or down to the nearest whole number of the shares of Common Stock to be issued
to the Holder.

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

107



B-5

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

108



(g)  When De Minimis Adjustment May be Deferred. No adjustment of the Exercise Price need be made unless the
adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1.0% in the Exercise Price. Any adjustments that are not
made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. All calculations under this
Section 4 shall be made to the nearest cent or to the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be.

(h)  Notice of Adjustment. Whenever any Exercise Price is adjusted, the Company, at its own expense, shall as
promptly as reasonably practicable cause its Chief Financial Officer (or similar officer) to compute such adjustment
and prepare a certificate setting forth such adjustment (including a statement of the adjusted Exercise Price and
adjusted number or type of Warrant Shares or other securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant, as applicable),
setting forth in reasonable detail the acts requiring such adjustment, and stating such other facts as shall be necessary
to show the manner and figures used to compute such adjustment.  As promptly as reasonably practicable (but in no
event more than 10 days) after each such adjustment, the Company shall give a copy of such certificate by certified
mail to the Holder.

(i)   Notice of Certain Transactions. If the Company proposes to take any action that would require an adjustment in
the Exercise Price pursuant to subsections (a), (b), (c) or (d) of this Section 4, or there is a proposal for any liquidation
or dissolution of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall deliver to the Holder a notice stating the
proposed record date for a dividend or distribution or the proposed effective or consummation date of a subdivision,
combination, reclassification, consolidation, merger, transfer, lease, liquidation or dissolution. The Company shall
deliver the notice at least 10 days before such date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall only be
required to deliver such notice if and to the extent the delivery of such notice would not result in the dissemination of
material, non-public information to the Holder.  Failure to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not affect the
legality or validity of any such action.

(j)   When Adjustment Not Required. If the Company shall take a record of the holders of its Shares for the purpose of
entitling them to receive a dividend or distribution or subscription or purchase rights and shall, thereafter and before
the distribution to shareholders thereof, legally abandon its plan to pay or deliver such dividend, distribution,
subscription or purchase rights, then thereafter no adjustment shall be required by reason of the taking of such record
and any such adjustment previously made in respect thereof shall be rescinded and annulled.

5.    No Shareholder Rights. Nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as conferring upon the Holder any
rights as a shareholder of the Company (except to the extent that this Warrant has been duly exercised or such Holder
otherwise owns any Warrant Shares) or as imposing any liabilities on such Holder to purchase any securities or as a
shareholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors or shareholders of
the Company or otherwise.
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6.    Transferability. The Holder understands, acknowledges and agrees that this Warrant and the Warrant Shares into
which they are exercisable have not been, and the Warrant and the Warrant Shares into which they are exercisable
(except as may be set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement with respect to the Warrant Shares) will not be,
registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws, and may only be sold, offered for sale, pledged,
hypothecated, transferred, assigned or otherwise disposed of in compliance with the then applicable resale
requirements of the Securities Act.  Subject to the provisions of this Section 6, this Warrant is transferable, in whole or
in part, when the Holder shall surrender this Warrant with a properly executed assignment, in the form attached
hereto, to the Company at its principal office (or any other such office or agency as identified by the Company)
whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver, upon the order of the Holder, a new Warrant, registered as
the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the
Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new
Warrant to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

7.    Exercise for Shares of Voting Common Stock.  This Warrant shall become exercisable for shares of Voting
Common Stock in lieu of shares of Class B Common Stock, subject to the last sentence of this Section 7, (a) at the
election of the initial Holder, TCW, from time to time if, at such time, TCW owns less than 4.99% of the aggregate
outstanding shares of Voting Common Stock as a result of dilution (i.e., not as a result of transfers by TCW) after the
date of this Warrant, or (b) if, and to the extent, this Warrant (or any portion hereof) is transferred by the initial Holder
hereof, TCW, in a Widely Dispersed Offering.  A “Widely Dispersed Offering” is (x) a widespread public distribution,
including pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act; (y) a transfer in which no transferee (or group of associated
transferees) would receive more than two percent (2%) of any class of securities of the Company then entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (“Voting Securities”) (including for this purpose the Warrant Shares on an
as-exercised basis) or (z) a transfer to a transferee that would control more than fifty percent (50%) of the Voting
Securities of the Company without any transfer by the Holder hereof.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein, this Warrant shall only be exercisable into that number of shares of Voting Common Stock in lieu of
shares of Class B Common Stock such that, upon exercise, the registered holder, acting alone or together with any
other Person that might be affiliated with such registered holder, or that may be deemed to be acting in concert with
such registered holder pursuant to 12 C.F.R. Part 574 would not beneficially own more than 4.99% of the aggregate
outstanding shares of Voting Common Stock.

8.    Modification and Waiver. This Warrant and any provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or
terminated only by an instrument in writing signed by the party against which enforcement of the same is sought.

9.    Notices. Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder or the
Company shall be delivered, or shall be sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, to the Holder at TCW
Shared Opportunity Fund V, L.P., 11100 Santa Monica Blvd., Suite 2000, Los Angeles, CA 90025, Attn: Mr. Chad
Brownstein, or, if different, its address as shown on the books of the Company, or to the Company at 610 Bay Blvd.,
Chula Vista, California 91910, Attn: Hans R. Ganz, President and Chief Executive Officer, or at such other address as
the Company may hereafter designate.

10.  Descriptive Headings and Governing Law. The descriptive headings of the several paragraphs of this Warrant are
inserted for convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Warrant. This Warrant shall be construed and
enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the laws of the State of New York.
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11.   Lost Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction, or
mutilation of this Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction upon receipt of reasonable and
customary indemnity, or in the case of any such mutilation upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant, the
Company will make and deliver a new Warrant in lieu of the lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant.  Any such
new Warrant shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, which is the same as the date
set forth above.

12.  Obligations and Remedies.  The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver Warrant Shares in accordance with
the terms of this Warrant are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder to
enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against
any Person or any action to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or
any breach or alleged breach by the Holder or any other Person of any obligation to the Company (other than the
obligation under Section 2(a) to pay or otherwise satisfy the total Exercise Price) or any violation or alleged violation
of law by the Holder or any other Person, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such
obligation of the Company to the Holder in connection with the issuance of Warrant Shares.  Nothing herein shall
limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without
limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely
deliver shares of Common Stock (whether via physical certificates or electronically, as appropriate) upon exercise of
the Warrant.

13.  Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for shares of Common Stock upon exercise of
this Warrant shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, transfer agent fee or other
incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificates, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid
by the Company; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in
respect of any transfer involved in the registration of any certificates for Warrant Shares or Warrants in a name other
than that of the Holder.  The Holder shall be responsible for all other tax liability that may arise as a result of holding
or transferring this Warrant or receiving Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, or reselling or otherwise
transferring the Warrant Shares to third parties.

14.  Dispute Resolution.  In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Fair Market Value
or the Last Reported Sale Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company shall submit the
disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within two business days of receipt of the Form of
Subscription giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder.  If the Holder and the Company are unable
to agree upon such determination or calculation of the Exercise Price, Fair Market Value, the Last Reported Sale Price
or the Warrant Shares within three business days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being
submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within two business days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed
determination of the Exercise Price, the Fair Market Value or the Last Reported Sale Price to an independent,
reputable investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic
calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant.  The Company shall cause at its
expense the investment bank or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and
notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten business days from the time it receives the disputed
determinations or calculations.  Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may
be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
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15.   Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings given to them below:

“Announcement Date” shall mean the day on which a distribution described in Section 4(c) is announced to the general
public.

“Exercise Price” shall mean $11.00 per Warrant Share, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.

“Expiration Date” shall mean the fifth anniversary of the date hereof.

“Fair Market Value” means the fair market value of a share of Voting Common Stock as of a particular date, as
determined in accordance with the following:

(i)     if the Voting Common Stock is listed or admitted for trading on a national securities exchange, the average of
the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior to (but
excluding) the date in question; or

(ii)    if the foregoing clause (i) does not apply and the Voting Common Stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board,
the average of the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior
to (but excluding) the date in question; or

(iii)   if the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) do not apply and the Voting Common Stock is quoted in the over-the-counter
market as reported in the “pink sheets”, the average of the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock for the five
consecutive trading days immediately prior to (but excluding) the date in question; or

(iv)   if the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply and actual transactions in the Voting Common Stock are
reported through The PORTAL Market, which is operated by the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., the last sale price of the
Voting Common Stock on such system immediately prior to (but excluding) the date in question (provided such last
sale price was not on a trading day in excess of 10 trading days prior to the date in question); or

(v)    if the Fair Market Value cannot be calculated on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Fair Market
Value on such date shall be the fair market value of a share of Voting Common Stock as mutually determined by the
Company and the Holder.  If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of a share of
Voting Common Stock under this clause (v), then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 14.

All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination or other
similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

“Last Reported Sales Price” of the Voting Common Stock on any particular date means:
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(i)     if the Voting Common Stock is listed or admitted for trading on a national securities exchange, the last reported
sale price reported on the date in question in the composite transactions for the exchange on which the Voting
Common Stock is so listed; or

(ii)    if the foregoing clause (i) does not apply and the Voting Common Stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board,
the last quoted bid price on the date in question in the over-the-counter market as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board;
or

(iii)   if the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) do not apply and the Voting Common Stock is quoted in the over-the-counter
market as reported in the “pink sheets”, the last quoted bid price on the date in question; or

(iv)   if the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply and actual transactions in the Voting Common Stock are
reported through The PORTAL Market, which is operated by the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., the last sale price of the
Voting Common Stock that is so reported on the date in question; or

(v)    if the Last Reported Sales Price cannot be calculated for the Voting Common Stock on a particular date on any
of the foregoing bases, the Last Reported Sales Price of the Voting Common Stock on such date shall be as mutually
determined by the Company and the Holder.  If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the Last
Reported Sales Price of the Voting Common Stock under this clause (v), then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant
to Section 14.

 “Person” shall be construed broadly and shall include, without limitation, an individual, a partnership, a limited liability
company, a corporation, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization
and a governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Shares” means shares of Common Stock.

“Warrant Exercise Period” shall mean the period beginning on the date hereof and ending on the Expiration Date.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed and issued by its officers
thereunto duly authorized as of the date first written above.

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.

By:
Hans R. Ganz
President and Chief Executive Officer
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FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION

(to be signed only upon payment of the Exercise Price

pursuant to the Warrant)

To the Company:
1.           The undersigned, the holder of the within Warrant, hereby irrevocably elects to purchase ___ shares of
Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Warrant.

2.           Form of Exercise Price.  The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as (check
applicable ones):

____________ a “Cash Exercise” with respect to _________________
Warrant Shares; and/or

____________ a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to _______________
Warrant Shares.

3.           Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the Holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or
all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant hereto, the Holder shall pay the aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of
$___________________ to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

4.           Delivery of Warrant Shares.  The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified
below, __________ Warrant Shares (__________ shares of Voting Common Stock and __________ shares of Class B
Common Stock) in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depositary Trust Company in accordance with the
terms of the Warrant.

_______________________
_______________________
_______________________

The undersigned represents (i) that it has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that it is
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Common Stock; and (ii) that it can bear the
economic risk of its investment in the Common Stock and can afford to lose its entire investment in the Common
Stock. The undersigned agrees that the Common Stock may not be sold, transferred, offered for sale, pledged,
hypothecated or otherwise disposed of without registration under the Securities Act, except pursuant to an exemption
from such act.

The undersigned represents that it has tendered payment for such shares of Common Stock to the Company in the
form indicated above.

If the number of shares of Common Stock purchased is less than all of the Warrant Shares evidenced hereby, and the
undersigned is surrendering the Warrant in connection with the exercise hereof, the undersigned requests that a new
Warrant representing the remaining shares of Common Stock subject to the Warrant be issued and delivered to the
undersigned.
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If the original Warrant is not surrendered in connection with the exercise hereof:  (i) the undersigned represents that it
has not sold, assigned, pledged, transferred, hypothecated, or otherwise disposed of the original Warrant or any
interest therein or represented thereby and hereby agrees to fully and forever indemnify and hold harmless the
Company and each of its successors, assigns and affiliates from any loss, cost, damages or expense (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever it may hereinafter suffer or incur in connection with or as
a result of the undersigned’s failure to surrender the original Warrant in connection with such exercise; and (ii) the
undersigned will as promptly as reasonably practicable after the delivery of this Subscription to the Company (and in
any event within five (5) business days),  deliver, or cause to be delivered, the original Warrant to the Company.

DATED:
(Signature must conform in all
respects to name of holder as
specified on the face of the Warrant)

(Address)
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FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, the holder of the attached Warrant, hereby sells, assigns and transfers all
of the rights of the undersigned under the attached Warrant with respect to [______] Warrant Shares purchasable
under the Warrant unto:

Name of Assignee  Address

(Signature must conform in
all
respects to name of holder
as
specified on the face of the
Warrant)

[_____________________]

By:
Name:
Title:
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ANNEX C

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT
AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR ANY
STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED IN THE
ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM UNDER SUCH ACT OR LAWS.

WARRANT

to Purchase Common Stock of

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.

Date: ______, 2010

This certifies that, for value received, COR Advisors LLC (“Cor Advisors”), a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Holder”), is entitled to purchase, in the aggregate, up to 1,560,000.00 fully
paid and nonassessable shares (the “Warrant Shares”) of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share
(the “Class B Common Stock”) of First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc. a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), during the
Warrant Exercise Period, at the Exercise Price.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Warrant shall be exercisable for,
in lieu of shares of Class B Common Stock, shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Voting Common
Stock”, and collectively, with the Class B Common Stock, the “Common Stock”) in accordance with terms of Section 7
hereof, and, in such event, the term “Warrant Shares” shall be deemed to include such shares of Voting Common Stock
for all purposes hereunder.  This Warrant is being granted in connection with the Amended and Restated Consulting
and Expense Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2010 between Cor Advisors, the Company and Pacific Trust Bank (the
“Consulting Agreement”).  This Warrant is entitled to the benefits of the registration rights set forth in Annex III of the
Consulting Agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”).

This Warrant is subject to the following terms and conditions:

1.          Vesting; Exercisability of Warrant. Subject to the terms of this Warrant, the Holder hereof shall be entitled to
exercise the Warrant, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time during the Warrant Exercise Period;
provided, however that the total number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder will be entitled to upon exercise of
this Warrant on any date will be equal to (a) the aggregate of the Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of this
Warrant as of such date pursuant to the Vesting Schedule set forth on Exhibit A hereto (the “Vesting Schedule”) minus
(b) the sum of (i) the total number of Warrant Shares previously issued upon exercise of this Warrant, and (ii) the total
number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant shall have expired pursuant to the final sentence of this
Section 1; provided, further, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the consummation of a transaction or
series of related transactions that constitutes a Change of Control of the Company, this Warrant shall immediately
prior to such consummation (and thereafter) become exercisable for a total number of Warrant Shares equal to (a)
1,560,000.00 Warrant Shares minus (b) the sum of (i) the total number of Warrant Shares previously issued upon
exercise of this Warrant, and (ii) the total number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant shall have
expired pursuant to the final sentence of this Section 1; and provided, further, that at any time prior to the Final
Expiration Date, the Board of Directors of the Company may elect to accelerate the Vesting Schedule in whole or in
part.  This Warrant shall expire and no longer be exercisable as to any Warrant Share for which the Warrant has not
been exercised on or prior to 5:00 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date in respect of such Warrant Shares, and
all rights hereunder with respect to such Warrant Share shall thereupon cease.
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2. Method of Exercise.

(a)        Subject to Section 1 hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder, in whole or in part, during the
Warrant Exercise Period by (i) the payment in cash, wire transfer or certified or bank cashier’s check to the Company
of the Exercise Price in respect of the Warrant Shares being purchased (which payment may also take the form of a
“cashless exercise” in accordance with Section 2(e) below if so indicated on the Form of Subscription) and (ii) delivery
(via facsimile or otherwise) to the Company of the Form of Subscription attached hereto.   If the original Warrant is
not surrendered, properly endorsed, at the principal office of the Company concurrent with the delivery of the Form of
Subscription attached hereto, the Holder will, as promptly as reasonably practicable (and in any event within five (5)
business days following such date of delivery), deliver, or cause to be delivered, the original Warrant, properly
endorsed, to the Company.

(b)        Each exercise of this Warrant shall be deemed to have been effected immediately prior to the close of business
on the business day on which (i) the Company shall have received payment of the Exercise Price in respect of the
Warrant Shares being purchased (other than payment in the form of a “cashless exercise” in accordance with Section
2(e) below) and (ii) the Company shall have received the Form of Subscription attached hereto, all as provided in this
Section 2, and the person entitled to receive the Warrant Shares being purchased shall be treated for all purposes as the
holder of record of such shares as of the close of business on such date.

(c)        In the event of any exercise of this Warrant, Warrant Shares so purchased shall be delivered in book-entry
form through the facilities of The Depositary Trust Company at the Company’s expense to the Holder or its designee
promptly after the Warrant shall have been so exercised, and such shares shall be free of restrictive legends unless (i) a
registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder is not then effective and (ii) the Warrant
Shares are not eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), without regard to the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information
required under Rule 144 as to such shares and without regard to volume or manner-of-sale restrictions.

(d)        Upon surrender of this Warrant following one or more partial exercises, unless this Warrant has expired, a
new Warrant of like tenor representing the number of Warrant Shares, if any, with respect to which this Warrant shall
not then have been exercised, shall be issued to the Holder promptly thereafter.  Any such new Warrant shall have an
issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, which is the same as the date set forth above.
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(e)        Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Holder may satisfy its obligation to pay the
Exercise Price through a “cashless exercise,” in which event the Company shall issue to the Holder the number of
Warrant Shares determined as follows:

X = Y [(A-B)/A]
where:

X = the number of Warrant Shares to be issued to the Holder.

Y = the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this
Warrant is being exercised.

A = the Fair Market Value (as defined herein) of a share of
Voting Common Stock as of the Exercise Date.

B = the Exercise Price.

For purposes of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the
Warrant Shares issued in a cashless exercise transaction shall be deemed to have been acquired by the Holder, and the
holding period for the Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have commenced, on the date this Warrant was originally
issued (provided that such treatment is proper under Rule 144 and any related interpretive positions of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, each as in effect at the time of such exercise).

3.          Due Authorization and Issuance; Reservation of Shares. The Company covenants and agrees that any and all
of the Warrant Shares issued to the Holder in accordance with the terms hereof will, upon issuance, be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free from all preemptive rights of any Person and free and
clear of all taxes, liens and charges with respect to such issuance. The Company will take all such action as may be
necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law
or regulation. The Company further covenants and agrees that during the Warrant Exercise Period, the Company will
at all times have authorized and reserved for the purpose of the issue upon the exercise of this Warrant, at least the
maximum number of Warrant Shares as are then issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant.

4.          Anti-Dilution Adjustments.

The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant may be exercised (for the avoidance of
doubt, including with respect to Warrant Shares that are not yet exercisable pursuant to the Vesting Schedule) are
subject to adjustment from time to time upon the occurrence of the events set forth in this Section 4.  For purposes of
this Section 4, “Common Stock” means shares now or hereafter authorized of any class of common stock of the
Company and any other stock of the Company, however designated, that has the right (subject to any prior rights of
any class or series of preferred stock) to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of the Company
without limit as to per share amount.
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(a)        Stock Dividends — Split-Ups.  If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4(f) hereof, the
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is increased by a stock dividend payable in shares of Common Stock,
or by a split-up of shares of Common Stock, or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such stock dividend,
split-up or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of this Warrant (for the
avoidance of doubt, including with respect to Warrant Shares that are not yet exercisable pursuant to the Vesting
Schedule)  shall be increased in proportion to such increase in outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(b)       Aggregation of Shares.  If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4(f) hereof, the number
of outstanding shares of Common Stock is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or
reclassification of shares of Common Stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation,
combination, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on
exercise of each Warrant (for the avoidance of doubt, including with respect to Warrant Shares that are not yet
exercisable pursuant to the Vesting Schedule) shall be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares
of Common Stock.

(c)        Adjustments for Other Distributions.  If the Company distributes to all holders of its Common Stock any of its
assets (including cash, and including ordinary cash dividends) or debt securities or any rights, options or warrants to
purchase debt securities, assets or other securities of the Company (other than Common Stock), the Exercise Price
shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

P’ = P ÷ M/(M-F)
where:

P’ = the Exercise Price immediately following the adjustment
to the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 4(c).

P = the Exercise Price immediately preceding the adjustment
to the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 4(c).

M = the Last Reported Sales Price (as defined herein) per
share of Voting Common Stock on the business day
immediately preceding the Announcement Date.

F = the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the
Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) on
the Announcement Date for such distribution of the assets,
securities, options, rights or warrants distributable to one
share of Common Stock after taking into account, in the case
of any rights, options or warrants, the consideration required
to be paid upon exercise thereof.
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The adjustment shall be made successively whenever any such distribution is made and shall become effective
immediately prior to the ex-dividend date for such distribution.  

This subsection (c) does not apply to any dividends or distributions made in connection with, or as part of any of the
actions contemplated by Section 4(a), 4(b) or 4(d). If any adjustment is made pursuant to this subsection (c) as a result
of the issuance of rights, options or warrants and at the end of the period during which any such rights, options or
warrants are exercisable, not all such rights, options or warrants shall have been exercised, the Warrant shall be
immediately readjusted as if “F” in the above formula was the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the
Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) on the dividend date for such distribution of the indebtedness
or assets actually distributed upon exercise of such rights, options or warrants divided by the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding on the dividend date for such distribution.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in this subsection (c), but subject to any other agreements between the Company and Holder, if “M-F” in the
above formula is less than $1.00, the Company shall, in lieu of the adjustment otherwise required by this subsection
(c), distribute to the Holder, upon exercise of the Warrant, the evidences of indebtedness, assets, rights, options or
warrants (or the proceeds thereof) which would have been distributed to the Holder had the Warrant been exercisable
and exercised immediately prior to the record date for such distribution.

(d)        Reorganization, Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Disposition of Assets.  In case the Company shall
reorganize its capital, reclassify its capital stock, consolidate or merge with or into another corporation (where the
Company is not the surviving corporation or where there is any change whatsoever in, or distribution with respect to,
the outstanding Common Stock of the Company), or sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its
property, assets or business to another corporation and, pursuant to the terms of such reorganization, reclassification,
merger, consolidation or disposition of assets, (i) shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or
of the Company (if it is the surviving corporation) or (ii) any cash, shares of stock or other securities, assets, property
or indebtedness of any nature whatsoever (including warrants or other subscription or purchase rights) in addition to
or in lieu of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation (“Other Property”) are to be received by or
distributed to the holders of Common Stock of the Company who are holders immediately prior to such transaction,
then the Holder of this Warrant shall have the right thereafter to receive, upon exercise of this Warrant the number of
shares of common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation,
and Other Property receivable upon or as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or
disposition of assets by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable
immediately prior to such event (for the avoidance of doubt, including with respect to Warrant Shares that are not yet
exercisable pursuant to the Vesting Schedule).  In the event of receipt of shares of common stock of the successor or
acquiring corporation or of the Company and Other Property, the aggregate Exercise Price otherwise payable for the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be allocated among the shares of common stock
and Other Property receivable as a result of such reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition
of assets in proportion to the respective fair market values of such shares of common stock and Other Property as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution.  In case of any such
reorganization, reclassification, merger, consolidation or disposition of assets, the successor or acquiring corporation
(if other than the Company) shall expressly assume the due and punctual observance and performance of each and
every covenant and condition of this Warrant to be performed and observed by the Company and all the obligations
and liabilities hereunder, subject to such modifications as may be reasonably deemed appropriate (as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors and evidenced by a board resolution) in order to provide for adjustments of any
shares of the common stock of such successor or acquiring corporation for which this Warrant thus becomes
exercisable, with modifications which shall be as equivalent as practicable to the adjustments provided for in this
Section 4.  For purposes of this Section 4(d), “common stock of the successor or acquiring corporation” shall include
stock of such corporation of any class that is not preferred as to dividends or assets over any other class of stock of
such corporation and that is not subject to redemption and shall also include any evidences of indebtedness, shares of
stock or other securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for any such stock, either immediately or upon the
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arrival of a specified date or the happening of a specified event and any warrants or other rights to subscribe for or
purchase any such stock.  The foregoing provisions of this Section 4(d) shall similarly apply to successive
reorganizations, reclassification, mergers, consolidations or disposition of assets and shall apply to any securities to be
received as a result of the foregoing.
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(e)        Adjustments To Exercise Price.  Whenever the number of Warrant Shares is adjusted, as provided in this
Section 4, the Exercise Price shall be adjusted (to the nearest cent) by multiplying such Exercise Price immediately
prior to such adjustment by a fraction (i) the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment, and (ii) the denominator of which
shall be the number of shares of Common Stock so purchasable immediately thereafter.

(f)         Fractional Interests.  Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Warrant, the Company shall not issue
fractional shares upon exercise of this Warrant. If, by reason of any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 4, the
Holder would be entitled, upon the exercise of this Warrant, to receive a fractional interest in a share, the Company
shall, upon such exercise, round up or down to the nearest whole number of the shares of Common Stock to be issued
to the Holder.

(g)        When De Minimis Adjustment May be Deferred. No adjustment of the Exercise Price need be made unless the
adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1.0% in the Exercise Price. Any adjustments that are not
made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. All calculations under this
Section 4 shall be made to the nearest cent or to the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be.

(h)        Notice of Adjustment. Whenever any Exercise Price is adjusted, the Company, at its own expense, shall as
promptly as reasonably practicable cause its Chief Financial Officer (or similar officer) to compute such adjustment
and prepare a certificate setting forth such adjustment (including a statement of the adjusted Exercise Price and
adjusted number or type of Warrant Shares or other securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant, as applicable),
setting forth in reasonable detail the acts requiring such adjustment, and stating such other facts as shall be necessary
to show the manner and figures used to compute such adjustment.  As promptly as reasonably practicable (but in no
event more than 10 days) after each such adjustment, the Company shall give a copy of such certificate by certified
mail to the Holder.
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(i)         Notice of Certain Transactions. If the Company proposes to take any action that would require an adjustment
in the Exercise Price pursuant to subsections (a), (b), (c) or (d) of this Section 4, or there is a proposal for any
liquidation or dissolution of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall deliver to the Holder a notice stating
the proposed record date for a dividend or distribution or the proposed effective or consummation date of a
subdivision, combination, reclassification, consolidation, merger, transfer, lease, liquidation or dissolution. The
Company shall deliver the notice at least 10 days before such date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall
only be required to deliver such notice if and to the extent the delivery of such notice would not result in the
dissemination of material, non-public information to the Holder.  Failure to give such notice, or any defect therein,
shall not affect the legality or validity of any such action.

(j)        When Adjustment Not Required. If the Company shall take a record of the holders of its Shares for the purpose
of entitling them to receive a dividend or distribution or subscription or purchase rights and shall, thereafter and before
the distribution to shareholders thereof, legally abandon its plan to pay or deliver such dividend, distribution,
subscription or purchase rights, then thereafter no adjustment shall be required by reason of the taking of such record
and any such adjustment previously made in respect thereof shall be rescinded and annulled.

5.         No Shareholder Rights. Nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as conferring upon the Holder
any rights as a shareholder of the Company (except to the extent that this Warrant has been duly exercised or such
Holder otherwise owns any Warrant Shares) or as imposing any liabilities on such Holder to purchase any securities
or as a shareholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors or
shareholders of the Company or otherwise.

6.         Transferability. The Holder understands, acknowledges and agrees that this Warrant and the Warrant Shares
into which they are exercisable have not been, and the Warrant and the Warrant Shares into which they are exercisable
(except as may be set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement with respect to the Warrant Shares) will not be,
registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws, and may only be sold, offered for sale, pledged,
hypothecated, transferred, assigned or otherwise disposed of in compliance with the then applicable resale
requirements of the Securities Act.  Subject to the provisions of this Section 6, this Warrant is transferable, in whole or
in part, when the Holder shall surrender this Warrant with a properly executed assignment, in the form attached
hereto, to the Company at its principal office (or any other such office or agency as identified by the Company)
whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver, upon the order of the Holder, a new Warrant, registered as
the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the
Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new
Warrant to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.
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7.         Exercise for Shares of Voting Common Stock.  This Warrant shall in no event be exercisable by the initial
Holder hereof, Cor Advisors, for shares of Voting Common Stock.  This Warrant shall become exercisable for shares
of Voting Common Stock in lieu of shares of Class B Common Stock if, and to the extent, this Warrant (or any
portion hereof) is transferred by the initial Holder hereof, Cor Advisors, in a Widely Dispersed Offering.  A “Widely
Dispersed Offering” is (a) a widespread public distribution, including pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act;
(b) a transfer in which no transferee (or group of associated transferees) would receive more than two percent (2%) of
any class of securities of the Company then entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (“Voting Securities”)
(including for this purpose the Warrant Shares on an as-exercised basis) or (c) a transfer to a transferee that would
control more than fifty percent (50%) of the Voting Securities of the Company without any transfer by the Holder
hereof.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Warrant shall only be exercisable into that
number of shares of Voting Common Stock in lieu of shares of Class B Common Stock such that, upon exercise, the
registered holder, acting alone or together with any other Person that might be affiliated with such registered holder,
or that may be deemed to be acting in concert with such registered holder pursuant to 12 C.F.R. Part 574 would not
beneficially own more than 4.9% of the aggregate outstanding shares of Voting Common Stock.

8.          Modification and Waiver. This Warrant and any provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or
terminated only by an instrument in writing signed by the party against which enforcement of the same is sought.

9.          Notices. Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder or
the Company shall be delivered, or shall be sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, to the Holder at COR
Advisors LLC c/o COR Capital LLC, 233 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 830, Santa Monica, California 09401, Attn: Steven
Sugarman, or, if different, its address as shown on the books of the Company, or to the Company at 610 Bay Blvd.,
Chula Vista, California 91910, Attn: Hans R. Ganz, President and Chief Executive Officer, or at such other address as
the Company may hereafter designate.

10.        Descriptive Headings and Governing Law. The descriptive headings of the several paragraphs of this Warrant
are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Warrant. This Warrant shall be construed and
enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the laws of the State of New York.

11.        Lost Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction,
or mutilation of this Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction upon receipt of reasonable and
customary indemnity, or in the case of any such mutilation upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant, the
Company will make and deliver a new Warrant in lieu of the lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant.  Any such
new Warrant shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, which is the same as the date
set forth above.
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12.       Obligations and Remedies.  The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver Warrant Shares in accordance with
the terms of this Warrant are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder to
enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against
any Person or any action to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or
any breach or alleged breach by the Holder or any other Person of any obligation to the Company (other than the
obligation under Section 2(a) to pay or otherwise satisfy the total Exercise Price) or any violation or alleged violation
of law by the Holder or any other Person, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such
obligation of the Company to the Holder in connection with the issuance of Warrant Shares.  Nothing herein shall
limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without
limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely
deliver shares of Common Stock (whether via physical certificates or electronically, as appropriate) upon exercise of
the Warrant.

13.        Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance and delivery of certificates for shares of Common Stock upon
exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax, transfer agent fee or
other incidental tax or expense in respect of the issuance of such certificates, all of which taxes and expenses shall be
paid by the Company; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the registration of any certificates for Warrant Shares or Warrants in a
name other than that of the Holder.  The Holder shall be responsible for all other tax liability that may arise as a result
of holding or transferring this Warrant or receiving Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, or reselling or
otherwise transferring the Warrant Shares to third parties.

14.        Dispute Resolution.  In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Fair Market
Value or the Last Reported Sale Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company shall submit
the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within two business days of receipt of the Form of
Subscription giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder.  If the Holder and the Company are unable
to agree upon such determination or calculation of the Exercise Price, Fair Market Value, the Last Reported Sale Price
or the Warrant Shares within three business days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being
submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within two business days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed
determination of the Exercise Price, the Fair Market Value or the Last Reported Sale Price to an independent,
reputable investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic
calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant.  The Company shall cause at its
expense the investment bank or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and
notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten business says from the time it receives the disputed
determinations or calculations.  Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may
be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.

15.        Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings given to them below:

“Announcement Date” shall mean the day on which a distribution described in Section 4(c) is announced to the general
public.
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 “Change of Control” shall mean, other than, for the avoidance of doubt, the Transaction (as defined in the Consulting
Agreement), (A) the acquisition by any person or group (within the meaning given in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2)
of Securities Exchange Act or 1934, as amended the “Exchange Act”) of beneficial ownership (within the meaning of
the Exchange Act) of two-thirds or more (on a fully diluted basis) of (x) the then outstanding shares of Common Stock
taking into account as outstanding for this purpose such Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options or
warrants, the conversion of convertible stock or debt, and the exercise or settlement of any similar right to acquire
such Common Stock or (y) the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the “Outstanding Bancorp Voting Securities”), in each case other
than (I) any acquisition by the Company or any of its affiliates, (II) any acquisition directly from the Company, (III)
any acquisition by any employee benefit plan sponsored or maintained by the Company or any affiliate or (IV) any
acquisition by any person that complies with clauses (I), (II) and (III) of subsection (B) of this paragraph; or (B) the
consummation of a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange, a sale or other disposition of all or substantially
all of the assets of the Company or similar form of corporate transaction involving the Company that requires the
approval of the Company’s stockholders, whether for such transaction or the issuance of securities in the transaction (a
“Business Combination”), in each case, unless immediately following such Business Combination, (I) more than
two-thirds of the total voting power of the entity resulting from such Business Combination  (the “Surviving Company”)
or the parent corporation that directly or indirectly has beneficial ownership of sufficient voting securities that has
beneficial ownership of sufficient voting securities eligible elect a majority of the directors of the Surviving Company
(the “Parent Company”) is represented by Outstanding Bancorp Voting Securities that were outstanding immediately
prior to such Business Combination (or, if applicable, is represented by shares into which the Outstanding Bancorp
Voting Securities were converted pursuant to such Business Combination) and such voting power among the holders
thereof is in substantially the same proportion as the voting power of the Outstanding Bancorp Voting Securities
among the holders thereof immediately prior to the Business Combination, (II) no person (other than any employee
benefit plan sponsored or maintained by the Surviving Company), is or becomes the beneficial owner, directly or
indirectly, of two-thirds or more of the total voting power of the outstanding voting securities eligible to elect directors
of the Parent Company (or, if there is no Parent Company, the Surviving Company) and (III) at least two-thirds of the
members of the board of directors of the Parent Company (or, if there is no Parent Company, the Surviving Company)
following the consummation of the Business Combination were members of the board of directors of the Company at
the time of the at the time of the board’s approval of the execution of the initial agreement providing for such business
combination..

“Exercise Price” shall mean $11.00 per Warrant Share, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.

“Expiration Date” shall mean with respect to any Warrant Share, the fifth anniversary of the Vesting Date of the Warrant
in respect of such Warrant Share.

“Fair Market Value” means the fair market value of a share of Voting Common Stock as of a particular date, as
determined in accordance with the following:
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(i)          if the Voting Common Stock is listed or admitted for trading on a national securities exchange, the average of
the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior to (but
excluding) the date in question; or

(ii)         if the foregoing clause (i) does not apply and the Voting Common Stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board,
the average of the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior
to (but excluding) the date in question; or

(iii)        if the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) do not apply and the Voting Common Stock is quoted in the
over-the-counter market as reported in the “pink sheets”, the average of the closing prices of the Voting Common Stock
for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior to (but excluding) the date in question; or

(iv)        if the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply and actual transactions in the Voting Common Stock are
reported through The PORTAL Market, which is operated by the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., the last sale price of the
Voting Common Stock on such system immediately prior to (but excluding) the date in question (provided such last
sale price was not on a trading day in excess of 10 trading days prior to the date in question); or

(v)         if the Fair Market Value cannot be calculated on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Fair
Market Value on such date shall be the fair market value of a share of Voting Common Stock as mutually determined
by the Company and the Holder.  If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of a
share of Voting Common Stock under this clause (v), then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 14.

All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination or other
similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

“Final Expiration Date” shall mean the five-year anniversary of the final Vesting Date pursuant to the Vesting Schedule.

“Last Reported Sales Price” of the Voting Common Stock on any particular date means:

(i)          if the Voting Common Stock is listed or admitted for trading on a national securities exchange, the last
reported sale price reported on the date in question in the composite transactions for the exchange on which the Voting
Common Stock is so listed; or

(ii)         if the foregoing clause (i) does not apply and the Voting Common Stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board,
the last quoted bid price on the date in question in the over-the-counter market as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board;
or

(iii)        if the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) do not apply and the Voting Common Stock is quoted in the
over-the-counter market as reported in the “pink sheets”, the last quoted bid price on the date in question; or
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(iv)        if the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply and actual transactions in the Voting Common Stock are
reported through The PORTAL Market, which is operated by the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., the last sale price of the
Voting Common Stock that is so reported on the date in question; or

(v)         if the Last Reported Sales Price cannot be calculated for the Voting Common Stock on a particular date on
any of the foregoing bases, the Last Reported Sales Price of the Voting Common Stock on such date shall be as
mutually determined by the Company and the Holder.  If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the
Last Reported Sales Price of the Voting Common Stock under this clause (v), then such dispute shall be resolved
pursuant to Section 14.

 “Person” shall be construed broadly and shall include, without limitation, an individual, a partnership, a limited liability
company, a corporation, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization
and a governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Shares” means shares of Common Stock.

 “Vesting Date” shall mean, with respect to any Warrant Share, the date on which this Warrant becomes immediately
exercisable for such Warrant Share in accordance with the Vesting Schedule.

“Warrant Exercise Period” shall mean the period beginning on the date hereof and ending on the Final Expiration Date.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed and issued by its officers
thereunto duly authorized as of the date first written above.

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.

By:
Hans R. Ganz
President and Chief Executive Officer
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FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION

(to be signed only upon payment of the Exercise Price
pursuant to the Warrant)

To the Company:

1.           The undersigned, the holder of the within Warrant, hereby irrevocably elects to purchase ___ shares of
Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Warrant.

2.           Form of Exercise Price.  The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as (check
applicable ones):

____________ a “Cash Exercise” with respect to _________________
Warrant Shares; and/or

____________ a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to _______________
Warrant Shares.

3.           Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the Holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or
all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant hereto, the Holder shall pay the aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of
$___________________ to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

4.           Delivery of Warrant Shares.  The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified
below, __________ Warrant Shares (__________ shares of Voting Common Stock and __________ shares of Class B
Common Stock) in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depositary Trust Company in accordance with the
terms of the Warrant.

_______________________
_______________________
_______________________

The undersigned represents (i) that it has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that it is
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Common Stock; and (ii) that it can bear the
economic risk of its investment in the Common Stock and can afford to lose its entire investment in the Common
Stock. The undersigned agrees that the Common Stock may not be sold, transferred, offered for sale, pledged,
hypothecated or otherwise disposed of without registration under the Securities Act, except pursuant to an exemption
from such act.

The undersigned represents that it has tendered payment for such shares of Common Stock to the Company in the
form indicated above.

If the number of shares of Common Stock purchased is less than all of the Warrant Shares evidenced hereby, and the
undersigned is surrendering the Warrant in connection with the exercise hereof, the undersigned requests that a new
Warrant representing the remaining shares of Common Stock subject to the Warrant be issued and delivered to the
undersigned.
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If the original Warrant is not surrendered in connection with the exercise hereof:  (i) the undersigned represents that it
has not sold, assigned, pledged, transferred, hypothecated, or otherwise disposed of the original Warrant or any
interest therein or represented thereby and hereby agrees to fully and forever indemnify and hold harmless the
Company and each of its successors, assigns and affiliates from any loss, cost, damages or expense (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever it may hereinafter suffer or incur in connection with or as
a result of the undersigned’s failure to surrender the original Warrant in connection with such exercise; and (ii) the
undersigned will as promptly as reasonably practicable after the delivery of this Subscription to the Company (and in
any event within five (5) business days),  deliver, or cause to be delivered, the original Warrant to the Company.

DATED:
(Signature must conform in all
respects to name of holder as
specified on the face of the Warrant)

(Address)
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FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, the holder of the attached Warrant, hereby sells, assigns and transfers all
of the rights of the undersigned under the attached Warrant unto:

Name of Assignee  Address

(Signature must conform in
all
respects to name of holder
as
specified on the face of the
Warrant)

[_____________________]

By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit A

Vesting Schedule

Subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 4 of this Warrant, this Warrant shall be exercisable for One Hundred Fifty
Thousand (130,000) Warrant Shares from and after the date hereof.

Subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 4 of this Warrant, this Warrant shall become exercisable for an additional
One Million Four Hundred Thirty Thousand (1,430,000) Warrant Shares in the aggregate, in eleven (11) equal
increments, on the last day of each of the first eleven (11) calendar quarterly periods ending subsequent to the date
hereof.
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REVOCABLE PROXY

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP, INC.
SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

________, 2010

The undersigned hereby appoints the members of the Board of Directors of First PacTrust Bancorp, Inc. (the
“Company”), and their survivors, with full power of substitution, and authorizes them to represent and vote, as
designated below and in accordance with their judgment upon any other matters properly presented at the Special
Meeting, all the shares of Company common stock held of record by the undersigned at the close of business on
______, 2010, at the special meeting of shareholders of the Company (the “Special Meeting”) to be held on _______,
2010, at __:__ _.m. local time, at ______________, _____, California, and at any and all adjournments or
postponements thereof.  The Board of Directors recommends a vote "FOR" each of the listed proposals.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

1.
To approve, for purposes of NASDAQ Listing
Rule 5635, the issuance of shares of the
Company’s common stock, Warrants to purchase
common stock and shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of the Warrants as
described in the Company’s proxy statement for
the Special Meeting.

o o o

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

2.
To approve the adjournment or postponement of
the Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if
necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there
are insufficient proxies given prior to the time of
the Special Meeting to constitute a quorum for
purposes of the Special Meeting or insufficient
votes to adopt Proposal 1 above.

o o o

THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED, BUT IF NO INSTRUCTIONS ARE
SPECIFIED, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR THE PROPOSALS STATED.  IF ANY
OTHER BUSINESS IS PRESENTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING, THIS PROXY WILL BE
VOTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AS PROXY FOR THE SHAREHOLDER, IN
THEIR BEST JUDGMENT.  AT THE PRESENT TIME, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
KNOWS OF NO OTHER BUSINESS TO BE PRESENTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING.
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THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

This proxy may be revoked at any time before it is voted by delivering to the Secretary of the Company, before the
taking of the vote at the Special Meeting, a written notice of revocation bearing a later date than this proxy or a later
dated proxy relating to the same shares of Company common stock, or by attending the Special Meeting and voting in
person.  Attendance at the Special Meeting will not in itself constitute the revocation of a proxy.  If this proxy is
properly revoked as described above, then the power of such attorneys and proxies shall be deemed terminated and of
no further force and effect.

The undersigned acknowledges receipt from the Company, prior to the execution of this proxy, of copies of the
Company’s Notice of the Special Meeting, the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Special Meeting, the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2010.

Dated: ______________________

______________________
PRINT NAME OF
SHAREHOLDER

______________________
PRINT NAME OF
SHAREHOLDER

______________________
SIGNATURE OF
SHAREHOLDER

______________________
SIGNATURE OF
SHAREHOLDER

Please sign exactly as your name appears above on this card.  When signing as
attorney, executor, administrator, trustee or guardian, please give your full title.  If
shares are held jointly, each holder should sign.

PLEASE PROMPTLY COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND MAIL THIS PROXY IN
THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE

Kovio, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing semiconductor products

using printed electronics and thin-film technologies

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

(A
)

2,500,000

3,000,000
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Mersana Therapeutics, Inc. (1)(2)(5)(12) -- Developing advanced

polymers for drug delivery

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

(C
)

68,452

136,904

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

(C
)

616,500

1,233,000

Warrants at $2.00 expiring 10/21/10

(B
)

91,625

0

1,369,904

Metabolon, Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) - Discovering biomarkers through

the use of metabolomics

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

(A
)

2,173,913

2,500,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated Companies
(6)(8) - 28.20% of net assets (cont.)

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 28.20% of net
assets (cont.)

NanoGram Corporation (1)(2)(5) -- Developing a broad
suite of intellectual
property utilizing nanotechnology
Series I Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 63,210 $ 64,259
Series II Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,250,904 1,271,670
Series III Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,242,144 1,262,764

2,598,693

Nanomix, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Producing nanoelectronic
sensors that
integrate carbon nanotube electronics with silicon
microstructures
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 9,779,181 790,000

NanoOpto Corporation (1)(2)(5) -- Manufacturing
discrete and integrated
optical communications sub-components on a chip by
utilizing
nano manufacturing and nano coating technology
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 267,857 16,400
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 3,819,935 560,328
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 1,932,789 425,266
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 1,397,218 204,951
Warrants at $0.4359 expiring 03/15/10 (B) 193,279 0

1,206,945

Nextreme Thermal Solutions, Inc. (1)(2)(5) --
Developing thin-film
thermoelectric devices
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 1,000,000 1,000,000
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Questech Corporation (1)(2) -- Manufacturing and
marketing
proprietary metal and stone decorative tiles
Common Stock (B) 655,454 996,683
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/21/07 (B) 3,750 77
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/19/08 (B) 5,000 103
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/19/09 (B) 5,000 103

996,966

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated Companies
(6)(8) - 28.20% of net assets (cont.)

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 28.20% of net
assets (cont.)

Solazyme, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing energy-harvesting
machinery of photosynthetic microbes to produce
industrial
and pharmaceutical molecules
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 988,204 $ 385,400

Starfire Systems, Inc. (1)(2)(5) --Producing
ceramic-forming polymers
Common Stock (A) 375,000 150,000
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 600,000 600,000

750,000

Xradia, Inc. (1)(2)(4) - Designing, manufacturing and
selling ultra high
resolution 3D x-ray microscopes and fluorescence
imaging systems.
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 3,121,099 4,000,000

Zia Laser, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing quantum dot
semiconductor lasers
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,500,000 15,000

Total Non-Controlled Private Placement Portfolio
(cost: $39,571,676) $ 32,128,054

Total Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated $ 32,128,054
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Companies (cost: $39,571,676)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Controlled Affiliated Companies (6)(9)
- 3.30% of net assets

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 3.30% of net
assets

Evolved Nanomaterial Sciences, Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) --
Developing
nanotechnology-enhanced approaches for the resolution
of
chiral molecules
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 5,870,021 $ 2,800,000

SiOnyx, Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) -- Developing silicon-based
optoelectronic products enabled by its proprietary, "Black
Silicon"
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 233,499 70,050
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 2,966,667 890,000

960,050

Total Controlled Private Placement Portfolio (cost:
$4,440,000) $ 3,760,050

Total Investments in Controlled Affiliated Companies
(cost: $4,440,000) $ 3,760,050

U.S. Government and Agency Securities - 51.48% of
net assets

U.S. Treasury Bill -- due date 1/18/07 (J) 2,217,000 2,212,677
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 11/30/07, coupon 4.25% (H) 6,500,000 6,455,345
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 02/15/08, coupon 3.375% (H) 9,000,000 8,842,860
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 05/15/08, coupon 3.75% (H) 9,000,000 8,862,210
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 09/15/08, coupon 3.125% (H) 5,000,000 4,861,350
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 01/15/09, coupon 3.25% (H) 3,000,000 2,910,930
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 02/15/09, coupon 4.50% (H) 5,100,000 5,069,145
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 04/15/09, coupon 3.125% (H) 3,000,000 2,893,830
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 07/15/09, coupon 3.625% (H) 3,000,000 2,920,890
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U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 10/15/09, coupon 3.375% (H) 3,000,000 2,894,310
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 01/15/10, coupon 3.625% (H) 3,000,000 2,907,420
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 04/15/10, coupon 4.00% (H) 3,000,000 2,935,560
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 07/15/10, coupon 3.875% (H) 3,000,000 2,920,560
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 10/15/10, coupon 4.25% (H) 2,000,000 1,969,060

Total Investments in U.S. Government and Agency
Securities (cost: $59,212,598) $ 58,656,147

Total Investments (cost: $121,331,398) $ 112,323,978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Notes to Consolidated Schedule of Investments

(1)Represents a non-income producing security. Equity investments that have not paid dividends within the last 12
months are considered to be non-income producing.

(2) Legal restrictions on sale of investment.

(3) See Footnote to Schedule of Investments for a description of the Valuation Procedures.

(4) Initial investment was made during 2006.

(5)These investments are development stage companies. A development stage company is defined as a company that
is devoting substantially all of its efforts to establishing a new business, and either it has not yet commenced its
planned principal operations, or it has commenced such operations but has not realized significant revenue from
them.

(6)Investments in unaffiliated companies consist of investments in which we own less than five percent of the voting
shares of the portfolio company. Investments in non-controlled affiliated companies consist of investments in
which we own five percent or more, but less than 25 percent, of the voting shares of the portfolio company or
where we hold one or more seats on the portfolio company’s Board of Directors. Investments in controlled affiliated
companies consist of investments in which we own 25 percent or more of the voting shares of the portfolio
company.

(7)The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes of investments in unaffiliated companies is $18,107,124. The
gross unrealized appreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $1,732,194. The gross unrealized
depreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $2,059,591.

(8)The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes of investments in non-controlled affiliated companies is
$39,571,676. The gross unrealized appreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $333,269. The gross
unrealized depreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $7,776,891.

(9)The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes of investments in controlled affiliated companies is $4,400,000.
The gross unrealized appreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $0. The gross unrealized depreciation
based on the tax cost for these securities is $679,950.

(10) Continuum Photonics, Inc., merged with Polatis, Ltd., to form Polatis, Inc.

(11) BridgeLux, Inc., was previously named eLite Optoelectronics, Inc.

(12) Mersana Therapeutics, Inc., was previously named Nanopharma Corp.

(13)D-Wave Systems, Inc., is located and is doing business primarily in Canada. We invested in D-Wave Systems,
Inc., through D-Wave USA, a Delaware company. Our investment is denominated in Canadian dollars and is
subject to foreign currency translation. Refer to Note 2 "Significant Accounting Policies."
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated schedule.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Unaffiliated Companies (6)(7) - 13.2%
of net assets

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 13.2% of net
assets

AlphaSimplex Group, LLC (2) -- Investment management
company headed by
Dr. Andrew W. Lo, holder of the Harris & Harris Group
Chair at MIT
Limited Liability Company Interest (B) -- $ 16,315

Crystal IS, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing a technology to
grow
single-crystal boules of aluminum nitride for gallium
nitride
electronics
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 274,100 199,983

Exponential Business Development Company (1)(2) --
Venture capital partnership focused on early stage
companies
Limited Partnership Interest (B) -- 0

Molecular Imprints, Inc. (1)(2) -- Manufacturing
nanoimprint lithography
capital equipment
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 1,333,333 2,000,000
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 1,250,000 2,500,000
Warrants at $2.00 expiring12/31/15 (B) 125,000 0

4,500,000

Nanosys, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing
nanotechnology-enabled systems
incorporating zero and one-dimensional inorganic
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nanometer-scale materials
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 803,428 2,370,113
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,016,950 3,000,003

5,370,116

Nantero, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing a high-density,
nonvolatile, random
access memory chip, using nanotechnology
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 345,070 1,046,908
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 207,051 628,172
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 188,315 571,329

2,246,409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Unaffiliated Companies (6)(7) - 13.2%
of net assets (cont.)

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 13.2% of net
assets (cont.)

NeoPhotonics Corporation (1)(2) -- Developing and
manufacturing
planar optical devices and components
Common Stock (C) 716,195 $ 67,736
Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,831,256 2,014,677
Series 2 Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 741,898 878,120
Warrants at $0.15 expiring 01/26/10 (C) 16,364 164
Warrants at $0.15 expiring 12/05/10 (C) 14,063 140

2,960,837

Polatis, Inc. (1)(2)(5)(9) -- Developing optical
networking components
by merging materials, MEMS and electronics
technologies
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 16,775 47,828
Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 71,611 204,172

252,000

Total Unaffiliated Private Placement Portfolio (cost:
$15,469,546) $ 15,545,660

Total Investments in Unaffiliated Companies (cost:
$15,469,546) $ 15,545,660

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated Companies
(6)(8) - 15.0% of net assets

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 15.0% of net
assets

Cambrios Technologies Corporation (1)(2)(5) --
Developing commercially
relevant materials by evolving biomolecules to express
control over
nanostructure synthesis
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 1,294,025 $ 1,294,025

Chlorogen, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing patented
chloroplast technology
to produce plant-made proteins
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 4,478,038 785,000
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 2,077,930 364,261

1,149,261

CSwitch, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing next-generation,
system-on-a-chip
solutions for communications-based platforms
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 1,000,000 500,000

eLite Optoelectronics Inc. (1)(2)(4) -- Manufacturing
high-power light
emitting diodes
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 1,861,504 1,000,000

Kereos, Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) -- Developing molecular imaging
agents
and targeted therapeutics to image and treat cancer and
cardiovascular disease
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 349,092 960,000

Kovio , Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) -- Developing semi-conductor
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products
using printed electronics and thin-film technologies
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 2,500,000 3,000,000

Mersana Therapeutics, Inc. (1)(2)(5)(10) -- Developing
advanced
polymers for drug delivery
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 68,452 136,904
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 616,500 1,233,000
Warrants at $2.00 expiring 10/21/10 (B) 91,625 0

1,369,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated Companies
(6)(8) - 15.0% of net assets (cont.)

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 15.0% of net
assets (cont.)

NanoGram Corporation (1)(2)(5) -- Developing a broad
suite of intellectual
property utilizing nanotechnology
Series I Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 63,210 $ 64,259
Series II Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 1,250,904 1,271,670

1,335,929

Nanomix, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Producing nanoelectronic
sensors that
integrate carbon nanotube electronics with silicon
microstructures
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 9,779,181 2,500,000

NanoOpto Corporation (1)(2)(5) -- Manufacturing
discrete and integrated
optical communications sub-components on a chip by
utilizing
nano-manufacturing technology
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 267,857 32,490
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 3,819,935 1,110,073
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 1,932,789 842,503
Warrants at $0.4359 expiring 03/15/10 (C) 193,279 0

1,985,066

Nextreme Thermal Solutions, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing
thin-film,
superlattice thermoelectric devices
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 500,000 500,000

Questech Corporation (1)(2) -- Manufacturing and
markets
proprietary metal decorative tiles
Common Stock (C) 646,954 724,588
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Warrants at $1.50 expiring 08/03/06 (B) 8,500 0
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/21/07 (B) 3,750 0
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/19/08 (B) 5,000 0
Warrants at $1.50 expiring 11/19/09 (B) 5,000 0

724,588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Method of Shares/
Valuation (3) Principal Value

Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated Companies
(6)(8) - 15.0% of net assets (cont.)

Private Placement Portfolio (Illiquid) - 15.0% of net
assets (cont.)

Solazyme, Inc. (1)(2)(5) -- Developing energy-harvesting
machinery of photosynthetic microbes to produce
industrial
and pharmaceutical molecules
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (C) 988,204 $ 385,400

Starfire Systems, Inc. (1)(2)(5) --Producing
ceramic-forming polymers
Common Stock (A) 375,000 150,000
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (A) 600,000 600,000

750,000

Zia Laser, Inc. (1)(2)(4)(5) -- Developing quantum dot
semiconductor lasers
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (B) 1,500,000 187,500

Total Non-Controlled Private Placement Portfolio
(cost: $22,236,796) $ 17,641,673

Total Investments in Non-Controlled Affiliated
Companies (cost: $22,236,796) $ 17,641,673

U.S. Government and Agency Securities - 81.5% of
net assets
U.S. Treasury Bills -- due date 01/05/06 (J) 24,500,000 $ 24,495,590
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 02/28/06, coupon
1.625% (H) 810,000 806,963
U.S. Treasury Bills -- due date 03/02/06 (J) 32,845,000 32,640,376
U.S. Treasury Bills -- due date 03/16/06 (J) 4,750,000 4,712,855
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 03/31/06, coupon 1.5% (H) 4,616,000 4,586,965
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U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 11/30/07, coupon 4.25% (H) 6,500,000 6,480,955
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 02/15/08, coupon
3.375% (H) 9,000,000 8,814,690
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 05/15/08, coupon 3.75% (H) 9,000,000 8,872,020
U.S. Treasury Notes -- due date 09/15/08, coupon
3.125% (H) 5,000,000 4,840,450

Total Investments in U.S. Government and Agency
Securities (cost: $96,320,405) $ 96,250,864

Total Investments (cost: $134,026,747) $ 129,438,197

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Notes to Consolidated Schedule of Investments

(1)Represents a non-income producing security. Equity investments that have not paid dividends within the last 12
months are considered to be non-income producing.

(2) Legal restrictions on sale of investment.

(3) See Footnote to Schedule of Investments for a description of the Valuation Procedures.

(4) Initial investment was made during 2005.

(5)These investments are development stage companies. A development stage company is defined as a company that
is devoting substantially all of its efforts to establishing a new business, and either it has not yet commenced its
planned principal operations, or it has commenced such operations but has not realized significant revenue from
them.

(6)Investments in unaffiliated companies consist of investments in which we own less than five percent of the voting
shares of the portfolio company. Investments in non-controlled affiliated companies consist of investments in
which we own five percent or more, but less than 25 percent, of the voting shares of the portfolio company or
where we hold one or more seats on the portfolio company’s Board of Directors. Investments in controlled affiliated
companies consist of investments in which we own 25 percent or more of the voting shares of the portfolio
company.

(7)The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes of investments in unaffiliated companies is $15,469,546. The
gross unrealized appreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $1,732,194. The gross unrealized
depreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $1,656,080.

(8)The aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes of investments in non-controlled affiliated companies is
$22,236,796. The gross unrealized appreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $313,534. The gross
unrealized depreciation based on the tax cost for these securities is $4,908,657.

(9) Continuum Photonics, Inc., merged with Polatis, Ltd., to form Polatis, Inc.

(10) Mersana Therapeutics, Inc., was previously named Nanopharma Corp.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated schedule.
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
FOOTNOTE TO CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

VALUATION PROCEDURES

Our investments can be classified into five broad categories for valuation purposes:

Equity-Related Securities;

Investments in Intellectual Property or Patents or Research and Development in Technology or Product Development;

Long-Term Fixed-Income Securities;

Short-Term Fixed-Income Investments; and

All Other Investments.

The 1940 Act requires periodic valuation of each investment in our portfolio to determine net asset value. Under the
1940 Act, unrestricted securities with readily available market quotations are to be valued at the current market value;
all other assets must be valued at "fair value" as determined in good faith by or under the direction of the Board of
Directors.

Our Board of Directors is responsible for (1) determining overall valuation guidelines and (2) ensuring the valuation
of investments within the prescribed guidelines.

Our Valuation Committee, comprised of three or more independent Board members, is responsible for reviewing and
approving the valuation of our assets within the guidelines established by the Board of Directors.

Fair value is generally defined as the amount that an investment could be sold for in an orderly disposition over a
reasonable time. Generally, to increase objectivity in valuing our assets, external measures of value, such as public
markets or third-party transactions, are utilized whenever possible. Valuation is not based on long-term work-out
value, nor immediate liquidation value, nor incremental value for potential changes that may take place in the future.

The values assigned to these investments are based on available information and do not necessarily represent amounts
that might ultimately be realized, as these amounts depend on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be
determined until the individual investments are actually liquidated or become marketable.

Our valuation policy with respect to the five broad investment categories is as follows:
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Equity-Related Securities

Equity-related securities are valued using one or more of the following basic methods of valuation:

A. Cost. The cost method is based on our original cost. This method is generally used in the early stages of a
company’s development until significant positive or negative events occur subsequent to the date of the original
investment that dictate a change to another valuation method. Some examples of these events are: (1) a major
recapitalization; (2) a major refinancing; (3) a significant third-party transaction; (4) the development of a meaningful
public market for the company’s common stock; and (5) significant positive or negative changes in a company’s
business.

B. Analytical Method. The analytical method is generally used to value an investment position when there is no
established public or private market in the company’s securities or when the factual information available to us dictates
that an investment should no longer be valued under either the cost or private market method. This valuation method
is inherently imprecise and ultimately the result of reconciling the judgments of our Valuation Committee members,
based on the data available to them. The resulting valuation, although stated as a precise number, is necessarily within
a range of values that vary depending upon the significance attributed to the various factors being considered. Some of
the factors considered may include the financial condition and operating results of the company, the long-term
potential of the business of the company, the values of similar securities issued by companies in similar businesses,
the proportion of the company’s securities we own and the nature of any rights to require the company to register
restricted securities under applicable securities laws.

C. Private Market. The private market method uses actual, executed, historical transactions in a company’s securities
by responsible third parties as a basis for valuation. The private market method may also use, where applicable,
unconditional firm offers by responsible third parties as a basis for valuation.

D. Public Market. The public market method is used when there is an established public market for the class of the
company’s securities held by us or into which our securities are convertible. We discount market value for securities
that are subject to significant legal and contractual restrictions. Other securities, for which market quotations are
readily available, are carried at market value as of the time of valuation. Market value for securities traded on
securities exchanges or on the Nasdaq Global Market is the last reported sales price on the day of valuation. For other
securities traded in the over-the-counter market and listed securities for which no sale was reported on that day,
market value is the mean of the closing bid price and asked price on that day. This method is the preferred method of
valuation when there is an established public market for a company’s securities, as that market provides the most
objective basis for valuation.

Investments in Intellectual Property or Patents or Research and Development in Technology or Product
Development

These investments are carried at fair value using the following basic methods of valuation:
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E. Cost. The cost method is based on our original cost. This method is generally used in the early stages of
commercializing or developing intellectual property or patents or research and development in technology or product
development until significant positive or adverse events occur subsequent to the date of the original investment that
dictate a change to another valuation method.

F. Analytical Method. The analytical method is used to value an investment after analysis of the best available
outside information where the factual information available to us dictates that an investment should no longer be
valued under either the cost or private market method. This valuation method is inherently imprecise and ultimately
the result of reconciling the judgments of our Valuation Committee members. The resulting valuation, although stated
as a precise number, is necessarily within a range of values that vary depending upon the significance attributed to the
various factors being considered. Some of the factors considered may include the results of research and development,
product development progress, commercial prospects, term of patent and projected markets.

G. Private Market. The private market method uses actual third-party investments in intellectual property or patents
or research and development in technology or product development as a basis for valuation, using actual executed
historical transactions by responsible third parties. The private market method may also use, where applicable,
unconditional firm offers by responsible third parties as a basis for valuation.

As of December 31, 2006, we do not have any investments in intellectual property or patents or research and
development in technologies or products.

Long-Term Fixed-Income Securities

H. Readily Marketable. Fixed-income securities for which market quotations are readily available are carried at
market value as of the time of valuation using the most recent bid quotations when available.

I. Not Readily Marketable. Securities for which market quotations are not readily available are carried at fair value
using one or more of the following basic methods of valuation:

Fixed-income securities are valued by independent pricing services that provide market quotations based primarily on
quotations from dealers and brokers, market transactions, and other sources.

Other fixed-income securities that are not readily marketable are valued at fair value by our Valuation Committee.

Short-Term Fixed-Income Investments

J. Short-term fixed-income investments are valued at market value at the time of valuation. We value short-term debt
with remaining maturity of 60 days or less at amortized cost.
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All Other Investments

K. All other investments are reported at fair value as determined in good faith by the Valuation Committee. As of
December 31, 2006, we do not have any of these investments.

The reported values of securities for which market quotations are not readily available and for other assets reflect the
Valuation Committee’s judgment of fair values as of the valuation date using the outlined basic methods of valuation.
They do not necessarily represent an amount of money that would be realized if we had to sell the securities in an
immediate liquidation. Thus, valuations as of any particular date are not necessarily indicative of amounts that we may
ultimately realize as a result of future sales or other dispositions of investments we hold.

76

Edgar Filing: FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC - Form PRE 14A

164



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. THE COMPANY

Harris & Harris Group, Inc. (the "Company," "us," "our" and "we"), is a venture capital company operating as a
business development company ("BDC") under the Investment Company Act of 1940 ("1940 Act"). We operate as an
internally managed company whereby our officers and employees, under the general supervision of our Board of
Directors, conduct our operations.

We elected to become a BDC on July 26, 1995, after receiving the necessary governmental approvals. From
September 30, 1992, until the election of BDC status, we operated as a closed-end, non-diversified investment
company under the 1940 Act. Upon commencement of operations as an investment company, we revalued all of our
assets and liabilities in accordance with the 1940 Act. Prior to September 30, 1992, we were registered and filed under
the reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as an operating company and, while an
operating company, operated directly and through subsidiaries.

Harris & Harris Enterprises, Inc.SM ("Enterprises"), is a 100 percent wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Enterprises is a partner in Harris Partners I, L.P.SM and is taxed under Subchapter C of the Code (a “C Corporation”).
Harris Partners I, L.P, is a limited partnership and owns our interest in AlphaSimplex Group, LLC. The partners of
Harris Partners I, L.P., are Enterprises (sole general partner) and Harris & Harris Group, Inc. (sole limited partner).

We filed for the 1999 tax year to elect treatment as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under Subchapter M of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and qualified for the same treatment for the years 2000 through 2005.
However, there can be no assurance that we will qualify as a RIC for 2006 or subsequent years. In addition, under
certain circumstances, even if we qualified for Subchapter M treatment for a given year, we might take action in a
subsequent year to ensure that we would be taxed in that subsequent year as a C Corporation, rather than as a RIC. As
a RIC, we must, among other things, distribute at least 90 percent of our investment company taxable income and may
either distribute or retain our realized net capital gains on investments.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for investment companies and include the accounts of
the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
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Use of Estimates. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and contingent assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004. The most significant estimates relate to the fair valuations of certain of our investments. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include money market instruments with maturities of less than
three months.

Portfolio Investment Valuations. Investments are stated at "value" as defined in the 1940 Act and in the applicable
regulations of the SEC. Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price for those
securities for which a market quotation is readily available and (ii) the fair value as determined in good faith by, or
under the direction of, the Board of Directors for all other assets. (See "Valuation Procedures" in the "Footnote to
Consolidated Schedule of Investments.") At December 31, 2006, our financial statements include private venture
capital investments valued at $53,667,831 the fair values of which were determined in good faith by, or under the
direction, of the Board of Directors. Upon sale of investments, the values that are ultimately realized may be different
from what is presently estimated. The difference could be material.

Foreign Currency Translation. The accounting records of the Company are maintained in U.S. dollars. All assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars based on the rate of exchange of such
currencies against U.S. dollars on the date of valuation. At December 31, 2006, included in the unrealized loss on
investments was $34,103 resulting from foreign currency translation.

Securities Transactions. Securities transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade
date); dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date; and interest income is accrued as earned. The Company
ceases accruing interest when securities are determined to be non-income producing and writes off any previously
accrued interest. Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are determined by specific identification for
financial reporting and tax reporting.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan. The Company accounts
for the plan in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-Based Payment." See Note 3 for further
discussion.

Income Taxes. Prior to our conversion to a RIC in 1999, our taxes were accounted for in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109.

We pay federal, state and local income taxes on behalf of our wholly owned subsidiary, Harris & Harris Enterprises,
which is a C corporation. (See "Note 7. Income Taxes.")

Restricted Funds. The Company maintains a rabbi trust for the purposes of accumulating funds to satisfy the
obligations incurred by us for the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP") under the employment
agreement with Charles E. Harris.
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Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are included in "Other Assets" and are carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation of $274,566. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the premises and equipment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes--an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally,
FIN 48 provides guidance on subsequent de-recognition of tax positions, financial statement classification, recognition
of interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and disclosure and transition requirements. FIN 48 is effective
for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2007, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the
process of evaluating FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157
clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing
an asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those
assumptions. Under the standard, fair value measurements would be separately disclosed by level within the fair value
hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating SFAS No. 157.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans--an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)” ("SFAS No. 158”). SFAS
No. 158 requires an employer that sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans and other
postretirement benefit plans to (a) recognize the over-funded or under-funded status of their benefit plans in its
statement of financial position, (b) recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or
losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net
periodic benefit cost pursuant to SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” or SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” (c) measure the fair value of plan assets and obligations
as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end and (d) disclose in the notes to financial statements additional
information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed
recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition asset or obligation. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 158 effective December 31, 2006, which had the effect of increasing net assets and accrued
liabilities by $61,527. See Note 6 for further discussion of the effects of adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 3. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On March 23, 2006, the Board of Directors of the Company voted to terminate the Employee Profit-Sharing Plan and
establish the Harris & Harris Group, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan”), subject to shareholder approval.
This proposal was approved at the May 4, 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Stock Plan provides for the
grant of equity-based awards of stock options and restricted stock (subject to receipt of an exemption order described
below) to our directors, officers and employees who are selected by our Compensation Committee for participation in
the plan and subject to compliance with the 1940 Act.

On July 11, 2006, the Company filed an application with the SEC regarding certain provisions of the Stock Plan. In
the event that the SEC provides the exemptive relief requested by the application and any additional stockholder
approval required by the SEC, the Compensation Committee may, in the future, authorize awards under the Stock
Plan to certain former officers of the Company, non-employee directors of the Company, authorize grants of restricted
stock and adjust the exercise price of options to reflect taxes paid for deemed dividends.

A maximum of 20 percent of our total shares of our common stock issued and outstanding are available for awards
under the Stock Plan. Under the Stock Plan, no more than 25 percent of the shares of stock reserved for the grant of
the awards under the Stock Plan may be restricted stock awards at any time during the term of the Stock Plan. If any
shares of restricted stock are awarded, such awards will reduce on a percentage basis the total number of shares of
stock for which options may be awarded. If the Company does not receive exemptive relief from the SEC to issue
restricted stock, all shares granted under the Stock Plan may be subject to stock options.

If the Company does receive such exemptive relief and issues 25 percent of the shares of stock reserved for grant
under the Stock Plan as restricted stock, no more than 75 percent of the shares granted under the Stock Plan may be
subject to stock options. No more than 1,000,000 shares of our common stock may be made subject to awards under
the Stock Plan to any individual in any year.

On June 26, 2006, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company approved individual stock
option awards for certain officers and employees of the Company. Both non-qualified stock options ("NQSOs") and
incentive stock options ("ISOs"), subject to the limitations of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, were awarded
under the Stock Plan. The terms and conditions of the stock options granted were determined by the Compensation
Committee and set forth in award agreements between the Company and each award recipient. A total of 3,958,283
stock options were granted with vesting periods ranging from December 2006 to June 2014 and with an exercise price
of $10.11. Upon exercise, the shares will be issued from our previously authorized shares. The full Board of Directors
ratified and approved the grants on August 3, 2006, on which date the Company's common stock price fluctuated
between $9.76 and $10.00.

The Company accounts for the Stock Plan in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment,” which requires that we determine the fair value of all share-based payments to employees, including the fair
value of grants of employee stock options, and record these amounts as an expense in the Statement of Operations
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase to our additional paid-in capital. At December 31, 2006, the
increase to our operating expenses was offset by the increase to our additional paid-in capital, resulting in no net
impact to our net asset value. Additionally, the Company does not record the tax benefits associated with the
expensing of stock options because the Company intends to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.
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The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model as permitted by SFAS No. 123(R). The stock options were awarded in five different grant types, each with
different contractual terms. The assumptions used in the calculation of fair value using the Black-Scholes model for
each contract term were as follows:

Weighted
Average

Number Expected
Expected

Expected Risk-free Fair
of Options Term   Volatility Dividend Interest  Value

Type of Award Term Granted in Yrs  Factor   Yield  Rates   
Per
Share

Non-qualified stock options 1 Year 1,001,017 0.75 37.4% 0% 5.16% $ 1.48
Non-qualified stock options 2 Years 815,000 1.625 45.2% 0% 5.12% $ 2.63
Non-qualified stock options 3 Years 659,460 2.42 55.7% 0% 5.09% $ 3.81

Non-qualified stock options
10

Years 690,000 5.75 75.6% 0% 5.08% $ 6.94

Incentive stock options
10

Years 792,806 7.03 75.6% 0% 5.08% $ 7.46

Total 3,958,283 $ 4.25

An option's expected term is the estimated period between the grant date and the exercise date of the option. As the
expected term period increases, the fair value of the option and the compensation cost will also increase. The expected
term assumption is generally calculated using historical stock option exercise data. The Company does not have
historical exercise data to develop such an assumption. In cases where companies do not have historical data and
where the options meet certain criteria, SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 107 ("SAB 107") provides the use of a
simplified expected term calculation. Accordingly, the Company calculated the expected terms using the SAB 107
simplified method.

Expected volatility is the measure of how the stock's price is expected to fluctuate over a period of time. An increase
in the expected volatility assumption yields a higher fair value of the stock option. Expected volatility factors for the
stock options were based on the historical fluctuations in the Company’s stock price over the expected term of the
option, adjusted for stock splits and dividends.

The expected dividend yield assumption is traditionally calculated based on a company's historical dividend yield. An
increase to the expected dividend yield results in a decrease in the fair value of option and resulting compensation
cost. Although the Company has declared deemed dividends in previous years, most recently in 2005, the amounts
and timing of any future dividends cannot be reasonably estimated. Therefore, for purposes of calculating fair value,
the Company has assumed an expected dividend yield of 0 percent.
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The risk-free interest rate assumptions are based on the annual yield on the measurement date of a zero-coupon U.S
Treasury bond the maturity of which equals the option’s expected term. Higher assumed interest rates yield higher fair
values.

The amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations is based
on the fair value of the awards the Company expects to vest, recognized over the vesting period on a straight-line basis
for each award, and adjusted for actual forfeitures that occur before vesting. The forfeiture rate is estimated at the time
of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if the actual forfeiture rate differs from the estimated rate.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized $5,038,956 of compensation expense in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $10,544,535 of
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock option awards. This cost is expected to be recognized over
a weighted-average period of approximately 1.75 years.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, a total of 258,672 shares were exercised for total proceeds to the
Company of $2,615,190. At December 31, 2006, the Company had a broker receivable totaling $819,905 for proceeds
from stock option exercises transacted on December 29, 2006. The Company received these proceeds on January 3,
2007.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, the calculation of the net decrease in net assets resulting from
operations per share excludes the stock options because such options were anti-dilutive. The options may be dilutive
in future periods in which there is a net increase in net assets resulting from operations in the event that there is a
significant increase in the average stock price or significant decreases in the amount of unrecognized compensation
cost.

A summary of the changes in outstanding stock options is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Weighted Average
Average Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Grant Date Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Price Fair Value Term (Yrs) Value

Options Outstanding at June 1, 2006 -
Granted 3,958,283 $ 10.11 $ 4.25
Exercised 258,672 $ 10.11 $ 1.79 $ 512,171
Forfeited or Expired -
Options Outstanding at December 31, 2006 3,699,611 $ 10.11 $ 4.43 4.64 $7,325,230
Options Exercisable at December 31, 2006 1,067,029 $ 10.11 $ 3.11 3.11 $2,112,717
Options Exercisable and Expected to be
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 3,531,996 $ 10.11 $ 4.28 4.41 $6,993,352
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is calculated as the difference between the Company's closing stock
price of $12.09 on the last trading day of 2006 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money
options. This represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders had all
option holders fully vested and exercised their awards on December 31, 2006.

Unless earlier terminated by our Board of Directors, the Stock Plan will expire on May 4, 2016. The expiration of the
Stock Plan will not by itself adversely affect the rights of plan participants under awards that are outstanding at the
time the Stock Plan expires. Our Board of Directors may terminate, modify or suspend the plan at any time, provided
that no modification of the plan will be effective unless and until any required shareholder approval has been obtained.
The Compensation Committee may terminate, modify or amend any outstanding award under the Stock Plan at any
time, provided that in such event, the award holder may exercise any vested options prior to such termination of the
Stock Plan or award.

NOTE 4. EMPLOYEE PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

Prior to the adoption of the Stock Plan, the Company operated the Amended and Restated Harris & Harris Group, Inc.
Employee Profit-Sharing Plan (the "2002 Plan"). Effective May 4, 2006, the 2002 Plan was terminated.

The 2002 Plan (and its predecessor) provided for profit sharing by our officers and employees equal to 20 percent of
our "qualifying income" for that plan year.

As soon as practicable following the year-end, the Compensation Committee determined whether, and if so how
much, qualifying income existed for a plan year. Approximately, ninety percent of the amount determined by the
Compensation Committee was then paid out to Plan participants pursuant to the distribution percentages set forth in
the 2002 Plan. The remaining payment was paid out after we finalized our tax returns for that plan year.

Each quarter, we performed a calculation to determine the accrual for profit sharing. We calculated 20 percent of
qualifying income (i.e., realized income) pursuant to the terms of the 2002 Plan and estimated the amount of
additional qualifying income, if any, that would result from selling all the portfolio investments that were valued
above cost (i.e., that were in an unrealized appreciation position). Although the accrual would fluctuate as a result of
changes in qualifying income and changes in unrealized appreciation, payments were made only to the extent that
qualifying income existed. At December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, we accrued $261,661 and $2,107,858,
respectively, for profit sharing. On March 1, 2006, the Company paid $1,897,072 to plan participants (employees and
former employees), which represented approximately 90 percent of the total estimated profit-sharing payment for
2005. The Company recorded $50,875 of expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, based on updated
estimates of its ultimate tax liability for 2005. The balance of $261,661 was paid on January 31, 2007, upon
finalization of our tax returns.
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As discussed in Note 3, subject to receiving exemptive relief from the SEC, the Company may permit certain former
officers of the Company to be participants of the Stock Plan. Alternatively, the SEC may provide relief which would
permit us to pay out the remainder, if any, of the former officers' grandfathered participations under the terminated
2002 Plan.

NOTE 5. DISTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS

As of December 31, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004, there were no distributable earnings. The
difference between the book basis and tax basis components of distributable earnings is primarily nondeductible
deferred compensation and net operating losses.

On December 20, 2005, the Company declared a designated undistributed capital gain dividend ("deemed dividend")
for shareholders of record as of December 31, 2005. The deemed dividend for 2005 was $23,206,763. See Note 7.
"Income Taxes." The Company did not declare dividends for the years ended December 31, 2006, or December 31,
2004.

NOTE 6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employment Agreement with CEO

On October 19, 1999, Charles E. Harris signed an employment agreement with us, which superseded an employment
agreement that was about to expire on December 31, 1999. The agreement was to terminate on December 31, 2004
(the "Term"); provided, on January 1, 2000, and on each day thereafter, the Term extends automatically by one day
unless at any time we or Mr. Harris, by written notice, decide not to extend the Term, in which case the Term will
expire five years from the date of the written notice. On October 14, 2004, Mr. Harris signed an Amended and
Restated Employment Agreement with us (the "Employment Agreement") for the purpose of changing the termination
date to be consistent with his retirement date under the Company's Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan. The
Employment Agreement provides that the term of Mr. Harris's employment may not be extended beyond December
31, 2008, unless a committee of the Board consisting of non-interested Directors extends the date by one year
pursuant to the Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan, and Mr. Harris agrees to serve beyond December 31,
2008.

During the period of employment, Mr. Harris shall serve as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; be responsible
for the general management of our affairs and all our subsidiaries, reporting directly to our Board of Directors; serve
as a member of the Board for the period of which he is and shall from time to time be elected or reelected; and serve,
if elected, as an officer and director of any subsidiary or affiliate of us.

Mr. Harris is to receive compensation under his Employment Agreement in the form of base salary, with automatic
yearly adjustments to reflect inflation. In addition, the Board may increase such salary, and consequently decrease it,
but not below the level provided for by the automatic adjustments described above.
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In 2006, the base salary of Mr. Harris was increased from $246,651, the amount due to him for 2006 pursuant to his
Employment Agreement, to $300,000 (thereby also increasing his SERP benefit) in part in recognition of a 74 percent
decrease in Mr. Harris's profit-sharing allocation in recent years in order to provide additional profit sharing to other
employees. This was the first salary increase for Mr. Harris, other than cost of living adjustments, since 1994. Mr.
Harris's base salary for 2007 was increased to $306,187 based on a cost of living adjustment.

Mr. Harris is also entitled to participate in our Profit-Sharing Plan as well as in all compensation or employee benefit
plans or programs, and to receive all benefits, perquisites, and emoluments for which salaried employees are eligible.
Under the Employment Agreement, we furnish Mr. Harris with certain perquisites which include a company car, a
personal trainer, membership in certain clubs and up to a $5,000 annual reimbursement for personal, financial or tax
advice, adjusted for inflation.

The Employment Agreement provides Mr. Harris with life insurance for the benefit of his designated beneficiaries in
the amount of $2,000,000; provides reimbursement for uninsured medical expenses, not to exceed $10,000 per annum,
adjusted for inflation, over the period of the contract; provides Mr. Harris and his spouse with long-term care
insurance; and with disability insurance in the amount of 100 percent of his base salary. These benefits are for the
term of the Employment Agreement.

The Employment Agreement provides severance pay in the event of termination without cause or by constructive
discharge and also provides for certain death benefits payable to the surviving spouse equal to the executive's base
salary for a period of two years.

In addition, Mr. Harris is entitled to receive severance pay pursuant to the severance compensation agreement that he
entered into with us, effective August 15, 1990. The severance compensation agreement provides that if, following a
change in our control, as defined in the agreement, his employment is terminated by us without cause or by the
executive within one year of such change in control, he shall be entitled to receive compensation in a lump sum
payment equal to 2.99 times his average annualized compensation and payment of other welfare benefits. If Mr.
Harris's termination is without cause or is a constructive discharge, the amount payable under the Employment
Agreement will be reduced by the amounts paid pursuant to the severance compensation agreement.

SERP

The Employment Agreement provides that we adopt a supplemental executive retirement plan (the "SERP") for the
benefit of Mr. Harris. Under the SERP, we will cause an amount equal to one-twelfth of Mr. Harris's current annual
salary to be credited each month (a "Monthly Credit") to a special account maintained for this purpose on our books
for the benefit of Mr. Harris (the "SERP Account"). The amounts credited to the SERP Account are deemed invested
or reinvested in such investments as determined by Mr. Harris. The SERP Account is credited and debited to reflect
the deemed investment returns, losses and expenses attributed to such deemed investments and reinvestments. Mr.
Harris's benefit under the SERP equals the balance in the SERP Account and such benefit will always be 100 percent
vested (i.e., not forfeitable). In 2005, Mr. Harris received a $125,000 distribution from the SERP Account. The
balance in the SERP Account will be distributed to Mr. Harris in a lump sum on December 31, 2008; provided,
however, in the event of the termination of his employment, the balance in the SERP Account will be distributed to
Mr. Harris or his beneficiary, as the case may be, in a lump-sum payment within 30 days of such termination. The
obligations incurred by us under the SERP, which amounted to $2,149,785 and $1,730,434 at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. We have established a rabbi trust for the
purpose of accumulating funds to satisfy such obligations which are reflected as restricted funds on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Mr. Harris's rights to benefits pursuant to this SERP will be no greater than those of a
general creditor of us.
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401(k) Plan

As of January 1, 1989, we adopted an employee benefits program covering substantially all of our employees under a
401(k) Plan and Trust Agreement. As of January 1, 1999, we adopted the Harris & Harris Pension Plan and Trust, a
money purchase plan that would allow us to stay compliant with the 401(k) top-heavy regulations and deduction
limitation regulations. In 2001, Congress enacted the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001,
which has increased the deduction limits for plans such as the 401(k) Plan. This Act eliminated the need for us to
maintain two separate plans. Effective December 31, 2001, the Pension Plan merged into the 401(k) Plan, with the
401(k) Plan being the surviving plan. Matching contributions to the plan are at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Compensation Committee approved a 100 percent match
which amounted to $155,000. The 401(k) Company match for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was
$119,360 and $99,249, respectively.

Retiree Medical Benefit Plan

On June 30, 1994, we adopted a plan to provide medical and dental insurance for retirees, their spouses and
dependents who, at the time of their retirement, have ten years of service with us and have attained 50 years of age or
have attained 45 years of age and have 15 years of service with us. On February 10, 1997, we amended this plan to
include employees who "have seven full years of service and have attained 58 years of age." On November 3, 2005,
we amended this plan to reverse the 1997 amendment for future retirees and to remove dependents other than spouses
from the plan. The coverage is secondary to any government or subsequent employer provided health insurance plans.
The annual premium cost to us with respect to the entitled retiree shall not exceed $12,000, subject to an index for
inflation. On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the
"Act") was signed into law. The Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) as well
as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially
equivalent to Medicare Part D. The Act, which went into effect January 1, 2006, provides a 28 percent subsidy for
post-65 prescription drug benefits. Our liability assumes our plan is actuarially equivalent under the Act.

The plan is unfunded and has no assets. The following disclosures about changes in the benefit obligation under our
plan to provide medical and dental insurance for retirees are as of the measurement date of December 31:
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2006 2005

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
Obligation at Beginning of Year $ 675,334 $ 546,090

Service Cost 79,381 49,990

Interest Cost 33,786 32,573

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (84,879) 57,091

Benefits Paid (6,795) (10,410)

Accumulated Postretirement
Benefit Obligation at End of Year $ 696,827 $ 675,334

In accounting for the plan, the assumption made for the discount rate was 5.75 percent and 5.5 percent for the years
ended December 31, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The assumed health care cost trend rates in 2006 were 9 percent
grading to 6 percent over three years for medical and 3 percent per year for dental. The assumed health care cost trend
rates in 2005 were 10.0 percent grading to 6.0 percent over four years and 3.0 percent for dental. The effect on
disclosure information of a one percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each future year
is shown below.

1% Decrease Assumed 1% Increase
in Rates Rates in Rates

Aggregated Service and Interest Cost $ 93,584 $ 113,167 $ 132,289

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation $ 602,552 $ 696,827 $ 780,977

The net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year is determined as the sum of service cost for the year, interest
on the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and amortization of the transition obligation (asset) less
previously accrued expenses over the average remaining service period of employees expected to receive plan
benefits. The following is the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004:

2006 2005 2004

Service Cost $ 79,381 $ 49,990 $ 60,788

Interest Cost on Accumulated Postretirement
Benefit Obligation 33,786 32,573 26,343

Amortization of Transition Obligation 0 0 0

Amortization of Net (Gain)/Loss 0 0 0
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Net Periodic Post Retirement Benefit Cost $ 113,167 $ 82,563 $ 87,131
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The Company estimates the following benefits to be paid in each of the following years:

2007 $ 16,968
2008 $ 25,388
2009 $ 27,093
2010 $ 24,781
2011 $ 26,465
2012 through 2016 $ 162,990

The contribution payable for 2007 is estimated to be $16,968.

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. SFAS No.
158 required the Company to recognize the funded status of its retirement benefit plans in the December 31, 2006
statement of assets and liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to net assets. The adjustment to net assets at
adoption of $61,527 represents the net unrecognized actuarial gains of $95,145 applicable to the healthcare benefit
plan net of $33,618 of unrecognized actuarial losses applicable to the Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan.
Such amounts previously were reflected as a net increase of the plan's funded status in the Company's statement of
assets and liabilities pursuant to the provisions of SFAS Nos. 106 and 187. These amounts will be subsequently
recognized as net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the Company's historical accounting policy for amortizing such
amounts. Further, actuarial gains and losses that arise in subsequent periods and are not recognized as net periodic
benefit cost in the same periods will be recognized as a component of net assets. Those amounts will be subsequently
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized at adoption of
SFAS No. 158.

The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company's consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2006, or for any prior period presented.

Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan

On March 20, 2003, in order to begin planning for eventual management succession, the Board of Directors voted to
establish the Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan for individuals who are employed by us in a bona fide
executive or high policy making position. There are currently three such individuals that qualify under the plan,
Charles E. Harris, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Douglas W. Jamison, the President, Chief Operating
Officer and Chief Financial Officer and Mel P. Melsheimer, the former President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer. Under this plan, mandatory retirement will take place effective December 31 of the year in which
the eligible individuals attain the age of 65. On an annual basis beginning in the year in which the designated
individual attains the age of 65, a committee of the Board consisting of non-interested directors may determine to
postpone the mandatory retirement date for that individual for one additional year for our benefit.
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Under applicable law prohibiting discrimination in employment on the basis of age, we can impose a mandatory
retirement age of 65 for our executives or employees in high policy-making positions only if each employee subject to
the mandatory retirement age is entitled to an immediate retirement benefit at retirement age of at least $44,000 per
year. The benefits payable at retirement to Mr. Harris and Mr. Melsheimer under our existing 401(k) plan do not equal
this threshold. A plan was established to provide the difference between the benefit required under the age
discrimination laws and that provided under our existing plans. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had accrued
$347,075 and $281,656, respectively, for benefits under this plan. At December 31, 2006, $241,836 was accrued for
Mr. Melsheimer and $105,239 was accrued for Mr. Harris. Currently, there is no accrual for Mr. Jamison. In 2006, the
Company recorded an unrecognized loss in net assets of $33,618 for the Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit
Plan, pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 158. The Company also recorded an additional liability of $33,618. On
December 31, 2004, Mr. Melsheimer retired pursuant to the Executive Mandatory Retirement Benefit Plan. His annual
benefit under the plan is $22,915. Mr. Harris's projected mandatory benefit is $15,458 upon his retirement.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

Provided that a proper election is made, a corporation taxable under Subchapter C of the Code or a C Corporation that
elects to qualify as a RIC continues to be taxable as a C Corporation on any gains realized within 10 years of its
qualification as a RIC (the "Inclusion Period") from sales of assets that were held by the corporation on the effective
date of the RIC election ("C Corporation Assets"), to the extent of any gain built into the assets on such date ("Built-In
Gain"). If the corporation fails to make a proper election, it is taxable on its Built-In Gain as of the effective date of its
RIC election. We had Built-In Gains at the time of our qualification as a RIC and made the election to be taxed on any
Built-In Gain realized during the Inclusion Period.

To the extent that we retain capital gains and declare a deemed dividend to shareholders, the dividend is taxable to the
shareholders. We would pay tax on behalf of shareholders, at the corporate rate, on the distribution, and the
shareholders would receive a tax credit equal to their proportionate share of the tax paid. We took advantage of this
rule for 2005. Included in net realized income from investments for the year ended December 31, 2005, were net
realized gains before taxes of $23,862,037, which consisted primarily of a net realized long term capital gain on the
sale of our investment in Neurometrix, Inc., offset by realized net long term capital losses on the sales of Agile
Materials & Technologies, Inc., Experion Systems, Inc., Nanotechnologies, Inc., and Optiva, Inc. We applied
$140,751 of our capital loss carryforwards and $501,640 of our pre-1999 loss carryforwards on Built-In Gains to these
gains.

In December 2005, we declared a deemed dividend on net taxable realized long-term capital gains of $23,206,763.
The Company recorded a tax payable on its Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities of $8,122,367 for taxes
payable on behalf of its shareholders. This distribution of $8,122,367 was also recorded as an income tax expense on
the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. Shareholders of record at
December 31, 2005, received a tax credit of $0.39131971 per share. The balance of $15,084,396 was retained by the
Company. The Company paid $8,122,367 of taxes on behalf of its shareholders on January 30, 2006. At December 31,
2005, we had $1,514,967 accrued for federal and state income taxes payable upon filing of our 2005 tax returns.
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During the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, we paid $9,378,520 in federal income taxes. At December 31,
2006, we had $0 accrued for federal, state and local taxes payable by the Company.

We pay federal, state and local taxes on behalf of our wholly owned subsidiary, Harris & Harris Enterprises, Inc.,
which is taxed as a C Corporation. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, our income tax expense
(benefit) for Harris & Harris Enterprises, Inc., was $9,475, ($6,411) and $44,509, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company's income tax (benefit) expense was allocated as
follows:

2006 2005 2004

Investment operations $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Realized income on investments (227,355) 1,530,881 (44,509)
Taxes paid on behalf of shareholders 0 8,122,367 0
Increase (decrease) in unrealized
appreciation on investments ( 0) (1,364,470) 695,126
Total income tax (benefit) expense $ (227,355) $ 8,288,778 $ 650,617

The above tax expense consists of the following:

2006 2005 2004

Current $ (227,355) $ 9,653,248 $ (44,509)
Deferred -- Federal 0 (1,364,470) 695,126
Total income tax (benefit) expense $ (227,355) $ 8,288,778 $ 650,617

Continued qualification as a RIC requires us to satisfy certain investment asset diversification requirements in future
years. Our ability to satisfy those requirements may not be controllable by us. There can be no assurance that we will
qualify as a RIC in subsequent years.

NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS

On April 17, 2003, we signed a seven-year sublease for office space at 111 West 57th Street in New York City. On
December 17, 2004, we signed a sublease for additional office space at our current location. The subleases expire on
April 29, 2010. Total rent expense for our office space in New York City was $174,625 for 2006, $171,171 in 2005
and $130,518 in 2004. Future minimum sublease payments in each of the following years are: 2007 -- $184,968; 2008
-- $188,598; 2009 -- $192,318; and thereafter, for the remaining term -- $64,301.
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NOTE 9. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

In 1998, the Board of Directors approved that effective January 1, 1998, 50 percent of all Directors' fees be used to
purchase our common stock from us. However, effective March 1, 1999, the Board of Directors approved that
Directors may purchase our common stock in the open market, rather than from us.

Since 1998, we have repurchased a total of 1,859,047 of our shares for a total of $3,496,388, including commissions
and expenses, at an average price of $1.88 per share. These treasury shares were reduced by the purchases made by
the Directors. On July 23, 2002, because of our strategic decision to invest in tiny technology, the Board of Directors
reaffirmed its commitment not to authorize the purchase of additional shares of stock in the foreseeable future.

On November 29, 2006, we filed a registration statement with the SEC on Form N-2 with respect to 4,000,000 shares
of our common stock. On December 11, 2006, we filed an amended registration statement with the SEC. After the
effective date, the common stock may be sold at prices and on terms to be set forth in one or more supplements to the
prospectus from time to time.

In September of 2005, we completed the sale of 3,507,500 shares for gross proceeds of $37,091,813; net proceeds of
the offering, after offering costs of $565,246, were $36,526,567. We intend to use, and have been using, the net
proceeds of the offering to make new investments in tiny technology as well as follow-on investments in our existing
venture capital investments, and for working capital.

NOTE 10. OTHER

At December 31, 2004, we had a total of $255,486 of funds in escrow as a result of the merger of NanoGram Devices
Corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Wilson Greatbatch Technologies, Inc. The funds were held for one
year, until March 16, 2005, in an interest-bearing escrow account to secure the indemnification obligations of the
former stockholders of NanoGram Devices Corporation. During 2004, we set up, by a charge to realized income from
investments, a reserve of 100 percent of the $255,486. On March 16, 2005, we received the entire $255,486, released
the reserve and realized the income.

NOTE 11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2007, the Company issued 189,990 shares of common stock upon the exercise of employee stock options.
The Company received proceeds of $1,920,799.

On January 31, 2007, the Company paid the final installment of the 2005 profit-sharing balance to participants totaling
$261,661.

On February 2, 2007, we made a $350,877 follow-on investment in a privately held tiny technology portfolio
company.
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On February 6, 2007, we made a $540,000 follow-on investment in a privately held tiny technology portfolio
company.

On February 9, 2007, we made a $500,000 follow-on investment in Solazyme, Inc.

On February 15, 2007, we made a $268,654 follow-on investment in a privately held tiny technology portfolio
company.

On February 20, 2007, we made a $1,147,826 new investment in a privately held tiny technology portfolio company.

In February 2007, the Company issued 136,022 shares of common stock upon the exercise of employee stock options.
The Company received proceeds of $1,375,180.

Late in the first quarter of 2007, one of our portfolio companies decided to curtail its fund-raising efforts and to move
to sell its assets. If this company sold all of its assets, we believe that the aggregate net proceeds to us, if any, for our
ownership interest would probably be substantially less than the valuation that we placed on our ownership interest in
this company as a going concern at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2006, we valued our ownership interest in
this company at slightly more than one percent of our gross assets.

NOTE 12. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

2006

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter

Total investment income $ 804,862 $ 785,265 $ 719,619 $ 719,015

Net operating loss $ (767,743) $ (693,887) $ (2,988,790) $ (3,162,515)

Net increase (decrease) in net
assets resulting from operations $ (1,653,990) $ (1,282,997) $ (2,588,092) $ (6,248,033)

Net (decrease) increase in net
assets resulting from operations
 per average outstanding share $ ($0.08) $ (0.06) $ (0.12) $ (0.31)
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2005

 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter

Total investment income $ 260,108 $ 158,717 $ 315,374 $ 801,662
Net operating loss $ (745,590) $ (3,302,094) $ (3,273,797) $ 1,851,274
Net increase (decrease) in net
assets resulting from operations $ (2,233,447) $ 7,001,847 $ 7,336,923 $ (5,388,947)

Net (decrease) increase in net
assets resulting from operations
 per average outstanding share $ (0.13) $ 0.41 $ 0.40 $ (0.26)
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HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,

2006
December 31,

2005
December 31,

2004

Per Share Operating Performance

Net asset value per share, beginning of year $ 5.68 $ 4.33 $ 2.95
Net operating (loss) income* (0.37) (0.30) (0.22)
Net realized income (loss) on investments* 0.01 0.77 0.06
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) as a
result of sales* (1.18) 0.06
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on
investments held* (0.21) 1.07 (0.03)
Total from investment operations* (0.57) 0.36 (0.13)

Net increase as a result of stock-
based compensation 0.24 0 0
Net increase as a result of proceeds
from exercise of options 0.07 0 0
Net increase as a result of stock
offering 0 0.99 1.51
Total increase from capital
stock transactions 0.31 0.99 1.51

Net asset value per share, end of year $ 5.42 $ 5.68 $ 4.33

Stock price per share, end of year $ 12.09 $ 13.90 $ 16.38

Total return based on stock price(1) (13.0)% (15.1)% 42.1%

Supplemental Data:

Net assets, end of year $ 113,930,303 $ 117,987,742 $ 74,744,799

Ratio of expenses to average net assets(1) 9.2% 7.5% 7.4%

Ratio of net operating loss to
average net assets(1) (6.6)% (5.8)% (6.3)%

Cash dividends paid per share $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
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Taxes payable on behalf of shareholders
on the deemed dividend per share $ 0 $ 0.39 $ 0.00

Number of shares outstanding, end of year 21,015,017 20,756,345 17,248,845

*Based on average shares outstanding.
(1)Not annualized.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s management, under the supervision and with the
participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as required by Rules 13a-15 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "1934 Act")). Disclosure controls and procedures means controls and other procedures of
an issuer that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports that it files or
submits under the 1934 Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. As of December 31, 2006, based upon this
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm, which attests to management's assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting, is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter of 2006 to which this report relates
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information set forth under the captions "Nominees," "Executive Officers," "Board of Directors and Committees -
Audit Committee" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in our Proxy Statement for
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 3, 2007, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "2007 Proxy Statement"), is herein incorporated by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees, which also applies to our Chief Executive Officer,
C h i e f  F i n a n c i a l  O f f i c e r ,  T r e a s u r e r  a n d  C o n t r o l l e r  a n d  i s  p o s t e d  o n  o u r  w e b s i t e  a t
http://www.tinytechvc.com/shareholder_information/Code_of_Conduct.html. You may obtain a copy of the Code of
Conduct, free of charge, by calling 1-877-TINY-TECH.

The Board of Directors has determined that Dugald A. Fletcher and James E. Roberts are both "Audit Committee
Financial Experts" serving on our Audit Committee. Messrs. Fletcher and Roberts are independent as defined under
Section 2(a)(19) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and under the rules of the NASD.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the captions "Executive Compensation" and "Board of Directors and Committees -
Compensation Committee" in the 2007 Proxy Statement is herein incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth under the caption "Principal Shareholders and Ownership by Directors and Executive
Officers" in the 2007 Proxy Statement is herein incorporated by reference. The "Equity Compensation Plan
Information" chart is set forth under Item 5.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth under the captions "Board of Directors and Committees" and "Nominees" in the 2007 Proxy
Statement is herein incorporated by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth under the captions "Audit Committee's Pre-Approval Policies," "Audit Fees," "Audit
Related Fees," "Tax Fees" and "All Other Fees" in the 2007 Proxy Statement is herein incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

(1) Listed below are the financial statements which are filed as part of this report:

· Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2006, and 2005;

· Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004;

· Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004;

· Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004;

· Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2006;

· Footnote to Consolidated Schedule of Investments;

· Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2005;

· Footnote to Consolidated Schedule of Investments;

· Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; and

· Financial Highlights for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

(2)No financial statement schedules are required to be filed herewith because (i) such schedules are not required or
(ii) the information has been presented in the above financial statements.

(3)The following exhibits are filed with this report or are incorporated herein by reference to a prior filing, in
accordance with Rule 12b-32 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

3.1(a)Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Harris & Harris Group, Inc., dated September 23, 2005, incorporated
by reference as Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K filed on September 27, 2005.

3.1(b)Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Harris & Harris Group, Inc., dated May 19,
2006, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2006.

3.1(c)Restated By-laws, incorporated by reference as Exhibit B to Pre-Effective Amendment No.1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (333-112862) filed on March 22, 2004.

4.1Form of Specimen Certificate of Common Stock, incorporated by reference to Exhibit D to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (333-138996) filed November 29, 2006.
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10.1Harris & Harris Group, Inc. Custodian Agreement with JP Morgan, incorporated by reference as Exhibit J to
Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-112862)
filed on March 22, 2004.

10.2Severance Compensation Agreement by and between the Company and Charles E. Harris dated August 15,
1990, incorporated by reference as Exhibit I(4) to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-112862) filed on March 22, 2004.

10.3Form of Indemnification Agreement which has been established with all directors and executive officers of the
Company, incorporated by reference as Exhibit I(7) to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-112862) filed on March 22, 2004.

10.4Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Harris & Harris Group, Inc. and Charles E.
Harris, dated October 14, 2004, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
October 15, 2004.

10.5Deferred Compensation Agreement, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004, filed on March 16, 2005.

10.6Amendment No. 4 to Deferred Compensation Agreement, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10 to the
Company's Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2006.

10.7Amendment No. 2 to Deferred Compensation Agreement, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2004.

10.8Amendment No. 1 to Deferred Compensation Agreement, incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 10-Q filed on May 14, 2003.

10.9Trust Under Harris & Harris Group, Inc., Deferred Compensation Agreement, incorporated by reference as
Exhibit I(12) to the Company's Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-138996) filed on November
29, 2006.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HARRIS & HARRIS GROUP, INC.

Date: March 15, 2007 By: /s/ Charles E. Harris
Charles E. Harris
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Charles E. Harris Chairman of the Board March 15, 2007
Charles E. Harris and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Douglas W. Jamison President, Chief Operating March 15, 2007
Douglas W. Jamison Officer, and Chief Financial

Officer

/s/ Patricia N. Egan Chief Accounting Officer March 15, 2007
Patricia N. Egan and Senior Controller

/s/ W. Dillaway Ayres, Jr. Director March 15, 2007
W. Dillaway Ayres, Jr.

/s/ C. Wayne Bardin Director March 15, 2007
C. Wayne Bardin
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/s/ Phillip A. Bauman Director March 15, 2007
Phillip A. Bauman

/s/ G. Morgan Browne Director March 15, 2007
G. Morgan Browne

/s/ Dugald A. Fletcher Director March 15, 2007
Dugald A. Fletcher

/s/ Kelly S. Kirkpatrick Director March 15, 2007
Kelly S. Kirkpatrick

/s/ Mark A. Parsells Director March 15, 2007
Mark A. Parsells

/s/ Lori D. Pressman Director March 15, 2007
Lori D. Pressman

/s/ Charles E. Ramsey Director March 15, 2007
Charles E. Ramsey

/s/ James E. Roberts Director March 15, 2007
James E. Roberts

Director
Richard P. Shanley
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed with this report in accordance with Rule 12b-32 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

Exhibit No. Description

31.01 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

31.02 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.01 Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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